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PROCEEDINGS   1399

 1  

 2  P R O C E E D I N G S  

 3  

 4 APRIL 24, 2012                                    7 :29 a.m.  

 5  

 6  

 7 (Proceedings held in open court, outside 

 8  the presence and hearing of the jury.) 

 9 THE COURT:  Good morning everyone, please be seated.

10 So how can I help you this morning?

11 MR. JACOBS:   We have some housekeeping items first,

12 your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  All right.

14 MR. JACOBS:   The Court requested a list of witnesses

15 and attorneys, and we have one that we have agree d to with

16 Google.

17 THE COURT:  Wonderful.

18 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

19  to the Court.) 

20 THE COURT:  Do we have 12 copies we can hand out?

21 MR. JACOBS:   We do, actually.  That's why there's so

22 many here.  This is the list of witnesses.

23 THE COURT:  Are those --

24 MR. JACOBS:   And the attorneys are on the back, your

25 Honor.
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PROCEEDINGS   1400

 1 THE COURT:  These are the witnesses in the entire

 2 case or...

 3 MR. JACOBS:   Phase 1, your Honor.

 4 THE COURT:  This is Phase 1 witnesses?

 5 MR. JACOBS:   Yes.

 6 THE COURT:  All right.

 7 MR. JACOBS:   Then the deposition exhibits for --

 8 sorry, the deposition excerpts for Daniel Morrill  that were

 9 played by video during the trial, we're submittin g with an

10 exhibit marker on it as 1066.

11 THE COURT:  That will be made part of the record.

12 (Trial Exhibit 1066 marked for identification) 

13 MR. JACOBS:   And for Bob Lee 1067.

14 THE COURT:  Same.

15 (Trial Exhibit 1067 marked for identification) 

16 MR. JACOBS:   And the demonstratives that were used

17 during Dr. Mitchell's testimony we're submitting as 1073.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  Those are the ones that were

19 actually used and shown to the jury as opposed to  drafts.

20 MR. JACOBS:   That's exactly right.  You'll see in the

21 dec there's some potentially left blank to cover those that

22 were not shown and discussed.

23 THE COURT:  Thank you.

24 MR. JACOBS:   We have some other items.  

25 THE COURT:  Go ahead.
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PROCEEDINGS   1401

 1 MR. BOIES:   Two things relating to documents, your

 2 Honor.

 3 First, the Court will recall that in our motion i n

 4 limine the Court excluded the 1994 testimony by M r. Schmidt

 5 explicitly.

 6 THE COURT:  Correct.

 7 MR. BOIES:   And as part of a general ruling that

 8 excluded testimony about pre-2006 Sun positions.  I find that

 9 in the book that has been given to me in terms of  disclosed

10 documents for Mr. Schmidt's examination, so I wan ted to raise

11 that outside the presence of the jury.

12 I assume that counsel will, before using an exclu ded

13 document, raise that outside the presence of the jury so that

14 we can discuss it.  I just wanted to be absolutel y certain that

15 I was correct about that.  

16 MR. VAN NEST:   I certainly will, your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.

18 MR. BOIES:   Second, on documents I have a modicum of

19 good news.

20 I gave them 35 documents with respect to Mr. Rubi n

21 that I requested stipulation on, and I have agree ment as to six

22 of those that I would like to offer at this time.

23 THE COURT:  Please go ahead.

24 MR. BOIES:   Exhibits 34, 278, 298, 387, 538 and 1048,

25 which I would offer at this time.
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PROCEEDINGS   1402

 1 MR. VAN NEST:   No objection, your Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  Those are received.

 3 (Trial Exhibits 34, 278, 298, 387, 538 and 1048 

 4 received in evidence) 

 5 MR. BOIES:   Then, last, I would ask the Court's

 6 guidance.  That leaves me with 29 exhibits and wh at I would

 7 plan to do is offer those, not using the term "pa rty

 8 admission," but as a party admission.  And if the re is an

 9 objection that is sustained, I would lay a founda tion through

10 the witness, but I don't want to, obviously, do t hat when I

11 don't have to in terms of my time.

12 THE COURT:  Well, here is what I suggest.  I'm

13 sympathetic to your problem.  I suppose almost al l of these are

14 going to be emails written by the witness?

15 MR. BOIES:   Yes, or to the witness.

16 THE COURT:  Or to the witness written by somebody

17 else at Google?

18 MR. BOIES:   Yes, your Honor.

19 THE COURT:  So all you have to do is say, "Is this an

20 email you wrote on or about X?"  He says, "Yes."  And you say,

21 "Offer in evidence," and it's going to sail in.

22 MR. BOIES:   I will do that, your Honor.

23 THE COURT:  Or, "Is this an email you received from

24 somebody else in Google on or about X?"  Same sce nario.

25 So that has the additional advantage of helping t he
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PROCEEDINGS   1403

 1 jury understand what it is, so that it's just not  a stray

 2 document stuck in the jury room.

 3 All right?

 4 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.

 5 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.

 6 Another matter we wanted to bring up.  On Sunday,

 7 February -- or, April 15th, we filed a motion in limine

 8 concerning evidence that Google apparently intend s to rely upon

 9 to satisfy the reliance element of its equitable defenses,

10 including implied license and equitable estoppel.   Among that

11 evidence is Mr. Schwartz's blog post, which is ad mitted into

12 evidence as Exhibit 2352.

13 Google has disclosed for several of its witnesses

14 that it intends to use in its examination Exhibit  2352, and we

15 renew our objection and move to exclude testimony  concerning

16 that document on the grounds that Google did not at any time in

17 discovery disclose anything to suggest that any w itness, any

18 employee of Google, relied on any blog post by Mr . Schwartz in

19 deciding to proceed with Android, invest in Andro id, make any

20 decision with respect to Android.  There is nothi ng --

21 And this is in Docket 922, which we again filed o n

22 Sunday the 15th.  We recounted what they disclose d in discovery

23 and what they did not and we specifically asked t hem for the

24 bases for their equitable defenses.  And there is  no evidence

25 ever disclosed by Google that any employee of the irs ever
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PROCEEDINGS   1404

 1 relied on any such statement and for them to try to offer

 2 testimony now at trial that we had no notice of d uring the

 3 entire course of discovery would be unfair and pr ejudicial and

 4 would be entirely inconsistent with the purposes of Rule 26.

 5 The only reference they have ever made in their

 6 discovery responses, and this is in their opposit ion, 922, is

 7 to say that Oracle was aware of Mr. Schwartz's bl og post.  And

 8 Oracle's awareness of Mr. Schwartz's blog post do es nothing for

 9 Google.

10 Google needed to show that its employees were awa re

11 of the blog post and that there was some actual r eliance.  It's

12 required for each of these equitable defenses.  N othing in

13 their discovery responses ever says that.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's hear the response.

15 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, just a few quick points.

16 First, just to be clear, not all of the equitable

17 defenses even require reliance, only some of them  do.

18 But the fact is during discovery, your Honor may

19 remember, we had two series of motion to compels,  come

20 meet-and-confers in the courthouse.  At those mee t-and-confers

21 we worked out some very elaborate procedures for raising issues

22 as to adequacy of interrogatories.

23 In accordance with that, we supplemented our

24 interrogatory responses, as we had agreed.  We in cluded in the

25 supplemental responses Mr. Schwartz's blog post s pecifically

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page8 of 250



PROCEEDINGS   1405

 1 and we said in the response -- we identified the different

 2 elements of the equitable defenses.  We said, Goo gle relied on

 3 these statements and inactions of Sun.  Google co uld have made

 4 other choices if Sun had complained earlier, and these are the

 5 bases for our equitable defenses.

 6 At no point in discovery did anyone agree to iden tify

 7 specific granular, "This witness will testify as to X."  "This

 8 witness as to Y."  After we did those supplementa l responses,

 9 after backs-and-forths for weeks, we sent that to  them.  We

10 never heard a peep after that.  There were no fur ther issues

11 raised about the requests adequacy of those respo nses.

12 And what we had agreed, and what we told your Hon or

13 at the meet-and-confer in March, was we said we h ad agreed that

14 we would, as best we could, respond with suppleme ntal responses

15 at sort of equal levels of detail for both partie s, but that if

16 either party, after seeing the other's responses,  thought that

17 it should be more detailed, all they had to do wa s raise it.

18 If you remember, we had a procedure where we woul d

19 have senior counsel meet-and-confers every week t o address

20 discovery issues.  Not once ever after the supple mental

21 response that identified the blog post specifical ly referenced

22 reliance and said how we were going to show relia nce did they

23 ever complain again.

24 THE COURT:  Is 2352 two in evidence already?

25 MR. BABER:   It is, your Honor.  It's already been
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PROCEEDINGS   1406

 1 admitted.

 2 THE COURT:  Show that to me so I can remember what it

 3 says.

 4 MR. BABER:   It's Jonathan Schwartz, chairman of --

 5 the rockets.  He strapped rockets to Java, blog p ost.

 6 (Document displayed) 

 7 THE COURT:  How could such a colorful document be

 8 kept out of evidence?

 9 (Laughter.) 

10 THE COURT:  Mr. Norton, I don't understand.  This is

11 already in evidence.  So what is the problem?

12 MR. NORTON:  The document is in evidence.  You will

13 recall, your Honor, at the sidebar we objected; t hat when the

14 defendants introduced the document through Mr. Mo rrill, we

15 objected that Mr. Morrill had not relied on the d ocument and

16 that Google couldn't establish that he had.  Your  Honor

17 restricted the questioning of Mr. Morrill on that  basis and at

18 the conclusion of the sidebar, I noted that no re liance had

19 ever been disclosed by Google with respect to thi s document,

20 and your Honor said that that was an objection yo u might have

21 considered, but that I noted it too late.

22 I hope not to make that mistake twice.  We did mo ve

23 in limine on the 15th.  We did specifically targe t the blog

24 post.  Google has not disclosed this, any relianc e on this

25 document.  The document they disclosed.  Reliance  they did not.
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PROCEEDINGS   1407

 1 Mr. Baber is arguing that Oracle had an obligatio n to

 2 come back and extract better evidence to support Google's

 3 defenses.  That's not how discovery works.  They chose what

 4 they wanted to disclose and if their disclosures were

 5 inadequate to prove their defenses, we're entitle d to say,

 6 apparently, they can't prove those defenses.

 7 THE COURT:  I just heard from Mr. Baber that he did

 8 give an interrogatory answer that specifically ca lled this blog

 9 out.  Didn't I -- isn't that what you said?

10 MR. BABER:   Yes, sir.

11 THE COURT:  So I don't get it.  One of you is saying

12 it was disclosed, and one is saying it was not di sclosed.

13 MR. NORTON:  I agree that the -- as I stated before,

14 their responses do mention the blog post.  They m ention the

15 blog post.  And I'm quoting from their opposition  to our motion

16 in limine Document 924 at Page 4.

17 "Google further states that Oracle was aware

18 of Android and the Open Handset Alliance at

19 least as early as November 2007 as reflected

20 by Jonathan Schwartz's public comments

21 congratulating Google and the Open Handset

22 Alliance on the announcement of Android."  

23 Which I take to be a reference to the blog post.

24 What they don't say in that response is that they  were -- they,

25 Google -- was aware or that Google relied.
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PROCEEDINGS   1408

 1 Now, they do have a categorical statement that Go ogle

 2 relied on inaction.  Google.  Not any witness.  N ot any person.

 3 Not any decision maker.  But Google relied on Sun 's inaction

 4 and statements.

 5 But, again, that's too broad to satisfy their bur den

 6 to identify the evidences that supports their def enses to the

 7 extent those defenses require showing of reliance .

 8 And no witness testified that they had relied on this

 9 document in any deposition.  No discovery respons e says that

10 there was a decision maker at Google who relied o n this

11 document.  They can try to show reliance by some other means,

12 but this is not the means by which they disclosed  it in

13 discovery.

14 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, if I may?

15 THE COURT:  Well, yes.  Did I understand you

16 correctly to say that you did call out the blog a s an item that

17 you relied on?

18 MR. BABER:   Yes, your Honor.  I'll read it to you, if

19 you would like.

20 THE COURT:  Read it to me.

21 MR. BABER:   This is the supplemental responses we

22 provided after the meet-and-confer and we had wor ked out all

23 these procedures, and it is our response to their  interrogatory

24 10, which asks for:  

25 "Please explain the factual and legal bases
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PROCEEDINGS   1409

 1 for Google's pleading of its 11th affirmative

 2 defense, copyright and unenforceability

 3 (waiver, estoppel, latches)."

 4 There's a lot of objections and early stuff.  The n it

 5 says:  

 6 "First of all, Google expressly incorporates

 7 by reference" --

 8 (Court reporter interruption.) 

 9 THE COURT:  My goodness.  I never understood why it

10 is that when a lawyer starts to read, they double  their speed.

11 They should go half as fast.  It should be -- if it's so

12 important, it ought to go slowly.

13 Come on.  All right.  Start over and read it.

14 MR. BABER:   Sorry.  I apologize.

15 This is our response, our supplemental response t o

16 their Interrogatory No. 10, which asks for the fa ctual and

17 legal bases for our equitable defenses on the cop yright side.

18 We first said that we incorporated by reference o ur

19 response to Interrogatory No. 4, which was basica lly the same

20 interrogatory on the patent side, since obviously  the equitable

21 defenses relate to both.

22 In that earlier response we had referenced -- I'm

23 trying to scroll all the way up to it, your Honor .  It's a long

24 set of discovery responses.

25 In that interrogatory response to No. 4 we
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PROCEEDINGS   1410

 1 specifically referenced:  

 2 "In fact, former Sun CEO Jonathan Schwartz

 3 congratulated Google when Android was

 4 announced and publicly commented that, quote,

 5 today is an incredible day for the Open

 6 Source Community and a massive endorsement of

 7 two of the industry's most prolific free

 8 software communities," et cetera.

 9 So it was specifically referenced there, and

10 incorporated by reference in No. 10.  And No. 10 --

11 THE COURT:  Where was he working when he did this

12 blog?

13 MR. BABER:   He was the CEO of Sun.

14 THE COURT:  At the time of the blog?

15 MR. BABER:   Yes, sir.

16 THE COURT:  You said he was the former CEO.

17 MR. BABER:   Well, he was.  At the time of the

18 interrogatory answers, he was the former CEO.

19 THE COURT:  But at the time he actually wrote this

20 2352, he was the CEO of Sun?

21 MR. BABER:   That's correct, your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  Had Oracle acquired the company yet?

23 MR. BABER:   Not yet.

24 Now, we go on in the interrogatory answer to 10,

25 after incorporating No. 4.  And we say that:
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PROCEEDINGS   1411

 1 "Google further states, as reflected in

 2 Oracle's patent local rule disclosures,

 3 Oracle was aware of Android pursuant to

 4 discussions with Andy Rubin," et cetera.

 5 "On May 26th, 2006 Oracle representatives met

 6 with Andy Rubin to discuss Open Source and

 7 other things.  Google further states that Sun

 8 believed Android to allegedly infringe Sun's

 9 rights at least as early as these

10 discussions, but no later than November 15th,

11 2007."

12 And we cite to Andy Rubin's deposition as a witne ss

13 who had testified already about this as of the ti me of the

14 interrogatory answers.

15 We then said:

16 "Google further states Oracle was aware of

17 Android and the Open Handset Alliance at

18 least as early as November 2007, as reflected

19 by Jonathan Schwartz's public comments

20 congratulating Google and the Open Handset

21 Alliance on the announcement of Android."

22 The interrogatory answer continues:

23 "Oracle, nevertheless, delayed several years

24 before bringing suit even though the Android

25 source code was publicly available, while the
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 1 Android market grew and while Google and

 2 numerous handset manufacturers and other

 3 entities made significant investments in the

 4 Android platform."  

 5 Google further states that:  

 6 "Oracle's actions, including statements and

 7 actions of its predecessor Sun, encouraging

 8 use of the Java programming language and

 9 congratulating Google on the launch of

10 Android" -- that's the blog -- "form the

11 basis of Google's defenses of waiver,

12 estoppel and latches.  Sun/Oracle's delay was

13 unreasonable.  Google reasonably relied on

14 Sun's/Oracle's acquiescence and delay and if

15 Sun or Oracle had asserted claims earlier,

16 Google could have made different choices

17 regarding the inclusion of certain elements

18 in Android.  Sun's/Oracle's delay has been

19 prejudicial to Google in several respects,

20 including that numerous relevant documents,

21 including complete copies of the asserted

22 works themselves, were apparently not

23 maintained by Sun/Oracle.  Memories of

24 witnesses have faded and Google has been

25 required to expend significant resources
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 1 defending Oracle's late claims."

 2 It keeps going on.  There's more.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  Well, all right.  So it does

 4 seem to me that the interrogatory answer called o ut this very

 5 blog and said it was relied upon.

 6 MR. NORTON:  Well, the -- we have never disputed that

 7 they called out the blog.  Our concern is that th ey are going

 8 to put witnesses on the stand to say that they re lied upon the

 9 blog when they've never identified any witness wh o did so.

10 And, in fact, at the March 28th hearing before yo ur

11 Honor, March 28th, 2012, your Honor asked counsel  for Google,

12 "Who from Google is going to stand up and say the y relied on

13 this blog post?"  And the answer was, "I'll have to check."  

14 They have never told us.  They have never told yo u.

15 So at this point they don't have anybody whose ev er -- they've

16 never identified anywhere that there is a person who relied.

17 They just have a categorical statement of the leg al requirement

18 of reliance and they have disclosed nothing else.

19 And at this point for them to bring out witnesses  who

20 will say, "Yes, I read it.  I relied on it.  It w as very

21 important to me," when we never had a chance to s ee that in

22 discovery is unfair.

23 THE COURT:  All right.  Here is the answer.

24 You may question about this blog.  It's already i n

25 evidence to begin with.  Even if it wasn't in evi dence, this is
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 1 relevant on several fronts.  It may be that no on e can say they

 2 saw this blog at that time, but it -- it seems to  be part of a

 3 pattern, arguably, of acquiescence or tolerance o f what Google

 4 was doing and such that it was only years later a fter Oracle

 5 acquired the company that things changed.

 6 Back at this point in time Sun seemed to be a

 7 enthusiastic supporter of what Google was doing a nd from that

 8 it could be argued, together with other evidence,  that there

 9 was a pattern of acquiescence by Sun.  I'm not sa ying that

10 there was.  I'm just saying that the -- that Goog le should be

11 given the opportunity to try to prove that.  So t hat's one way

12 it's relevant.

13 Second way that it's relevant is -- and to just a dd

14 one more sentence.  It may be that no particular witness can

15 remember reading this and saying they relied on i t, though we

16 don't know for sure.  We haven't heard all the wi tnesses yet.

17 But I am sure they are going to say they did rely  upon the

18 apparent acquiescence, a pattern of doing so, and  this being

19 part of the pattern I think that ought to come in to evidence.

20 But there is a second way in which this is releva nt,

21 perhaps, more to Phase 3.  If Sun itself thought that Android

22 was going to strap some rockets to the -- you kno w, strapping

23 rockets is like the spaceship going into outer sp ace.  Then how

24 can Oracle say it's been damaged?  Maybe there ou ght to be a

25 counterclaim for unjust enrichment.
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 1 (Laughter.) 

 2 THE COURT:  I mean, if it's true that it was such a

 3 great thing and Sun thought it was such a great t hing, it's a

 4 good argument that, hey, if this damaged Sun so m uch, how come

 5 he said it would strap rockets to the...

 6 So, I can see this being a legitimate item of

 7 evidence, and I'm not saying that there were no d amages.  This

 8 is a matter of proof for the lawyers to argue bef ore the jury.

 9 And we have got terrific lawyers here and we will  make good

10 points, but this is fair game.

11 So the objection is overruled, and the motion to

12 exclude is overruled.  We're going to allow 2352 to be used to

13 examine Mr. Schwartz.

14 Is he coming today?

15 MR. VAN NEST:   No, your Honor.  Mr. Schwartz is the

16 CEO of Sun, but Mr. Schmidt and Mr. Rubin will bo th be here

17 today.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  Well, you can use it with

19 them, I guess.

20 All right.  So what's the next item?  We have got  to

21 hurry because the jury is here.  We're ready to g o.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   I just need a couple minutes, your

23 Honor.

24 I appreciate the guidance that you gave Mr. Boies  on

25 the exhibits.  There is one category of documents  that they
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 1 want to use with either Mr. Schmidt or Mr. Rubin,  and these are

 2 what I call the large number documents.

 3 An example here, if I could hand it up, is 431.  I

 4 think your Honor has seen 431 before.  I would ap preciate it

 5 not being displayed in a courtroom necessarily.

 6 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

 7  to the Court.) 

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   But these are just -- these are

 9 generally financial documents that are after -- m ost of them,

10 after the lawsuit started.  This one is in Octobe r of 2010.

11 And I've put a couple of handy green tabs on ther e,

12 your Honor, to show you two or three pages down.  I mean, these

13 are nothing more than getting the same large numb ers with a "B"

14 in front of our jurors.

15 They are probably not even relevant to Phase 3.  They

16 are certainly not relevant to Phase 1.

17 I have absolutely no problem with any witness bei ng

18 examined about, you know, how Android was going t o be used and

19 how were you going to make money on it, and was i t a charitable

20 event or were you planning to monetize it?  But t hese are

21 obviously -- and some of them are humongous.  I m ean, 40 page

22 financial documents just for the purpose of throw ing the "B"

23 number up.

24 And I object to those.  That's the main category.

25 There's probably a dozen of them.
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 1 THE COURT:  Who would this be used with?

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm not sure.  Probably either Mr.

 3 Rubin or Mr. Schmidt, our CEO, will be here this morning.

 4 THE COURT:  Is that in your case or --

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   That's in their case, in their case.

 6 I'm not going to ask either Mr. Rubin or Mr. Schm idt

 7 any questions about these.  But, again, arguably may be

 8 relevant to Phase 3, but certainly not today and certainly not

 9 throwing the big "B" numbers around in a copyrigh t case where

10 we're in Phase 1.

11 THE COURT:  What do you say, Mr. Boies?

12 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, if you look at Exhibit 431, I

13 don't think they're throwing around a lot of "B" numbers in

14 there.

15 It's absolutely clear under the law that the more

16 revenue obtained as a result of an infringer's us e of a

17 copyrighted work, the less likely the use will be  considered

18 fair.

19 Even if we had filled that exhibit with "B" numbe rs,

20 as long as it relates to their revenue -- and the  Court can

21 give whatever instruction the Court thinks is app ropriate in

22 terms of the fact that revenue is not profits, it 's not

23 damages.  But the law, with respect to fair use, is that the

24 more revenue they obtain as a result of an infrin ger use of a

25 copyrighted work, the less likely the use will be  considered
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 1 fair.

 2 THE COURT:  That's a good point.

 3 What do you say to that?  That is a factor, isn't  it,

 4 under fair use?

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   I don't think the amount of revenue is

 6 necessarily a factor.  Whether it's commercial us e or not is a

 7 factor.

 8 And if you'll look at an exhibit like 431, your

 9 Honor, these are general statements not just abou t Android, but

10 about Google in general.  431, for example, is ta lking about

11 all the business units.  It's talking about not o nly Android,

12 but another product called Chrome, which isn't ev en at issue

13 here.  It's talking about revenues from things li ke search,

14 display, YouTube and so on.

15 I mean, again, the fact that it's a commercial us e is

16 not in dispute.  Nobody is claiming that Google c reated Android

17 as part of a charitable mission.  The evidence is  pretty clear

18 that they created it to provide a platform on whi ch other

19 Google product could do better.  And there is not hing wrong

20 with examining about that.

21 In terms of the amount of money -- most of these are

22 projections, first of all, for the future.  So I' m not sure why

23 that would be relevant at all, but in terms of th e amount of

24 money, that's not a relevant factor.  It's whethe r or not -- 

25 THE COURT:  I'm not sure you're right about that.
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 1 The way you have pitched it so far to the jury is  that what

 2 Google did was in the public interest, and that - - that

 3 Google -- the items that were copied you did in o rder to take

 4 it to the next level and it was all in the intere sts of the

 5 public interest and the programming community.

 6 I can't reconstruct how you put it, but it sounde d

 7 charitable -- there was a charitable tinge to the  argument.

 8 And why wouldn't it be fair for Mr. Boies to come  back and say,

 9 "No, it was just Greed.  Greed, Greed, Greed, wit h a capital

10 G."

11 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, Mr. Baber is pointing out

12 the relevant factor here is the purpose and chara cter of the

13 use, the effect upon -- the effect of the use upo n the

14 potential market or value of the copyrighted work .

15 So the fact that Google was planning to make mone y on

16 this is a relevant factor, but I'm talking about the amounts of

17 money.

18 THE COURT:  You left something out.

19 I left my copy of the statute back in the room, b ut

20 it calls out the word "commercial" that you left out when you

21 just read it.  Read me the whole statute.

22 MR. BABER:   You want the whole statute or just the

23 four factors?

24 THE COURT:  The factor that uses the word

25 "commercial."
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 1 MR. BABER:   It's factor one, your Honor.  

 2 "The purpose and character of the use,

 3 including whether such use is of a commercial

 4 nature or is for non-profit educational

 5 purposes."

 6 THE COURT:  Yeah.  Well, you left that part out. 

 7 This is, the amount of money goes to commercial.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, what I have told the jury

 9 was that -- right from the start, that the whole point of

10 Android was to get a platform out there on which Google

11 products could perform better.  That's what Mr. P age said

12 during his brief appearance here early last week.

13 I'm objecting not to evidence about commercial us e.

14 I'm not objecting to evidence about the goal, int ent and so on

15 of Android.

16 What I'm objecting to is throwing large numbers o ut

17 there with a "B" in front of them that are prejud icial, not

18 relevant, certainly not relevant to Phase 1, and add nothing to

19 the point that this was a commercial use.

20 And so that's my objection.  It's 403.  There's a

21 whole dozen of these they want to use, and I don' t think -- I

22 don't think it adds anything relevant to the evid ence or the

23 factor given that we're only complaining about th e amount, and

24 I think it's prejudicial.

25 THE COURT:  All right.  That objection is overruled
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 1 without prejudice to after -- if Mr. Boies overdo es it and goes

 2 through too many of these, at some point it will be diminishing

 3 returns and 403 will come into play.

 4 However, this is unlike the situation where I

 5 excluded Mr. Norton from bringing up how much mon ey was paid

 6 for Sun -- which he should not have done and he w as told not to

 7 do that beforehand -- because that is irrelevant and that does

 8 have the prejudicial effect that you're complaini ng about.

 9 But this is a different kettle of fish.  These ar e

10 your own documents.  These are Google's own inter nal documents

11 showing how many billions of dollars they expecte d to make off

12 of this.  And it's a decent argument to be made, that this was

13 not at all intended for charitable purposes.  Thi s was intended

14 for commercial purposes with large amounts of mon ey at stake

15 and, therefore, it was not fair use.  It was copy ing.

16 So I think within -- I don't know how many you ha ve

17 of these, but you can use at least two of them.  After that,

18 we'll have to see where it leads.  So that object ion is

19 overruled to that extent.

20 All right.  We need to bring in the jury, unless you

21 have something, a burning thing.

22 I never did get a ruling on 207.  Is 207 objected  to?

23 That was where we left off yesterday.  207 is one  you offered,

24 Mr. Boies, but I don't have it -- I have written down what we

25 decided on it.
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 1 MR. BOIES:   I think Mr. Van Nest has not responded to

 2 that one, your Honor.

 3 MR. VAN NEST:   Can we do that during the course of

 4 the evidence, your Honor?

 5 THE COURT:  All right.  We'll come back to it.

 6 Do we still have a witness on the stand?

 7 MR. BOIES:   Yes.

 8 THE COURT:  Mr. Rubin, isn't it?

 9 MR. BOIES:   Mr. Rubin.

10 THE COURT:  Let's bring him back.

11 (Jury enters courtroom at 8:01 a.m.) 

12 THE COURT:  Okay, welcome back.  Please be seated.

13 So they are trying to find the witness.  This wil l

14 give me an opportunity to -- while we're waiting,  I'll explain

15 what I said I would the other day.

16 Why is it that the lawyers ask for permission to

17 approach the witness?  Remember, I told you I wou ld tell you

18 that little secret.

19 Here is the reason.  In the old days, even before  I

20 was born, the lawyers would go up there and stand  by the

21 witness and kind of put their arm around them and  lean over and

22 sort of shout in their ear, and pretty soon they would admit

23 anything just to get rid of the lawyer.  And so w e protect the

24 witnesses from that, and you cannot approach the witness

25 without permission of the Court.
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 1 Now, these lawyers are excellent.  They would nev er

 2 do such a thing to a witness, and so there really  is no need

 3 for them to ask, but out of courtesy to the Court  and out of

 4 tradition they always ask and I always grant it, don't I?  So I

 5 never have said no.

 6 But that's the reason.  It's an old tradition.  I t's

 7 the same reason that we don't let the lawyers get  within

 8 three feet of the jury box.  Same thing.  These l awyers would

 9 never abuse that in this courtroom.  They are ter rific lawyers.

10 But nonetheless it's an old traditional.  The jur y box and the

11 witness box are safe havens, so to speak, by trad ition.  

12 Is the witness ready?  Mr. Rubin, please come

13 forward.

14 (Witness steps forward.) 

15 THE COURT:  How are you today?

16 THE WITNESS:  Good.  Thank you.

17 THE COURT:  Good.  Please talk into the mic.

18 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  How do I sound?

19 THE COURT:  And, remember, you're still under oath.

20 THE WITNESS:  Yes, okay.

21 THE COURT:  And you all remember over there in the

22 jury box, we only got about 15 minutes into the e xamination --

23 23 minutes, my notes show, into the examination o f Mr. Rubin,

24 but we'll pick it up where we left off yesterday.

25 Mr. Boies, you may continue.
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 1 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.  

 2 ANDY RUBIN,  

 3 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been 

 4 previously sworn, resumed the stand and testified  further as 

 5 follows:   

 6 DIRECT EXAMINATION RESUMED 

 7 BY MR. BOIES:  

 8 Q. Mr. Rubin, I would like to begin by having you iden tify

 9 some documents that were either sent to you or th at you

10 prepared either in whole or in part?

11 MR. BOIES:   And may I approach, your Honor?

12 THE COURT:  You may.

13  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

14   to the witness.)  

15 MR. BOIES:   In order to expedite this, may I stand

16 here as we go through this document?

17 THE COURT:  Yes, you can do that.

18 BY MR. BOIES:  

19 Q. The first document I want to show you is a document  marked

20 as Trial Exhibit 207.

21  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

22   to the witness.) 

23 THE COURT:  A little louder so the jury will hear

24 you.

25
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 1 BY MR. BOIES:  

 2 Q. Trial Exhibit 207.  Is this a document that was sen t to

 3 you on or about May 11th, 2007?

 4 A. Let me take a look.

 5 (Brief pause.) 

 6 A. Yes, I believe it was.  Yep, May 11th maybe -- yep.

 7 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, I would offer Exhibit 207.

 8 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

 9 (Trial Exhibit 207 received 

10  in evidence) 

11 THE COURT:  Next.

12 BY MR. BOIES:  

13 Q. Let me ask you to look next at Trial Exhibit 214.

14 Is this an email from Mr. Schmidt to you May 14,

15 2006?

16  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

17   to the witness.) 

18 A. Yes.  From -- yes, from Eric Schmidt to myself.

19 MR. BOIES:   Offer, your Honor.

20 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

21 (Trial Exhibit 214 received 

22  in evidence) 

23 BY MR. BOIES:  

24 Q. Let me ask you to look at Exhibit 215.

25
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 1  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 2   to the witness.) 

 3 Q. Is this an email to you June 1st, 2006 on the subje ct of

 4 Java class libraries?

 5 A. Yes.  From Chris Desalvo to myself June 1st, 2006.

 6 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

 7 (Trial Exhibit 215 received in evidence) 

 8 THE COURT:  Next.

 9 BY MR. BOIES:  

10 Q. Let me ask you to look next at Trial Exhibit 216.

11  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

12   to the witness.) 

13 Q. Is this an email to you appear other people from Mr .

14 Schmidt, January 15th, 2007?  

15 A. Yes.  From Eric Schmidt on January 15, 2007 to myse lf,

16 Jonathan Rosenberg, Larry Page, Sergey, Yael and Alan Eustace.

17 MR. BOIES:   Okay.  Because we're on certain time

18 limits, I would ask you not to repeat the questio n, if you

19 could.  Just answer "yes" or "no."

20 THE COURT:  216 is in evidence.

21 (Trial Exhibit 216 received 

22  in evidence)  

23 THE COURT:  Next.

24 BY MR. BOIES:  

25 Q. Let me ask you to look at Trial Exhibit 217.
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 1  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 2   to the witness.) 

 3 Q. Is this an email to you from Dave Burke, November 2 1,

 4 2007?

 5 A. Yes, it is.

 6 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

 7 (Trial Exhibit 217 received 

 8  in evidence) 

 9 BY MR. BOIES:  

10 Q. Let me ask you to look next at Trial Exhibit 221.

11  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

12   to the witness.) 

13 Q. Is this an email from you August 18, 2010?

14 A. It's an email thread originally from Louie, but I'm

15 responding to it.  So it's a reply.

16 THE COURT:  Received in evidence, 221.

17 (Trial Exhibit 221 received in evidence) 

18 THE COURT:  Next.

19 BY MR. BOIES:  

20 Q. Exhibit 223.  Is the top email an email from Larry Page to

21 you dated July 17, 2007?

22  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

23   to the witness.) 

24 A. Yes.  The top email is from Larry Page to myself.

25 MR. BOIES:   Offered, your Honor.
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 1 THE COURT:  223 is received.

 2 (Trial Exhibit 223 received 

 3  in evidence) 

 4 BY MR. BOIES:  

 5 Q. Let me show you Trial Exhibit 230.

 6  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 7   to the witness.) 

 8 Q. Is the top email an email from you August 11th, 200 5?

 9 A. Yes.

10 THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  Have these all been objected

11 to, Mr. Van Nest?

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Some have, but there is no objection.

13 My objection was sponsoring witness objection, bu t, no, these

14 are not objectionable.  Emails to and from Mr. Ru bin are not

15 objected to.

16 THE COURT:  Continue on.

17 MR. BOIES:   In that case, your Honor, I would offer

18 the following exhibits, which are all emails to o r from Mr.

19 Rubin.

20 THE COURT:  What are they?

21 MR. BOIES:   Exhibit 273.

22 THE COURT:  Wait.  230 we missed.  I'm going to

23 receive that.

24 (Trial Exhibit 230 received 

25  in evidence) 
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 1 THE COURT:  273?  What else.

 2 MR. BOIES:   382.

 3 THE COURT:  382.

 4 MR. BOIES:   389.

 5 THE COURT:  389.

 6 MR. BOIES:   431.

 7 THE COURT:  431.

 8 MR. BOIES:   433, 438, 618, 619, 1002, 1044, 1050,

 9 1051, 1060.  And I would offer those exhibits, an d Exhibit

10 3443.

11 THE COURT:  3443.  You're representing that all of

12 them are emails to or from Mr. Rubin while he was  at Google?

13 MR. BOIES:   Yes, your Honor.  They include some other

14 emails as well in many cases, but they are --

15 THE COURT:  All right.  All of those are received in

16 evidence.  If it turns out that that is untrue, t hen we'll

17 revisit those.  But to save time, all of those ar e in evidence.

18 (Trial Exhibits, 273, 382, 389, 431, 433, 438, 61 8, 

19 619, 1002, 1044, 1050, 1051, 1060 and 3443 receiv ed 

20 in evidence) 

21 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.

22 BY MR. BOIES:  

23 Q. Now, let me show the witness Exhibit 1061.  This is  not an

24 email, at least as I can tell, to or from you, bu t it attaches

25 a presentation that you participated in preparing , is that
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 1 correct?

 2 A. Let me review it, please.

 3 (Brief pause.) 

 4 A. It appears to be a draft presentation.  It's unclea r from

 5 the date in the email whether I participated in c reating it or

 6 whether it was later presented for my review afte r the draft

 7 was created.

 8 THE COURT:  Is your name on there?

 9 THE WITNESS:  It's on the title page, but I --

10 THE COURT:  1061 is received in evidence.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   1061 is also subject to my 403

12 objection.

13 THE COURT:  Yes, noted.  Overruled.

14 (Trial Exhibit 1061 received 

15  in evidence) 

16 THE COURT:  Next document.

17 MR. BOIES:   I think those are the ones, your Honor.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  You can return to the lectern and

19 resume your examination.

20 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.

21 BY MR. BOIES:  

22 Q. Mr. Rubin, we were talking about clean room

23 implementations yesterday afternoon.  Do you reca ll that

24 generally?

25 A. I don't recall specifically talking about clean roo m
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 1 implementations, but I...

 2 Q. Well, just to refresh your recollection, let's look  at

 3 Trial Exhibit 151, Page 9, which is in evidence.

 4 MR. BOIES:   Can we display that?

 5 (Document displayed) 

 6 BY MR. BOIES:  

 7 Q. And this is the July 26, 2005 presentation that you

 8 participated in; do you recall that?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And do you see where it says:

11 "Developing a clean room implementation of a

12 JVM."  

13 Do you see that?

14 A. Yes, I see that.

15 Q. And that was a Java virtual machine, correct?

16 A. Yes, that's correct.

17 MR. BOIES:   And then if we could display Trial

18 Exhibit 12?

19 (Document displayed)                                      

20 BY MR. BOIES:  

21 Q. And this was, in part, an email that you had writte n,

22 correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And if you look at the paragraph I'm highlighting:  

25 "I think a clean room implementation is
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 1 unlikely because of the team's prior

 2 knowledge."

 3 Do you see that?

 4 A. Yes, I do.

 5 Q. And do you recall talking about that yesterday?

 6 A. Yes, I do.

 7 Q. Does that refresh your recollection generally about  the

 8 subject we were talking about?

 9 A. Yes.  Thank you.

10 Q. Okay.  Now, let me ask you to look at Exhibit 147 t hat I

11 believe is in evidence.

12 MR. BOIES:   Don't display it to the jury yet.

13 (Brief pause.) 

14 MR. BOIES:   147 is in evidence.

15 (Document displayed) 

16 BY MR. BOIES:  

17 Q. And this is a document that includes an email that you

18 wrote and then a response to that, is that correc t?

19 A. Yes.  I don't -- yes.  I see the partial email that  I

20 wrote and then the response.

21 Q. Where it says "Andy Rubin wrote:"  Do you see that?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And then if you go down to the bottom, a little far ther

24 down.  Right at the bottom it says, "Andy Rubin w rote:"  Do you

25 see that?
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 1 A. Yes, I do.

 2 Q. You say:

 3 "Actually it's a clean room implementation

 4 we're buying.  Anyone with specific knowledge

 5 (especially those from Sun) are tainted and

 6 would be bad."

 7 Do you see that?

 8 A. Yes, I do.

 9 Q. And then you say:

10 "I interviewed Lars and think he's great, but

11 sadly not for this project."

12 Do you see that?

13 A. Yes, I do.

14 Q. Who were you referring to in terms of "Lars"?

15 A. I'm not sure if it was a then-Google employee or a

16 potential hire.  His name was Lars Bock.

17 Q. And he was great, but not for this project because he had

18 too much knowledge about Sun and its products; co rrect, sir?

19 A. Specific knowledge about Java while he worked at Su n.

20 Q. Yes.  And then you say:

21 "We were in discussions for eight months with

22 Sun, walked away, and must prove that our

23 internal effort is clean."

24 Do you see that?

25 A. Yes, I do.
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 1 Q. And that's what you wrote in July of 2006, correct?

 2 A. Yes, it is.

 3 Q. Let me turn to the subject of fragmentation.

 4 And you're familiar with the term "fragmentation; "

 5 are you not, sir?

 6 A. Umm, could you help me define it, please?

 7 Q. Suppose we look at Trial Exhibit 7, which is in evi dence

 8 and which we can display.

 9 (Document displayed)                                     

10 Q. And if you go down to the bottom of the page, you'r e

11 writing here on October 11th, 2005, correct, sir?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And you're writing to Mr. Page, correct?

14 A. That's correct.

15 Q. One of the founders of Google and one of the top th ree

16 officers of Google, right?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. One of the top two shareholders of Google, correct?

19 A. I believe so.

20 Q. All right.  And what you say to him is:

21 "My proposal is that we take a license that

22 specifically grants the right for us to Open

23 Source our product.  We'll pay Sun for the

24 license and the TCK.  Before we release our

25 product to the open source community we will
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 1 make sure our JVM passes all TCK

 2 certification tests so that we don't create

 3 fragmentation."

 4 Do you see that?

 5 A. Yes, I do.

 6 Q. And you knew what "fragmentation" meant when you wr ote

 7 this email; did you not, sir?

 8 A. I used my definition of "fragmentation," yes.

 9 Q. And "fragmentation" here, as you are using it, is

10 something that you know Sun does not want to crea te; correct,

11 sir?

12 A. I'm unclear if my definition of "fragmentation" is the

13 same as Sun's.

14 Q. You're unclear about that?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Let's go to Trial Exhibit 125, which is also in evi dence.

17 MR. BOIES:   And if we go down to the bottom?  Maybe

18 you can highlight where the "fragmentation" appea rs in here.

19 (Document displayed)                                     

20 MR. BOIES:   Wait a minute.  That's not at the bottom.

21 I can't find it.

22 Oh, here we are.  Yes.

23 BY MR. BOIES:  

24 Q. Do you see down here where it says:

25 "If we don't show strong efforts toward
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 1 avoiding fragmentation we are also going to

 2 have much more trouble with Sun."

 3 A. Yes.  I see that.

 4 Q. Now, does that refresh your recollection that you k new

 5 that your definition of "fragmentation" was somet hing that Sun

 6 did not want?

 7 A. Sorry.  I'm -- I don't think I wrote this email.

 8 Q. You didn't have any disagreement with this email; d id you,

 9 sir?

10 A. Again, I was unclear that we were all talking about  the

11 same definition of fragmentation.

12 Q. That's not what you said at the time, right?  You

13 responded to this email, right?

14 A. I don't know.  Can you show me -- I only have a big ,

15 magnified view of it.

16 Q. This is an email from Mr. Tim Lindholm to you, corr ect?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Now, did you ever disagree with what Mr. Lindholm s aid?

19 A. I don't recall.

20 Q. You don't recall.

21 All right.  Sir, let me go to Trial Exhibit 9.

22 (Document displayed) 

23 Q. Now, this is another email from Mr. Lindholm to you  and

24 some other people, correct?  

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. And he's talking again about fragmentation, correct ?

 2 Right here in the second paragraph.

 3   "Alan" --

 4 And Alan is somebody from Sun, correct, sir?

 5 A. Yes.  I believe he's referring to Alan Brenner.

 6 Q. Right.

 7 "Alan from Sun presumably wants this both for

 8 tactical reasons (preserve TCK and

 9 implementation revenue, defend franchise

10 against fragmentation which is his main

11 threat for long-term erosion)."

12 Do you see that?

13 A. Yes, I do.

14 Q. Now, sir, you knew in October of 2005 that Sun want ed to

15 avoid fragmentation in exactly the sense that Mr.  Lindholm is

16 writing to you about, correct?

17 A. Again, I'm unclear that Sun and Mr. Lindholm and my self

18 share the same definition of "fragmentation."

19 Q. Did you ever try to find out?

20 A. What Mr. Lindholm's definition was?  What Sun's def inition

21 was?

22 Q. Here you're testifying that you don't know what -- whether

23 your definition of "fragmentation" is the same as  Mr.

24 Lindholm's, is the same as Sun.  That's what you' re testifying

25 to, here, right?
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 1 A. Yes.  And I'm unclear whether everybody is talking about

 2 the same thing.

 3 Q. Did you ever say to anybody back then that you were

 4 unclear what "fragmentation" meant?

 5 A. I don't recall saying that, no.

 6 Q. Did you ever ask, saying, "It's unclear to me what you

 7 mean by 'fragmentation'?  What do you mean?"  

 8 Did you ever can that?

 9 A. No I didn't, not that I remember.

10 Q. And the reason you didn't ask that is because you k new

11 perfectly well what "fragmentation" meant; isn't that so, sir?

12 A. I had my own definition of what I thought "fragment ation"

13 meant, yes.

14 Q. And you didn't have any reason to think that anybod y else

15 had a different definition.  Everybody knew what

16 "fragmentation" meant in the industry, right?

17 A. It's hard for me to say what other people were thin king.

18 Q. But you knew that "fragmentation" in connection wit h Java

19 was something that people used in the industry ov er and over

20 again; right, sir?

21 A. I know that Sun had a definition of "fragmentation"  that

22 they used over and over again.

23 Q. And you didn't have any reason to believe that that  was

24 any different than your definition of "fragmentat ion;" did you,

25 sir?
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 1 A. I don't know how to answer that based on the data t hat

 2 you've given me.  I didn't know what their defini tion was

 3 specifically and I couldn't relate it to my defin ition.

 4 Q. And you never tried to find out, right?

 5 A. That's right.

 6 THE COURT:  Well, counsel asked you a different

 7 question.  He said:  Did you back then have any r eason to

 8 believe that those other people understood the te rm in a

 9 different way than you understood it then?

10 So you can tell us now whether back then you, in

11 fact, had in mind some reason for why there might  be a

12 difference.  So you could tell us what that reaso n -- what

13 reason it might be that there could be a differen ce.

14 THE WITNESS:  There was, you know, some caution on my

15 side in using the term "fragmentation," because I  think by

16 Sun's definition if I look -- was looking at them  from an

17 outsider and not as part of their company, I thin k they also

18 have fragmentation, so -- in my definition of the  word

19 "fragmentation," which is compatibility.

20 So they had many different versions of Java and o ne

21 program couldn't run on all the different version s of Java.  So

22 that's my definition of "fragmentation," is it's incompatible

23 implementations of Java.

24 THE COURT:  All right.  Go ahead, Mr. Boies.

25
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 1 BY MR. BOIES:  

 2 Q. Let me go next to Exhibit 21, which is in evidence.

 3 (Document displayed) 

 4 Q. Now, this is an email first from Dan Bornstein to y ou and

 5 then a reply from you; correct, sir?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. April 13th, 2006; correct, sir?

 8 A. Yes.  That was the date of my reply.

 9 Q. Now, it's also the date of Mr. Bornstein's email, c orrect?

10 A. Yes.  Apparently, it is.

11 Q. And Mr. Bornstein writes you and he says:

12 "Java has very little fragmentation."

13 Do you see that?

14 A. Umm, it's -- can we go back to the broad email so I  can

15 try to understand the thread?

16 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, could the witness be

17 handed the actual exhibits?

18 MR. BOIES:   Absolutely.  Absolutely.

19 THE COURT:  It's best to show the witness the

20 exhibit.

21 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, your Honor?

22  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

23   to the witness.) 

24 THE COURT:  Okay.  Can you reask the question,

25 please?
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 1 BY MR. BOIES:  

 2 Q. Yes.  You see where Mr. Bornstein says to you:

 3 "Java has very little fragmentation."

 4 A. I'm not clear.  So there's two indentations in the reply.

 5 So it, apparently, has two people replying to it that were not

 6 me.  So it's unclear whether Mr. Bornstein said t hat or maybe

 7 Horowitz, who was also cc'd on the message.

 8 Do you see where the indentation is?  There's one

 9 deep and then there's two deep.

10 Q. Do you see where it says:

11 "On April 13th, 2006 at 3:35 p.m. Dan

12 Bornstein wrote."

13 A. Yeah.  And then it includes --

14 Q. And then you see one, two, three, lines down.  Noth ing in

15 between.  Just three lines down.  Do you see that ?

16 A. I'm just trying to be precise, Mr. Boies.

17 Q. I am too, sir.  Do you see --

18 A. From this email it's apparent that Dan Bornstein wa s

19 including a reply from somebody else in that para graph with the

20 two indentations, and then his actual reply was u nderneath it.

21 That's what it looks like to me.  But, obviously,  I'm not

22 certain.

23 Q. Let me just get your testimony to the jury, all rig ht?

24 You're testifying that you don't know whether the  statement

25 "Java has very little fragmentation" was written by
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 1 Mr. Bornstein?

 2 A. That's correct.

 3 Q. And you think it may have been written by Mr. Horow itz?

 4 A. It's unclear who it was written by.

 5 Q. You would agree that it's written, in your interpre tation,

 6 by one of those two people, correct?

 7 A. Most likely.

 8 Q. Well, there isn't anybody else listed here, is ther e?

 9 A. It could have been a forwarded email.  I mean, ther e's

10 lots of ways you can copy and paste stuff in here .  It's --

11 it's just unclear for me and I want to be precise  in responding

12 to your questions.

13 Q. You don't think anybody cut and pasted something in  here

14 without revealing their name; do you, sir, really ?

15 A. It, apparently, is a thread that has multiple respo nses

16 and not all the responses are on this exhibit.

17 Q. You say not all the responses are here?  Is that wh at you

18 just said?

19 A. Not all the headers.  I apologize.  Not all the hea ders.

20 The responses are here.  That's what it appears t o me.  

21 Q. But it shows you three people, right?  You, Bornste in and

22 Horowitz, right?

23 A. The main header where this thread kind of terminate s is

24 the header on the top and that shows three recipi ents.

25 Q. And there's not another person listed here?
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 1 A. Not on the main header.

 2 Q. And you have no -- have any reason to believe that there

 3 is any other header missing; do you, sir?

 4 A. I do actually.

 5 Q. You do?

 6 A. I'm saying there are two indentations and there's o nly one

 7 header in the response, and that signals to me th at there's

 8 actually a missing header.

 9 Q. Sir, there are three people in this, right?

10 I don't want to spend too much time on this, but this

11 ought to be simpler than it is.  There are three people listed

12 here, right?

13 A. On the main header, yes, there are.

14 Q. And as you read it, three sets of comments here, ri ght?

15 One indentation, two indentation and yours that h as no

16 indentations, right?

17 A. That's correct.

18 Q. So three responses, three people listed; right?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. And does that lead you to conclude that what's writ ten

21 here is by one of those three people?

22 A. I couldn't determine that.  Here is an example of t hat.

23 Do you see at the bottom where it says, "I have c c'd the

24 Android team"?

25 Q. Yes.
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 1 A. Where is that on the main header?  Where the Androi d team

 2 in cc on the main header?

 3 Q. It says right at the bottom, "I have cc'd the Andro id

 4 team."  Do you see that, Mr. Rubin?

 5 A. That means there's four and many more because the A ndroid

 6 team --

 7 Q. It says right here -- 

 8 A. And as --

 9 Q. Okay.  Say cc'd.  You know that means sent them a c opy,

10 right?

11 A. As Steve Horowitz --

12 Q. Please, please.  Just listen to the question.  You know

13 that means they sent them a copy, right?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Okay.  That does not mean that they are writing som ething,

16 correct?

17 A. It means that they addressed this email to somebody  that's

18 not on the header.

19 Q. It was sent to them, not that the person, the Andro id

20 team, wrote something; correct, sir?  You know th at, don't you?

21 A. I'm just --

22 Q. Just "yes" or "no."

23 A. I just don't understand the question.  I'm sorry.

24 Q. Okay.  If you don't understand that question, I'll move

25 on.
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 1 Somebody at Google wrote:

 2 "Java has very little fragmentation."  

 3 Right?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. Okay.  And you got a copy of this, right?

 6 A. Yes, I did.

 7 Q. And you responded to it, right?

 8 A. Yes, I did.

 9 Q. And, in fact, you asked what certain terms meant, c orrect?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. You didn't ask what "fragmentation" meant; did you,  sir?

12 A. That's correct.

13 Q. Let me ask you to look next at Trial Exhibit 180.

14 (Document displayed) 

15 Q. Now, this is, again, an email thread, as you call i t,

16 correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And this is from November of 2007; in particular, N ovember

19 14th, 2007, correct?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And if you look down sort of in the middle of the p age

22 where it says.

23 "On November 14, 2007 at 11:27 a.m. Barry

24 Schnit wrote:"

25 Do you see that?
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 1 A. Yes, I do.

 2 Q. And that's an email to you; correct, sir?

 3 A. Apparently responding to me, yes.

 4 Q. And this is an email that discusses certain stateme nts

 5 that Sun was making, correct?

 6 A. I believe it was an email about -- with a PR team a bout

 7 our launch messaging.

 8 Q. Let me be sure you've got Trial Exhibit 180 up ther e.

 9  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

10   to the witness.) 

11 A. Thank you.  I need bifocals.

12 Q. I do, too.

13 Now, if you go on to the second page, do you see the

14 email that went from Steven Shankland to Barry Sc hnit?

15 A. Yes, I do.  

16 Q. Also on November 14, correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And it's referring to statements that Mr. Green, Su n's

19 executive vice-president of software, had just sa id; certain

20 statements he had made, correct?

21 A. Yes.  Mr. Shankland is a reporter that's quoting

22 Mr. Green.

23 Q. And just to put things in context.  Shortly before

24 November 14th of 2007 Google had made an announce ment, correct?

25 A. That's correct.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page50 of 250



RUBIN - DIRECT  EXAMINATION/ BOIES   1447

 1 Q. Announcement of Android, correct?

 2 A. An announcement of the existing -- existence of the

 3 Android project, yes.

 4 Q. And after that various people at Sun made various

 5 comments, correct?

 6 A. I don't know.  I suppose so, yes.

 7 Q. Do you remember any of those comments?

 8 A. Vaguely.

 9 Q. Vaguely.  Do you remember these comments by Mr. Gre en?

10 A. No.  I didn't recall that comment until I saw this

11 exhibit.

12 Q. And what Mr. Green says -- Mr. Green of Sun says on  or

13 about November 14th, 2007 is, quote:  

14 "We're really interested in working with

15 Google to make sure developers don't end up

16 with a fractured environment."

17 Do you see that?

18 A. I see that, yes.

19 Q. And the "fractured environment" that's being referr ed to

20 there is Java, correct?

21 A. It's -- Java -- I mean, it's hard to -- Java the

22 programming language, or...

23 Q. Sir, just look at the immediately preceding sentenc e:

24 "Rich Green, Sun's executive vice-president

25 of software, just said at Oracle OpenWorld

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page51 of 250



RUBIN - DIRECT  EXAMINATION/ BOIES   1448

 1 news conference that he's concerned about

 2 Google's Java work on Android."

 3 Do you see that?

 4 A. Yes, I do.

 5 Q. Then it says:

 6 "We're really interested in working with

 7 Google to make sure that developers don't end

 8 up with a fractured environment."

 9 Do you see that?

10 A. Yes, I do.

11 Q. And you saw that at the time in November of 2007; c orrect,

12 sir?

13 A. I have a faint recollection of this, yes.

14 Q. And you knew what they were talking about in terms of

15 "fractured environment;" correct, sir?

16 A. No, I didn't understand their definition of "fractu red."

17 Q. Did you ever ask anybody?

18 A. No.

19 Q. Now, when Mr. Schnit from Google wrote to you about

20 this -- and he was suggesting a revised statement  about Google

21 working to help solve fragmentation; correct, sir ?  On the

22 first page.

23 (Document displayed) 

24 Q. Do you see where he's talking about -- he's suggest ing a

25 revised statement about helping solving fragmenta tion?
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 1 A. Yes, he's proposing a revised statement there.

 2 Q. And is your testimony you didn't know what he was t alking

 3 about in terms of "fragmentation" either?

 4 A. Umm, I think -- I don't know what his -- he was thi nking

 5 as his definition of "fragmentation."  That would  be accurate,

 6 that's correct.

 7 Q. And you never asked him, is your testimony?

 8 A. That's correct.

 9 Q. Even though -- is your testimony today that you don 't know

10 whether people were talking about fragmentation i n the same

11 sense, you knew that none of you thought fragment ation was a

12 good idea; fair?

13 A. Sounds like a bad word.

14 Q. Yes.

15 MR. BOIES:   No more questions, your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  All right.

17 MR. VAN NEST:   And, your Honor, we will reserve our

18 questioning of Mr. Rubin til our case begins just  a little bit

19 later this morning.  

20 We agree counsel can call the next witness.

21 THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  Say what?

22 MR. VAN NEST:   Counsel can call their next witness.

23 We will reserve our questions until our case begi ns, which will

24 be just a little bit later this morning.

25 And as I understand it, Oracle has one more witne ss
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 1 to call, and we'll get him in the courtroom as qu ickly as we

 2 can.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  I think the jury understands

 4 that.  That's fine.  We will hear more from this witness in due

 5 course, but not right now.

 6 So, Mr. Rubin, you may step down.  Thank you.  Ha ve a

 7 good day.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, just a moment before you

 9 leave, Mr. Rubin?  

10 (Discussion held off the record 

11  amongst defense counsel.) 

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Can we ask -- we're not certain

13 whether the next witness is in the building, but we think he

14 is.  Can we pause for a moment and ascertain that , your Honor?

15 THE COURT:  Does that make any difference to whether

16 Mr. Rubin stays?

17 MR. VAN NEST:   I guess not.  I guess not.  But there

18 might be a short delay while we get him in the co urtroom.

19 THE COURT:  Mr. Rubin, go ahead.  I think they want

20 you to step down.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   We do.

22 THE COURT:  Have a good day.

23 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm sorry, your Honor.  

24 (Witness steps down.) 

25 THE COURT:  Your next witness will be?
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 1 MR. BOIES:   Mr. Eric Schmidt, your Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's bring him in.

 3 And while we're ascertaining his whereabouts, Daw n,

 4 would you please hand out to the jury -- we can u se the time,

 5 put the time to good use -- this one-page documen t that the

 6 lawyers have come up with.

 7 We're going to hand something -- you know how I'v e

 8 given you these little one-page, one-page guides,  the timeline

 9 and so forth?  We're going to give you another on e that may be

10 of use to you, and you can use it to make notes o n or however

11 you want to use this.  This is a helpful guide to  you.

12 The lawyers have both -- on both sides have appro ved

13 this document.  This is a list of the witnesses a nd their

14 positions in this first phase, and then on the ba ck side I've

15 asked them to correctly spell their names so that  you'll have

16 the cast of characters of the lawyers.

17 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

18  to the jury.) 

19 THE COURT:  So, for example, some of the names are

20 straightforward.  You probably could guess at how  they are

21 spelled, but other names are not so clear cut, an d I wanted you

22 to have the correct spellings of the lawyers' nam es.

23 So you can use this as you wish or not.  It's

24 completely up to you.  You know, you can fold it over like this

25 (indicating) and stick it in the back of your ste no pad in the
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 1 same way that you probably have done the others.

 2 All right.  Is the witness now here and ready to go?

 3 MR. VAN NEST:   I don't believe he is, your Honor.

 4 We're trying to ascertain where he is.  He was ex pected here at

 5 8:30.  I don't know if traffic was delayed or wha t.  I

 6 apologize and we'll try to ascertain where he is.

 7 THE COURT:  So is there any other evidence that

 8 Oracle wishes to be putting on while we're waitin g?

 9 MR. BOIES:   No, your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  How about stipulations?  Interrogatory

11 answers or something?

12 MR. BOIES:   I think we've offered those, your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  You've done it all.

14 Well, do you have any word as to...

15 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm trying to get that right now.  I'm

16 trying to find out.

17 MR. BOIES:   Can I suggest, your Honor, that since

18 they are going to examine Mr. Rubin, that they ca n put Mr.

19 Rubin on the stand and they can start their exami nation.

20 Indeed, we can put Mr. Schmidt off until they fin ish

21 their examination, if they don't want to interrup t it, rather

22 than sit here and wait.

23 THE COURT:  We're going to do this.  We're going to

24 take our 15-minute break early today.  We'll take  a 15-minute

25 break at this time.
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 1 Please remember the admonition.  Then we'll sort out

 2 this whereabouts problem while everyone is having  some coffee

 3 in the jury room.

 4 Thank you.

 5 THE CLERK:   All rise.

 6 (Jury exits courtroom at 8:38 a.m.) 

 7 THE COURT:  Okay.  Be seated, please.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I understand he will be

 9 here in five minutes.

10 THE COURT:  Okay.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   I apologize.

12 THE COURT:  Well, it's better to take the break.

13 Any issues for the Court?

14 MR. JACOBS:   No, your Honor.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   None here, your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  All right.  We'll take our break, too.

17 (Whereupon there was a recess in the proceedings 

18  from 8:39 a.m. until 8:56 a.m.)  

19 THE COURT:  Please be seated.  You must be Mr. Eric

20 Schmidt.

21 THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

22 THE COURT:  Welcome.  Are we ready to go?

23 MR. BOIES:   Yes, Your Honor.

24 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes, Your Honor.

25 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's bring in our jury.
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 1 (Jury enters at 8:58 a.m.) 

 2 THE COURT:  Okay.  Welcome back.  Please, be seated.

 3 Ready over there?

 4 Our next witness will be?

 5 MR. BOIES:   Mr. Schmidt, Your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Schmidt, please stand and

 7 raise your right hand.

 8 ERIC SCHMIDT,  

 9 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first 

10 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows :   

11 THE WITNESS:  I do.

12 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Please be seated.  And you

13 need to sit about this close to the microphone.  Okay.

14 THE WITNESS:  Good?

15 THE COURT:  Very good.  Please, continue.

16 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, Your Honor.

17                        DIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. BOIES:   

19 Q. Good morning, Mr. Schmidt.

20 A. Yes, Mr. Boies.

21 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, Your Honor?

22 THE COURT:  You may.

23 BY MR. BOIES:   

24 Q. I would like to hand you Trial Exhibit No. 6, that is

25 already in evidence.  And this is a presentation that was made
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 1 in approximately August of 2005, with respect to project

 2 Android; correct, sir?

 3 A. I see that.

 4 Q. And this was made to the GPS, correct?

 5 A. That is correct.

 6 Q. And that's the top executives of Google, correct?

 7 A. It's actually a group that does Google product stra tegy,

 8 which would include the top executives at Google.

 9 Q. And you were present when this presentation was mad e,

10 correct, sir?

11 A. I believe so.

12 Q. And let me ask you to look at page 8 of the exhibit .  It's

13 page 5 of the presentation.

14 (Document displayed.) 

15 A. I have it.

16 Q. And it says there that:  

17 "Google benefits by having more control of

18 the user experience and built-in Google

19 apps."

20 Do you see that?

21 A. I do.

22 Q. And that's how Google benefits, at least in part, f rom the

23 Android project, correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And when the presentation refers to "built-in Googl e
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 1 apps," what did you understand that to mean?

 2 A. I did not write this, but my interpretation would b e that

 3 these are applications that use Google services t hat are part

 4 of Android.

 5 Q. And the more of those Google apps that are out ther e, the

 6 more advertising revenue Google is likely to earn .  Fair?

 7 A. Uhm, we make our advertising from search.  So it ma y or

 8 may not cause more advertising revenue.  It depen ds on whether

 9 it drives search or not.

10 Q. Well, you certainly expected Android to result in m ore

11 search advertising revenue; did you not, sir?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And, in fact, you have concluded that it does, corr ect?

14 A. Yes.  Absolutely.

15 Q. And, in fact, I think you -- you said that the reve nue

16 that you received as a result of the additional s earch revenue

17 generated by Android paid for Android and, I thin k you said,

18 and a whole bunch more.  Do you recall that?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Now, let me go to the next page.  And there are a s eries

21 of bullet points here.  The first point is, "Disr upt the closed

22 and proprietary nature of the two dominant indust ry players:

23 MSFT ..." which stands for Microsoft, correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. "... and Symbian."  Which was an operating system u sed by
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 1 Nokia, correct?

 2 A. That is correct.

 3 Q. And you understood this was being proposed as one o f the

 4 reasons why Android would be desirable, correct?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. And at the bottom it also says:  

 7 "Eventually build a community force around

 8 Google handset APIs and applications."

 9 Do you see that?

10 A. I do.

11 Q. And that was viewed as another advantage of Android ,

12 correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And when you referred to the Google handset APIs, t hose

15 would be the APIs that were in Android, correct?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Let me ask you to turn now, to page 24 of this

18 presentation.  It's page 24 of the exhibit.  It's  the last --

19 essentially, last page of the presentation.  Wher e it says: 

20 "Plan:  Beat Microsoft and Symbian to volume

21 by offering an open source handset solution."

22 Do you see that?

23 A. I do.

24 Q. And that was a goal that Google had, correct?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. And one of the reasons that you were interested in having

 2 Android proceed as fast as it could was you wante d to beat

 3 Microsoft and Symbian to volume, correct?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. And by beating Microsoft and Symbian to volume, you  mean

 6 getting your handset out there with a lot of user s before they

 7 had their handsets out there with a lot of user; is that fair?

 8 A. Yes.  Volume means more users, so serving more cust omers.

 9 Q. And going back to the question of search, your anal ysis or

10 the analysis of Google was that people who use An droid search

11 more than people who do not use Android, correct?

12 A. Yes.  The vast majority of Google's revenue at the time

13 and today comes from search revenue.  And so the primary reason

14 to have something like Android is that people wil l do more

15 searches, and then we'll get more money as a resu lt.  And

16 that's how we, essentially, pay for the strategy of Android.

17 Q. And not only are there more searches and there are more

18 ads, but those ads are more lucrative because you  share less of

19 the revenue; is that fair?

20 A. Uhm, it depends on who our partner is, but in princ iple we

21 could end up with a greater share of the revenue on each

22 handset, as well.

23 Q. And, indeed, that was what you projected, correct, sir?

24 A. That was certainly our goal.

25 Q. And after it had been announced and after it had be en out
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 1 for a while, in October of 2010, that's what you believed was

 2 happening, correct, sir?

 3 A. Yes, that's correct.

 4 Q. Let me ask you to look, next, at Exhibit 158.

 5 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, Your Honor?

 6 THE COURT:  You may.

 7 BY MR. BOIES:   

 8 Q. Now, Exhibit 158 is an exhibit that you recognize,

 9 correct, sir?

10 A. I do not particularly.  Please proceed.

11 Q. I'm sorry?

12 A. I have 158 in front of me.

13 Q. And is that a document that you've seen before?

14 A. Uhm, probably.  I don't really remember it.

15 Q. That's a -- that's a presentation on Android, corre ct,

16 sir?

17 A. It is.

18 Q. And is that a presentation that you saw at about th e time

19 it was produced?

20 A. Again, I have no specific recollection of it, but t here

21 were a number.  And this looks pretty much like w hat I would

22 have seen.

23 Q. And I want you to hold that document, but I also wa nt to

24 put in front of you another related document, whi ch is Exhibit

25 251.
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 1 Now, this is a document that I don't have any rea son

 2 to believe that you personally saw at the time.  But it relates

 3 to the same subject matter, and I just would like  to ask you

 4 whether that is a document that you have seen bef ore?

 5 A. I have not seen this before.

 6 Q. Okay.  Then let me go back to 158.

 7 Is this a presentation that was made by Mr. Rubin ?

 8 A. Again, I don't -- I don't know the details of where  this

 9 presentation came from, but it appears to me to b e an Andy

10 Rubin presentation.

11 Q. Let me see if I can show you Exhibit 151.

12 A. Okay.

13 Q. This is a document you've seen before; is that corr ect?

14 A. Uhm, yes.

15 MR. BOIES:   If we can display 151.

16 (Document displayed.) 

17 BY MR. BOIES:   

18 Q. These are GPS notes.  That is, these are notes from  a GPS

19 presentation, correct, sir?

20 A. Yes.  These would be notes taken during the meeting  by

21 some note taker.

22 Q. And just to be clear, this is not the same GPS

23 presentation that we looked at before?

24 A. Okay.  It appears to be dated 2007.

25 Q. Right.  And this is one that you were present at, c orrect,
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 1 sir?

 2 A. It says I was, yes.

 3 Q. And I want to go down to the end of the presentatio n.  All

 4 right.  Next page.

 5 A. Okay.

 6 Q. Do you see right at the very next to the last page,  at the

 7 bottom of the page, where there's a statement tha t's attributed

 8 to Mr. Rubin?

 9 A. I do.

10 Q. And he says there that they're still shopping for

11 libraries and JVMs.  Do you see that?

12 A. I do.

13 Q. And "libraries" referred to class libraries; is tha t

14 correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And "JVMs" referred to Java virtual machines?  

17 A. Correct, yes.

18 Q. And this has to do with the Android project, correc t?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. And then at the end it says, "This is still a hotsp ot."

21 A. Uh-huh.

22 Q. What did you understand Mr. Rubin to be referring t o

23 there?

24 A. I don't recognize the term "hotspot," but I would r ead

25 this as they're still working on a solution as to  how to
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 1 implement the libraries and the JVM.

 2 Q. Did there come a time -- even if you don't remember  that

 3 it was exactly in early 2007 -- but do you recall  there came a

 4 time when not having class libraries and not havi ng a JVM for

 5 Android was slowing Android down?

 6 A. I don't remember the specific, but you need a JVM a nd

 7 class libraries in order to have one.  So, of cou rse, you would

 8 have to have a solution to that.

 9 Q. And do you recall that there was a time not only he re but

10 thereafter where you did not have those class lib raries and

11 JVMs?

12 A. Well, of course, because we ultimately built them

13 ourselves or used -- used other sources.  

14 Q. Now, when you said "use other sources," are you ref erring

15 to Noser?

16 A. I'm referring to the fact that the team looked -- l ooked

17 to try to figure out what the best JVM solutions were; and,

18 ultimately, used some Apache software to do so.

19 Q. Now, you mentioned Apache software.  Was that Apach e

20 software that related to SE?

21 A. I would have to let the technical people describe e xactly

22 where the source of the stuff was from.

23 Q. Did you understand that the Apache software that yo u used,

24 that Google used, was software that had not been authorized for

25 mobile devices?
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 1 A. I did not know the technical details of the specifi c

 2 software solution that was ultimately used.

 3 Q. But without knowing the technical details did you k now, at

 4 the layman's level that I'm talking about now, th at the Apache

 5 software that you were relying on for Android was  not

 6 authorized to be used for mobile devices?

 7 A. Uhm, I did not know any of the details of the licen sing of

 8 that arrangement, aside from that it was availabl e to us.

 9 Q. Did you ever investigate whether the Apache softwar e that

10 you were using was authorized to be used for mobi le devices?

11 A. I did not personally.

12 Q. Do you know if anyone at Google did?

13 A. Uhm, I do not know the details of that.

14 Q. Uhm, let me ask you to look at Trial Exhibit 15.

15 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, Your Honor?

16 THE COURT:  Yes.

17 BY MR. BOIES:   

18 Q. And this is a presentation to what is referred to a s an

19 EMG.  Do you see that?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And an EMG stands for what, sir?

22 A. The executive management group.  It was the senior

23 executives of the company.  I was a member.

24 Q. And if you go to page 7 of the exhibit, this is tal king

25 about a possible deal between Google and Sun.  Is  that correct?
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 1 A. Uhm, that's correct.

 2 Q. And it says, "Why do the deal?"  Do you see that?

 3 A. I see.

 4 Q. And that's referring to why do the deal with Sun, c orrect,

 5 sir?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And it says the first reason is "Critical to our op en

 8 source handset strategy."  Do you see that?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And the second says, "Dramatically accelerates our

11 schedule."  Do you see that?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And when this talks about -- because you didn't mak e this

14 presentation, correct?

15 A. That's right.  I did not write this.

16 Q. It was a presentation that was made to you, correct ?

17 A. That is correct.

18 Q. And when this presentation was made to you, did you

19 understand that what the presenter was saying was  doing the

20 deal with Sun would dramatically accelerate the s chedule for

21 development of Android?

22 A. That was their belief.

23 Q. Now, let me show you a document that has been offer ed as

24 Trial Exhibit 17.  I'm sorry.  Let me go to Trial  Exhibit 10

25 first.
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 1 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, Your Honor?

 2 THE COURT:  You may.

 3 BY MR. BOIES:   

 4 Q. Now, this is a document that is in evidence.  I do not

 5 have any reason to believe that you have personal ly seen it

 6 before, but I want to ask you, first, have you se en this

 7 document before?

 8 A. Uhm, I have not.

 9 Q. I now want to ask you about some statements in here .  And

10 the second paragraph -- this is by Mr. Lindholm.  It says,

11 "What we've actually been asked to do by Larry an d Sergey..."

12 and that's Larry Page and Sergey Brin, the two fo unders of

13 Google, correct?

14 A. That's correct.

15 Q. "What we've actually been asked to do by Larry and Sergey

16 is investigate what technical alternatives exist to Java for

17 Android and Chrome."

18 Do you see that?

19 A. Uh-huh.

20 Q. This is dated August 6, 2010.

21 Were you aware in or about August of 2010 that La rry

22 and Sergey had asked Mr. Lindholm to do this?

23 A. I was aware at the time that we were thinking about  what

24 to do.  I think this e-mail is a -- sort of a res ponse to that

25 initiative.  I didn't know the specifics here.
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 1 Q. Okay.  Did -- let me just ask, the next sentence sa ys,

 2 "We've been over a bunch of these and think they all suck."

 3 Did you ever get reported to you that Mr. Lindhol m

 4 had reached that conclusion?

 5 A. No.

 6 Q. The next sentence says, "We conclude that we need t o

 7 negotiate a license for Java under the terms we n eed."

 8 Do you see that?

 9 A. I do.

10 Q. And did you ever get reported to you that Mr. Lindh olm

11 concluded that?

12 A. It was not reported to me.

13 Q. Now, at the first presentation that you received ab out

14 Android, in July of 2005, you were told by the pe ople making

15 that presentation that Google was required to tak e a license

16 from Sun, correct?

17 A. Uhm, can you tell me which exhibit you're referring  to?

18 Q. Sure.

19 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, Your Honor?

20 THE COURT:  You may.

21 BY MR. BOIES:   

22 Q. This is Trial Exhibit 1.  And this was a presentati on that

23 was made July 26, 2005.  Do you see that?

24 A. I do.

25 Q. And this was, again, a GPS presentation, correct?
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 1 A. Yes.

 2 Q. And you were at this presentation; were you not, si r?

 3 A. I don't know.  I don't recognize this.

 4 Q. You normally attend GPS presentations; do you not, sir?

 5 A. If I'm in town.  It's perfectly possible on that da te I

 6 was out of town.

 7 Q. And is it your testimony, as you sit here now, you just

 8 don't remember one way or another?

 9 A. Uhm, I don't -- I do not recognize the document, so .

10 Q. Let me ask you to turn to page 9 of the document, w here it

11 talks about current scenario.  And the third line  down says,

12 "Must take license from Sun."

13 Do you see that?

14 A. I do.

15 Q. And the heading of this page is "JAVA."  Do you see  that?

16 A. I do.

17 Q. Even though you don't recall, as you sit here now, whether

18 you saw this presentation, were you told in 2005 that the

19 people responsible for Android believed that Goog le must take a

20 license from Sun for Java?

21 A. Uhm, if I -- I do not recall, but given the way tha t Sun's

22 licensing model works, the statement is not actua lly correct.

23 So there must be something -- I'm not sure who wr ote this

24 document.

25 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, I would move to strike that,
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 1 everything after his responsive answer, as nonres ponsive and

 2 lacking foundation.

 3 THE COURT:  It's not responsive, correct.  That part

 4 will be stricken.

 5 BY MR. BOIES:   

 6 Q. I want to ask you to look at a document that has be en

 7 marked as Trial Exhibit 405.

 8 MR. BOIES:   Is this in evidence?

 9 (Document displayed.) 

10 BY MR. BOIES:   

11 Q. Which is in evidence.

12 I want to ask you to look at this document in the

13 context of what we were talking about a moment ag o as to

14 Apache, and whether or not they had a field of us e restriction.

15 And you told me you had not gotten into the techn ical

16 details, but I want to ask you just about what's in this e-mail

17 here.  This is dated May 30, 2008, from Mr. Lee t o you.  Do you

18 see that?

19 A. I do.

20 Q. And I want to go down to the second paragraph, the -- the

21 third sentence, where it says:

22 "Sun puts field of use restrictions in the

23 Java SE TCK licenses which prohibit Java SE

24 implementations from running on anything but

25 a desktop or server."
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 1 Do you see that?

 2 A. I do.

 3 Q. And that would prevent the Apache Java SE work from  being

 4 used on mobile; is that fair?

 5 A. That's what says, yes.

 6 MR. BOIES:   No more questions, Your Honor.

 7 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 8 THE COURT:  Any examination now?

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, we're going to reserve

10 examination until Mr. Schmidt is called in our ca se, which will

11 be coming up next.

12 THE COURT:  So may Mr. Schmidt step down?

13 MR. VAN NEST:   I think that's up to Mr. Boies.  He

14 may be our first witness.

15 MR. BOIES:   He may step down or stay there.

16 I think I need to formally rest, Your Honor.  And

17 Oracle does rest at this time.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  We've reached a milestone in

19 the case.  In phase one, the plaintiff has rested  its case.

20 All motions under Rule 50 will be deemed to have been

21 made at this point, but we will hear them later.

22 And in order not to detain the jury we will resum e,

23 at this time, with the defense putting on its cas e.

24 So, at this time, you may call your first witness .

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.  Google calls
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 1 Eric Schmidt.

 2 ERIC SCHMIDT,  

 3 called as a witness for the Defendant herein, hav ing been 

 4 previously duly sworn, was examined and testified  as follows:   

 5 THE COURT:  Mr. Schmidt.

 6 MR. VAN NEST:   He's here and warmed up.

 7 (Laughter) 

 8 THE COURT:  Welcome back.

 9 (Laughter) 

10 THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  I'll remind you, you are still under

12 oath.

13 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

14 THE COURT:  You may proceed.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

18 Q. And good morning, Mr. Schmidt.  

19 Would you tell the jury a little bit something ab out

20 your personal background.  Introduce yourself.

21 A. I'm a computer scientist.  University, and a PC fro m

22 Berkeley.  Worked at Sun Microsystems for 14 year s.  Ultimately

23 became the chief technical officer.  Then went to  a company

24 called Novell.  And from Novell joined Google in 2001.

25 Q. And when did you get out of Cal?
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 1 A. Sorry?

 2 Q. When did you graduate from Berkeley?

 3 A. In computer science, Ph.D.

 4 Q. When?

 5 A. 1982.

 6 Q. And after that, where did you go?

 7 A. I went straight to Sun.

 8 Q. Okay.  And tell us a little bit about how long you worked

 9 at Sun.

10 A. I was there for 14 years.  I started off as an engi neering

11 manager.  Was promoted through the ranks.  Ran a set of

12 operating divisions.  And then became chief techn ical officer,

13 which was my last role at the company.

14 And during that period, it's probably relevant to  say

15 that I was the primary executive in charge of Jav a.

16 Q. So would you just tell the jury, what is a chief

17 technology officer, and what responsibilities did  you have in

18 that role at Sun?

19 A. Well, the joke, of course, was that it was the chie f

20 traveling officer or the chief talking officer.

21 But I also did new initiatives.  And the idea was  to

22 try to do new things that were different from the  core

23 businesses of the company.

24 Q. Was Java language developed at Sun while you were t he

25 chief technology officer?
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 1 A. It was.

 2 Q. And what role, if any, did you play in that?

 3 A. Uhm, Java was founded by a couple of engineers led by a

 4 fellow named James Gosling.  An executive in char ge was a

 5 fellow named Wayne Rosing.  

 6 At a certain point, the technology was transferre d

 7 over to me.  And one of the Sun cofounders, Bill Joy, and I,

 8 working with James, drove the strategy that ultim ately made

 9 Java announced, and so forth, in the early '90s.

10 Q. Just tell us -- I know it's a long history, but jus t tell

11 us, briefly, how was the language itself develope d?  Who did

12 that?

13 A. Well, success has many fathers, right?

14 But I think there were a team of three or four

15 people.  The primary architect was James Gosling,  with the

16 technical assistance of Bill Joy, who was the tec hnical founder

17 of Sun.

18 Q. And how long did it take to develop the language, a t least

19 initially?

20 A. I'd say about six years, perhaps '88, '89 to roughl y '93,

21 '94.

22 Computer languages are very hard to develop.  And

23 they occur every decade or two.

24 And Java was more than just a language.  And that 's

25 important to state.  It was a language.  It was a  platform.  It
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 1 was a strategy.  It was a whole nother way of see ing how Sun

 2 worked.

 3 We used to say that it was an attempt to build a new

 4 religion around a new way of thinking.

 5 Q. Okay.  And were you personally involved in planning  for

 6 and launching the language?

 7 A. Yes.  The people in the organization worked for me,  and I

 8 was the primary driver of the strategy, along wit h Bill.

 9 Q. And when and how was the language first released?

10 A. Uhm, in approximately 1994, we announced it here at

11 Moscone Center.

12 We had a very strange talk, where I had strange

13 pictures, and we said all sorts of odd things tha t no one quite

14 understood.  But it seemed an almost religious mo ment, in

15 hindsight.

16 Q. How was it made available, initially, back in '94?

17 A. The core strategy of Java was to have licensing par tners

18 who would use it and develop it with Sun.

19 Those partners included companies like Netscape,

20 which is the most important decision at the time.   And that was

21 browser manufacturer, the first one.

22 Oracle was also a licensee.  And I did that deal.

23 And eventually, also, Microsoft.

24 It also had an open component, so that you could make

25 your own version, if you will, without our licens e.
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 1 Q. And when you say "open component," can you tell our  jury

 2 what you mean by that.

 3 A. It's important to understand the sort of history he re,

 4 that people would build these software systems, a nd a company

 5 would do it.  And then the other companies wouldn 't trust them.

 6 And a classic example would be Microsoft would

 7 have -- would build their own software, and you c ouldn't use

 8 it, you couldn't extend it, you didn't trust them , or what have

 9 you.

10 And so we had who had grown out of Berkeley and

11 something called UNIX had figured out this other way.  And the

12 other way was, basically, to put the software out  there and

13 then let people modify it any way they wanted.

14 Put another way, if you're a programmer, do you t rust

15 that this other company is going to always have y our best

16 interests in heart?  You might be better off if t he source is

17 available, if you can modify it.  And that's what  open source

18 is all about.  So that was the movement that this  was part of.

19 So in order to do this, we came up with sort a

20 multiple way of doing it.  You could use Java und er license,

21 but you could also simply make your own version o f Java.  You

22 couldn't call it Java, but you could make your ow n.  And you

23 could then do whatever you wanted to with that.

24 Q. Now, let's stick with the language for a minute.

25 Did Sun make efforts to popularize the language, the

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page78 of 250



SCHMIDT - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1475

 1 Java language?

 2 A. Oh, very much so.

 3 Q. How did that take place?

 4 A. Well, we had developer tools.  We had developer

 5 conferences.  We tried to get everybody to use it .

 6 At the time -- again, how do you get people to st art

 7 using a language?  Well, they have to sort of tru st that this

 8 language is going to be there, right.  So it has to be out

 9 there.  There have to be a lot of users, and you have to get a

10 recurring circle, if you will.

11 Q. And you mentioned developer conference.  Was JavaOn e

12 started back in that day?

13 A. Yes.  Indeed, it was here.  And it was, indeed, her e at

14 Moscone.

15 Q. Tell the jurors what JavaOne is.

16 A. Well, there were a series of conferences for develo pers.

17 Developers are programmers.  And they are sort of , you know,

18 the stereotypical developer.  And they have confe rences where

19 they learn about what the technology is, who -- w hat their

20 friends are doing, what you can do with this new platform.

21 And we had a few demos of what was great about Ja va

22 but we didn't really have a lot of developers.  S o we organized

23 this conference called JavaOne.  

24 And as I remember thinking, oh, my god, I wonder if,

25 you know, 500 people will come.  Well, of course,  it was a huge
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 1 success.  And I remember many, many thousands of people.  And I

 2 knew that we had hit a chord.

 3 We also had a strategy, by the way -- 

 4 (Reporter interrupts.)

 5 Q. You need to slow down a little bit, Mr. Schmidt, fo r our

 6 jurors and for our court reporter.

 7 A. Sorry.  I get excited.

 8 We also had a strategy to use universities to try  --

 9 Q. What was that strategy?

10 A. To have -- since universities produce programmers, get the

11 universities to use Java in their courses.

12 Q. How did you go about doing that?

13 A. We made it generally available to them.  We called them,

14 gave it to them.  That sort of thing.

15 Q. Now, when the language was first released, were the re --

16 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, I've been relatively patient

17 in terms of this is background, but the Court did  rule on the

18 applicability of testimony this far back in time.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   This was all gone into by

20 Dr. Reinhold, Your Honor.  I'm about to move on t o --

21 THE COURT:  Overruled for now.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   Yeah.

23 THE COURT:  On your representation that you're almost

24 done.

25
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 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 2 Q. When the language was first released, Mr. Schmidt, were

 3 there Java APIs included with the language?

 4 A. Yes, of course. 

 5 Q. And were you involved in the development of those?

 6 A. I was the executive in charge of that.  The work wa s done

 7 by the technical team.

 8 Q. And what was the purpose for having the Java langua ge

 9 APIs?

10 A. The language itself is not useful without an abilit y to

11 make something happen.  And what an API does is, it allows you

12 to make something happen.  Every language had a s tandardized

13 such list.

14 We based ours on the experience that occurred in a

15 language called "C," which had a standard sort of  APIs.

16 Q. And how would developers -- how did you anticipate

17 developers would use the APIs?

18 A. All the developers would use these APIs along with other

19 APIs that they had also invented.

20 Q. And how were the APIs made available?

21 A. There was a book that specified what the APIs were,  that

22 was written by Bill Joy and a few others.  And th en there was

23 source code available from Sun.

24 Q. Do you recall approximately how long it took to dev elop

25 the early APIs along with the language?
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 1 A. The APIs would have been made in pretty much a simi lar

 2 period as the early language.

 3 Q. And how was Sun planning to make money if it was ma king

 4 the language available and the APIs available for  free?

 5 A. Well, the way the license worked is that you could use the

 6 implementation that Sun had done, and you had to pay a set of

 7 fees, which were modest.

 8 Or you could, again, simply implement your own

 9 implementation and not pay Sun.

10 Q. And why was that a good business plan?

11 A. Uhm, because, otherwise, people would believe that we were

12 going to hurt them by -- by making changes that w ould block

13 them or not making these available to them.

14 By giving them the freedom to make their own

15 implementation, they always had a safety valve, i f you will.

16 Q. Now, during the years that you were involved with t he Java

17 language and the Java APIs, did you ever hear any body at Sun

18 call the APIs blueprints?

19 A. I did not.

20 Q. Is that a phrase that you've ever heard spoken in

21 connection with the APIs at Sun?

22 A. Uhm, no.  And I don't think it's technically correc t.

23 Q. Why not?

24 A. Because an API is literally a specification for an

25 interface.  What's on the other side of the inter face has --
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 1 can be anything.  It's not a blueprint for anythi ng.

 2 Q. Mr. Schmidt, when did you leave Sun?

 3 A. 1997.

 4 Q. Where did you go next?

 5 A. I went to a company called Novell.

 6 Q. Where is Novell located?

 7 A. In Utah.

 8 Q. What position did you have with Novell?

 9 A. I was the chief executive officer.

10 Q. Did you continue, in your position at Novell, to ha ve

11 contact with the folks at Sun?

12 A. Yes, I did.

13 Q. Did Novell have a business relationship with Sun?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And did you continue to stay in touch with the Java  folks

16 you had left behind at Sun?

17 A. Yes, of course.

18 Q. When did you get to Google?

19 A. Uhm, March 2001.

20 Q. What position did you have upon your arrival?

21 A. Chief executive officer.

22 Q. And how long did you hold that spot?

23 A. Until April of last year.

24 Q. So during this period we're talking about 2005, '6,  '7,

25 '8, you were chief executive officer at that time ?
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 1 A. That is correct.

 2 Q. What do you do now, with respect to Google?

 3 A. I'm executive chairman.

 4 Q. And executive chairman of the board?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. What responsibilities do you have today?

 7 A. I travel around, give a lot of speeches, deal with a lot

 8 of governments.  That sort of thing.

 9 Q. Now, turning your attention, Mr. Schmidt, to Androi d, as

10 the CEO were you the one that had the ultimate re sponsibility

11 for the Android project at Google?

12 A. Yes.  It's worth saying that Larry and Sergey and I  had

13 agreed and did run the company together over the decade quite

14 successfully.  So on anything really important, t he three of us

15 would all agree, but I was the primary owner of t he strategy.  

16 Q. And as the strategy went forward and Google began t o

17 develop the platform, were you the one, sort of t he line

18 executive to whom Mr. Rubin was reporting?

19 A. That is correct.  And also because of my background  with

20 Sun, obviously.

21 Q. Now, tell the jurors, what was the purpose for acqu iring

22 Android, the company that Mr. Rubin had in the fi rst place?

23 A. Larry and Sergey were very interested in mobile and  mobile

24 operating systems.  And they had met Andy Rubin.

25 And they acquired Android in 2005, with a relativ ely,
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 1 I think, vague idea of what we would do with it.  It was just

 2 really interesting technology, interesting people , interesting

 3 group.  And that was typical of Google at that pe riod.

 4 Q. And once Android came aboard and Mr. Rubin came abo ard,

 5 was there a business strategy formed about what A ndroid would

 6 be and how it worked?

 7 A. Yes.

 8 Q. Can you tell the jurors about that?  What was it?

 9 A. My recollection was that the strategy that evolved over

10 the first year, which would be roughly 2000 and - - 2006, was to

11 build a platform -- which, again, we previously d iscussed --

12 that would be free and clear of some of the other  licensing

13 restrictions that were slowing down the industry,  and that

14 would, in fact, create a viable alternative to th e then key

15 players at the time.  As you've earlier seen in t he documents.

16 So our idea was that if we made something that wa s

17 generally available, it would provide a lot of cu stomer value;

18 it could be a very large platform; and it would g row very

19 quickly.  All of which has, indeed, occurred.

20 Q. When you say open or alternative to what was out th ere,

21 tell our jurors what you mean by that.

22 A. Well, at the time, we were quite concerned about

23 Microsoft's products.  It's hard to relate to tha t now, but at

24 the time we were very concerned that Microsoft's mobile

25 strategy would be successful.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page85 of 250



SCHMIDT - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1482

 1 It's also true at the time that the primary playe r in

 2 the industry was Nokia, who had an operating syst em called

 3 Symbian, which we were also concerned about.

 4 This was before the iPhone was announced and befo re

 5 the whole iPhone revolution occurred.

 6 Q. Now, did you see a series of presentations from Mr.  Rubin

 7 and his team in the early days of putting the str ategy

 8 together?

 9 A. I did.

10 Q. And was it always certain what the best way was to

11 proceed?

12 A. No.  No.  It's a process of discovery.  We did unde rstand

13 the goal.  And the goal was to get as much -- as many users as

14 we could on a powerful new platform that could ex ploit the Web,

15 exploit all the things that we do today.

16 Q. And in terms of actually building Android or develo ping

17 the platform, were there also a variety of option s for doing

18 that?

19 A. Well, of course.  We had our own team, and we could  also

20 license technology.  We could make our own compan ies, whatever.

21 Q. And were there a series of discussions around that issue,

22 as well?

23 A. Yes.

24 I recall a detailed discussion, just Andy and mys elf,

25 in -- on a chalkboard sketching out:  These are a ll of the

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page86 of 250



SCHMIDT - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1483

 1 components that we need.

 2 He was trying to get me to give him a few million

 3 dollars to buy out some licenses for Codex and ot her pieces of

 4 the technology that you need, which I ultimately approved.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Now, do you have Trial Exhibit 1 up

 6 there before you, Mr. Schmidt?  Could I have TX 1  on the

 7 screen, please.

 8 (Document displayed.) 

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   May I help the witness, Your Honor?

10 THE COURT:  Sure.

11 THE WITNESS:  That would be this one.

12 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

13 Q. We're going to show page 9.  Mr. Boies asked you ab out

14 this.  Let's stay on the first page.

15 July 26, 2005, was that rather early on in the

16 development of Android?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Do you think this may have been one of the first me etings

19 you had with Mr. Rubin?

20 A. As I said, I don't actually think I was in this mee ting

21 because I don't recognize the slides at all.  But  this was very

22 early.

23 Q. Okay.

24 MR. VAN NEST:   Could we go to page 9, and blow that

25 first paragraph up.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page87 of 250



SCHMIDT - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1484

 1 (Document displayed.) 

 2 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 3 Q. You mentioned -- answered a couple of questions for

 4 Mr. Boies on this.

 5 The second bullet point, which he didn't call out ,

 6 says, "Need coffee-cup logo for carrier certifica tions."

 7 Do you understand what that meant in the context of

 8 your discussions about Android?

 9 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  He testified that

10 he didn't think he was at this presentation.

11 THE COURT:  Well, that's true.  But, nonetheless, you

12 asked questions about the next line, and even tho ugh he wasn't

13 at the meeting perhaps.  And so good for the goos e, good for

14 the gander.

15 I'm going to allow you this question.  Please, go

16 ahead.

17 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

18 Q. What did you understand that phrase to mean, "Need

19 coffee-cup logo for carrier certification"?

20 THE COURT:  No.  Since he said wasn't there, the way

21 you phrased that question -- I'm just going to le t him explain

22 how that phrase, looking at it today, would have related to the

23 next sentence, if at all.

24 Because, he says he never saw this document befor e,

25 so how could he have understood anything about it ?
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   Your question is a better one, Your

 2 Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  So I'll let him answer the question as I

 4 phrased it.

 5 THE WITNESS:  Judge, the judge wins.

 6 (Laughter) 

 7 THE WITNESS:  In 2005, Java had evolved to --

 8 2005-2006, to primarily being used by mobile carr iers.  And

 9 Sun's strategy was to have mobile devices, which were

10 well-suited to Java, use Java, use JVM.  They had  a license for

11 that.  And they would get a logo.

12 And the coffee-cup logo is a reference to the Jav a

13 logo.

14 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

15 Q. And that's something you had to pay for?

16 A. Yes, you had to pay for that.

17 Q. Now, you said in response to Mr. Boies' question th at the

18 next line you thought was wrong, "Must take a lic ense from

19 Sun."  What did you mean by that?

20 A. Well, again, I didn't write this document, but I be lieve

21 "Must take license from Sun" refers to the previo us statement,

22 "Need coffee-cup logo."  You need to have a licen se in order to

23 use their logo.

24 Q. When you say "logo," what are you talking about?

25 A. The little picture of Java on the coffee cup.
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 1 Q. Okay.  Let's move on.  At some point in the various

 2 discussions about Android and getting technology,  did Android

 3 or Google contact Sun for discussions about Andro id?

 4 A. Many times, yes.

 5 Q. Now, were you aware, was Google contacting a lot of  other

 6 companies, too, at the time?

 7 A. Well, of course.

 8 Q. And what -- what other companies would Google have been

 9 talking to about Android?

10 A. Well, to start with, hardware partners, other possi ble

11 sources for software, for example, Qual-Com would  be an

12 example, who would make some of the chips that ar e used.

13 I mentioned earlier some of the other software an d

14 hardware components that would have to be integra ted, so Sun

15 was certainly one.

16 Q. So this was an effort to go out and see what was av ailable

17 in the market, pick and choose among various alte rnative

18 sources; is that right?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Did you have some communications yourself directly with

21 the folks at Sun?

22 A. Yes, of course.

23 Q. Did you have e-mail communications and telephone

24 communications and so on?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. Tell the jurors, what was the purpose, what was you r goal

 2 in discussions with Sun?  What is it that Google wanted to get

 3 out of a relationship with Sun?

 4 A. Well, my going-in position is that you're better of f

 5 working with everybody else, and so you're always  better off

 6 talking.  It's also better if they know what you' re doing so

 7 they cannot be surprised if you do things that do n't make sense

 8 to them and so forth.

 9 Furthermore, Scott McNealy, CEO at the time, was my

10 boss for 14 years and is a good personal friend.  And so for

11 many reasons we would have constant conversations .

12 Scott would call me up and try to sell me large S un

13 servers, which, of course, we didn't need, and th ings like

14 that.

15 Q. Now, you said Scott McNealy was your boss.  Who is Scott

16 McNealy?

17 A. I'm sorry, Scott McNealy was the CEO of Sun and my mentor

18 and boss for 14 years, so I worked for him before  I went to

19 Novell and then to Google.

20 Q. And at this period of time now, in 2005-2006, he wa s still

21 at Sun?

22 A. That is correct.

23 Q. Okay.  Did you have some communications directly wi th him?

24 A. I did.

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Could I have Exhibit 2005 on the
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 1 screen.  I'm not sure it's in evidence yet.

 2 May I approach the witness, Your Honor?

 3 THE COURT:  Sure.  

 4 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 5 Q. You have before you Exhibit 205.  Do you recognize 205,

 6 Mr. Schmidt?

 7 A. I do.

 8 Q. What is it?

 9 A. This is an e-mail from myself to Scott, and then a

10 response from Scott back to me.  My e-mail is the  bottom and

11 his response is the top.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Offer 205 in evidence, Your Honor.

13 MR. BOIES:   No objection, Your Honor.

14 MR. VAN NEST:   Could we display that?

15 THE COURT:  Received.  Go ahead.

16 (Trial Exhibit 205 received in evidence.) 

17 (Document displayed.) 

18 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.

19 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

20 Q. Starting with your e-mail to him, Mr. Schmidt, that  first

21 paragraph.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   If we could highlight the first --

23 highlight the whole first paragraph.

24 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

25 Q. Can you read that to the jury, Mr. Schmidt, and tel l them
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 1 what you were hoping to communicate to Mr. McNeal y.

 2 A. So the paragraph says, Scott, I'm in product review  and

 3 we're looking at a very interesting partnership p roposal with

 4 Sun --

 5 Q. Mr. Schmidt, you need to slow down when you read.  We've

 6 all made that same mistake many times.

 7 A. I apologize.

 8 Basically, Andy Rubin runs our mobile OS/search

 9 engineering group, and he is talking with Alan Br enner, VP

10 consumer and mobile systems group of Sun.

11 Q. Now, when you say "a very interesting partnership

12 proposal," what were you referring to?

13 A. We had had a meeting, and during this meeting we sa id,

14 let's talk to Sun about can -- does it make sense  to work with

15 them to do this, given their Java assets and the things they're

16 trying to do, especially in the mobile space.

17 Q. And under that scenario, what would Sun be providin g, what

18 would Google be providing?  What was the general idea here?

19 A. Well, you can see in the second paragraph, if I may  --

20 Q. Please.

21 A. -- I say, "Google has engaged with our Java team" - -

22 that's code for we're talking with them -- "in an  effort to

23 form an alliance around our open handset platform ."

24 The open handset platform is this idea that all t hese

25 carriers and people who make phones could make a more modern
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 1 phone.

 2 "It's an opportunity for our two companies" -- th at

 3 would be Sun and Google -- "to work together to d efine a

 4 de facto standard software" -- "a de facto standa rd software

 5 stack for mobile phones."

 6 "We have adopted" -- Google -- "a completely open

 7 source model as a way to spot some intricate dist ribution

 8 dependencies."  

 9 We should do this together. And it goes on.

10 Q. Now, did Mr. McNealy respond?

11 A. He did.  You can see above his response.

12 Q. Let's get Mr. McNealy's response up.

13 Tell the jurors what you understood from

14 Mr. McNealy's response to your e-mail.

15 A. His -- it's a typical Sun response.  That's my reac tion.

16 A typical Scott response.

17 So Jonathan and the team are on top of this.  The

18 Jonathan would be Jonathan Schwartz.  "I'm worrie d about how

19 we're going to replace the revenue this is likely  going to

20 submarine."

21 So he has an existing revenue, and my interpretat ion

22 is he's worried about how does he get that revenu e if he does a

23 partnership with us.

24 Q. Was the idea that both of you would contribute your

25 technology and make it all open?
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 1 A. That was my proposal.  You can see that -- his stat ement

 2 here:  I -- that's Scott, representing Sun -- "I' m very

 3 supportive of driving a completely open phone sta ck" -- which

 4 is what I'm proposing -- "and even taking risk wi th Java to get

 5 there" -- that's technical and product risk -- "b ut I need to

 6 understand the economics."

 7 And I interpreted this as, We want money from you .

 8 Q. And the last sentence says, "We're obviously suppor tive in

 9 helping to fuel the market."

10 What did you understand Mr. McNealy to tell you

11 there?

12 A. He understood the benefit of having a billion users  would

13 be good for everyone.

14 You'll notice, by the way, the postscript has, "T he

15 team had a chance to try out the new T2000."  Tha t's the piece

16 of software he's trying to sell us.

17 Q. Now, did you continue to have dialogue with the fol ks at

18 Sun, Mr. Schmidt?

19 A. Yes, I did.

20 Q. And who is Jonathan Schwartz?

21 A. Jonathan was the, I believe, president at the time,  but

22 had been in charge of all of the software and was  in charge of

23 the -- all the Java work at Sun during those year s.

24 Q. Did he work for Mr. McNealy?

25 A. That is correct.
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 1 Q. And did you -- did you know Mr. Schwartz?

 2 A. Extremely well.  I hired him into Sun.

 3 Q. And he worked for you at Sun?

 4 A. Way back when, yes.

 5 Q. Way back when.  

 6 And so did the two of you in this period, '05-'06 ,

 7 did you and Mr. Schwartz talk on a regular basis?

 8 A. Of course, yes.

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   Could I have Exhibit 435, please.

10 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

11 Q. Mr. Schmidt, I'm placing before you Exhibit 435.  A sk you

12 if you could identify that, please.

13 A. Uhm, I see this.

14 Q. What is it?

15 A. This is an electronic mail from Jonathan to me, Jon athan

16 Schwartz of Sun, copying Scott and Sergey Brin.

17 Q. Now, this one's a little bit later.  This is in Apr il of

18 2006, correct?

19 A. That's correct.

20 MR. VAN NEST:   I'd offer 435 in evidence, Your Honor.

21 MR. BOIES:   No objection, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received.

23 Go ahead.

24 (Trial Exhibit 435 received in evidence.) 

25 (Document displayed.) 

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page96 of 250



SCHMIDT - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1493

 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 2 Q. And this is an e-mail from Mr. Schwartz to you, cor rect?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   And could we highlight that first

 5 sentence?  That's looks good.  First two paragrap hs.

 6 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 7 Q. (As read:)

 8 "My team has alerted me that our negotiations

 9 to jointly create a Java-Linux mobile

10 platform are at an impasse."

11 First of all, did you understand what he meant by

12 "Java-Linux mobile platform"?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. What was your understanding of that?

15 A. He's referring to our proposal to combine our activ ities

16 with their Java licensing model.

17 Q. And what is Linux?

18 A. Linux is a version of something called UNIX that wa s open

19 source.  In other words, anyone could modify it.  It's

20 important to state that Google and many of the ot her companies

21 that are successful today use Linux as part of th eir platforms.

22 Q. And what is Linux?

23 A. It's an operating system.  It's the basic part of s oftware

24 that's -- that runs the computer itself.

25 Q. And are you confident that by this point in time, w hich is
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 1 April of '06, Mr. Schwartz was well aware of what  the various

 2 components of Android would be?

 3 A. Uhm, yes.

 4 Q. Now, he goes on to say:  

 5 "I believe this effort is an important

 6 project for both our companies.  We're at a

 7 critical stage in the industry where we still

 8 have a chance to successfully create an open

 9 platform that can target multiple consumer

10 devices."

11 What did you understand Mr. Schwartz to be saying

12 there?

13 A. He's agreeing with my view, the shared view, that t here is

14 an opportunity to build a single platform that wo uld be used by

15 everybody, that has the attributes of openness.  You can modify

16 it, those sorts of things.

17 Q. And the very last sentence closes with, "Let me kno w how

18 we can move forward."

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Can we have that last one at the

20 bottom.

21 THE WITNESS:  It says, "Don't hesitate to let me know

22 how Scott or I can move this forward."

23 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

24 Q. What was the stage of negotiations at this point?

25 A. Again, we have people who work for me and Jonathan doing
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 1 negotiations, but they were -- you can see in the  third

 2 paragraph -- so it would be -- Sun is ready to em brace Google's

 3 innovation.  So that's a yes.  

 4 "But we are unwilling to cede complete

 5 control of the management hosting authorizing

 6 computers for key components of the stack."

 7 This is an indication that Sun is unwilling to

 8 completely let other people participate in the de velopment of

 9 Java at the source code level.  And this is what I expected

10 from Sun, but -- which has always been an issue.

11 Q. Now, had Google's version of this partnership come to be,

12 would you have needed a license to use the source  code that Sun

13 had?

14 A. Well, Sun's source code, yes, absolutely.

15 Q. And was that -- at this point that's what you were

16 contemplating doing?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. What products -- what Sun products were you hoping to

19 incorporate in Android?

20 A. Well, so there's language and APIs, which are the - - the

21 structure, if you will, the way in which you use things.  But

22 you have to have the actual code, the software pr oduct.  That

23 code is written and owned by a person or a corpor ation.  You

24 can't use that without a license or permission to  do that.  So

25 you can either build your own or you can license it from
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 1 somebody else.

 2 Q. And if you use someone else's source code, you need  to

 3 take a license?

 4 A. Of course.

 5 Q. And was that still -- still in play here in April o r so of

 6 2006?

 7 A. Yes.

 8 Q. Now, did you respond to Mr. Schwartz' e-mail?

 9 A. I believe so.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   Could I have 2375, please.

11 Don't see it in my binder here.  2372, do we have  a

12 copy of that?  2372.  Could we put it on the scre en for

13 Mr. Schmidt to see?  2372.

14 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

15 Q. Do you recognize 2372, Mr. Schmidt?

16 Let's go down a little bit -- a little bit furthe r.

17 A. I do.

18 Q. What is it?

19 A. It's a message from Andy Rubin to Jonathan Schwartz .

20 Q. All right.  Let's actually go to the second page.  I

21 apologize.  I now have the exhibit.  Let me hand --

22 MR. VAN NEST:   May I hand it to the witness, Your

23 Honor?

24 THE COURT:  Yes.

25
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 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 2 Q. It's the second page that I want to call your atten tion

 3 to, Mr. Schmidt.  I'm sorry.

 4 A. Thank you.

 5 Q. Do you recognize the e-mail exchange there on the s econd

 6 page?

 7 A. I do.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   I'd offer 2372 in evidence, Your

 9 Honor.

10 MR. BOIES:   May I have just one moment, Your Honor?

11 No objection.

12 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received.

13 (Trial Exhibit 2372 received in evidence.) 

14 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

15 Q. Now, the first paragraph, you're congratulating Jon athan.

16 Do you know what that's about?

17 A. He was promoted to chief executive officer, and Sco tt

18 McNealy became chairman around this time.

19 Q. And "this time" is roughly May or so of 2006?

20 A. That's correct.

21 Q. Your next paragraph starts off, I got your message about a

22 potential partnership between Google, mobile Andr oid and Sun

23 Java.  Do you see that?

24 A. I do.

25 Q. And take a look at that paragraph and tell the jury  what
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 1 you understood Mr. Schwartz to be telling you abo ut the

 2 potential for a partnership between Google and Su n.

 3 A. This is a message from me to Jonathan.

 4 Q. I'm sorry.

 5 A. Okay.

 6 Q. What were you telling him about the potential for a

 7 partnership?

 8 A. So, first, I'm congratulating him on his promotion,  which

 9 was well deserved.  And it was actually my feelin g.

10 The second paragraph occurred when Andy and I tal ked

11 about what are we willing to compromise on this i ssue of

12 control in a potential partnership?

13 And you can see that I say: 

14 "I am okay with each party hosting and

15 managing their own contributions - an obvious

16 compromise."

17 Q. What did you mean by that?

18 A. The hosting and managing contributions is a -- is a n issue

19 of how do you allow the changes to occur when eve ryone's

20 contributing changes in open source.

21 And this is a difference in view between Sun and

22 Google.  I viewed it as a relatively minor issue.   And I

23 thought that if we simply said they could do thei r part their

24 way and we could do our part our way, then it wou ld be fine and

25 we would still be able to get large numbers of us ers.
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 1 Q. And just a little bit further down on the document,

 2 Mr. Schmidt, you say:

 3 "However, Google should have the final say as

 4 to which Sun technology is contributed since

 5 Google is writing the check."

 6 What did you mean by that?

 7 A. You'll recall Scott's e-mail to me earlier that he was

 8 concerned about replacing revenue.  At this point  we've told

 9 them that we're willing to pay them money to get access to

10 their source code.

11 And you can see that I've written that we, Google ,

12 should have the final say of which part of Sun te chnology we

13 take in, especially since we're writing them a ch eck.

14 Q. At that time were you still considering which of Su n's

15 proprietary products might become part of Android ?

16 A. That is correct.  And there are subtle and importan t

17 differences.  One engineer thinks that their code  is better

18 than another.  And the Sun person thinks, well, I  invented it.

19 And then Google says, well, I have a better job.  You know, the

20 usual sort of technical discussions to be resolve d.

21 Q. So were you able to reach agreement with Sun on a

22 partnership to build Android?

23 A. Unfortunately not.

24 Q. And can you tell the jurors just briefly why the

25 negotiations broke down?  What was the -- what we re the
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 1 differences?

 2 A. At the highest level, the core issue had to do with

 3 control; that, in a full open source implementati on, the

 4 contributors have relatively little control over what happens

 5 after they put it out.

 6 And Sun's view was that they wanted much tighter

 7 control, which was their -- which was their view.   It's a

 8 difference of viewpoint.

 9 Q. Was money the thing that broke the deal down, or no ?

10 A. Not really.  They wanted $30- to $50 million kinds of

11 numbers in the negotiation.  We would have paid t hat simply to

12 resolve it.  The money wasn't as important as thi s question of

13 making a successful platform.

14 Q. Now, after the negotiations between Google and Sun broke

15 off, did you and the Android team go in a differe nt direction?

16 THE COURT:  Can we establish the date of when the

17 negotiations broke off, at least according to the  witness?

18 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

19 Q. Can you give us --

20 THE COURT:  So the jury will have that clearly in

21 mind.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   That's a good idea, Your Honor.

23 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

24 Q. With reference to that exhibit, can you give us an

25 estimate, approximately, of when the negotiations  concluded?
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 1 A. It's sometime in late 2006.

 2 Q. The date of the exhibit you have in your hand, what  date

 3 is that?

 4 A. May 2006.

 5 Q. May 2006.  It was sometime after?

 6 A. Yeah.  We continued to talk.  And eventually it bec ame

 7 clear that we tried and tried and we were unable to come to a

 8 satisfactory deal for both parties in 2006.

 9 Q. So at that point, what did you do?

10 A. Well, as -- we wanted to make sure that we could su pport

11 the Java language because we thought that Java wa s the best

12 development environment.  And that was certainly my personal

13 view as well.

14 And so we began a clean-room implementation.  And  a

15 clean-room implementation was developed and is --  and it uses a

16 completely different approach to the way Java wor ked

17 internally.

18 Q. Okay.  And why don't you tell the jury what you mea n by

19 that, "a completely different approach."

20 A. Well, Java, when it was built had some -- something  called

21 byte codes.  And the details are -- we were very proud of

22 ourselves having invented it at Sun, this approac h.

23 And a team known as the Dalvik team at Google

24 invented a completely different way of obtaining the same

25 objective, that didn't use the same byte codes.
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 1 I was surprised that this worked, but it did work .

 2 And it meant that we were not subject to the byte code

 3 architecture, which is an underlying, how to desc ribe it, way

 4 in which computers work.  We used a different app roach.

 5 Q. And who was in charge of getting the product built?   Who

 6 was --

 7 THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  Google or at Java?

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   We're --

 9 THE COURT:  What you just described happened at --

10 was that at Java or -- I mean Sun or --

11 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I may have

12 miscommunicated.  I was referring to Google's act ivity to build

13 after 2006.

14 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

15 Q. So let's actually clarify that, if it's unclear in the

16 Court's mind.

17 So you negotiated for some period of time with Su n?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And in 2006, you concluded that that wasn't going t o work?

20 A. That's correct.

21 Q. So then Google and the Android team still wanted to

22 develop the Android platform, correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And just tell us generally, you went a different

25 direction.  Sun was no longer in the picture.  Wh at was the
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 1 plan for building your own Android at Google?

 2 A. Well, as I said, my going-in position in 2006 is th at the

 3 best approach would have been to do a partnership  where we

 4 could use the work that had already been done.  B ut because we

 5 were unable to come to that deal, we in the same time invented

 6 a different approach to how to achieve the object ive.  And this

 7 was done by a team that did not come from Sun and  did not use

 8 Sun's intellectual property, as I was told.  And so it was

 9 something that Google owned, that Google could do  whatever we

10 thought best with it.

11 Q. So when you say Google thought it could do best, we re you

12 still pursuing an open source approach?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Why did you think that was the best way to go?

15 A. We've -- we, Google, have always believed that the best

16 software is the kind of software that's generally  open, the

17 source code is made available, programmers can ta ke it and

18 can -- I'm sorry, slow down.

19 Programmers can take it and modify it as they see

20 fit.  This is the basis of Linux.  It's the basis  of something

21 called Apache.  And it's mostly how the Web works .

22 Q. Was the Android platform being built using the Java

23 programming language?

24 A. Uhm, the platform --

25 Q. Parts of it?
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 1 A. The platform was developed -- it implements the lan guage

 2 and it implements the APIs, but it does not use t he Java source

 3 code and it does not use Java development tools.  It uses other

 4 things to do the same thing.

 5 Q. Okay.  Now, why don't you explain to the jurors, wh at role

 6 was the Java language itself going to play in the  Android

 7 platform?

 8 A. Well, in might be -- perhaps this has already been

 9 discussed, but a language is a set of instruction s.  So, you

10 know, do this, do that, add these numbers, turn t his on, turn

11 this off.  So the language of Java became the -- if you're a

12 programmer, you wrote in this language for Androi d.

13 Q. And was it your belief that you could use the Java

14 programming language notwithstanding that you wer en't in a

15 partnership with Sun?

16 A. Absolutely.

17 Q. Why?

18 A. For many reasons.  The -- in 199 -- well, in 1991 a nd

19 1992, the strategy that we drove and that I drove  allowed it.

20 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  It's exactly what

21 the Court --

22 THE COURT:  Sustained.  We're not going to go back

23 that far.

24 MR. VAN NEST:   I'll rephrase the question, Your

25 Honor.
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 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 2 Q. As of 2006, when you took Android in a different

 3 direction, what was your understanding about your  ability to

 4 use the language in at least a part of the Androi d platform?

 5 A. It was my understanding that it was completely fine ; that

 6 Sun had made the language available and was avail able in 2006.

 7 Q. And throughout your discussions with Mr. Schwartz, was he

 8 aware that you were using the Java language?

 9 A. Absolutely.

10 Q. What about the Java APIs we're been hearing about, was it

11 your plan to use the Java APIs in Android?

12 A. It was.

13 Q. And how were you able to do that?

14 A. A language by itself is not very useful.  Whenever I use

15 the word "language," I also refer to the APIs.

16 Q. Why is that?

17 A. Well, imagine a situation where you have instructio ns and

18 you go, 1 plus 1 is 2 and 3 plus 4 is 5.  Well, i n order to

19 answer that, to do something with, say, the 5, yo u have to call

20 an interface to publish it, to print it, to show it on a

21 screen.  So Java with no APIs is not very useful.

22 Q. And was it your understanding that anyone was objec ting to

23 Google's use of either the language or the APIs i n Android?

24 A. There was no such objection.

25 Q. And did anyone at any time ever tell you that you n eeded a
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 1 license to use the language or the APIs as part o f Android?

 2 A. Uhm, they did not.

 3 Q. Now, how was the rest of Android built?  Source cod e?

 4 Operating system?  Where did all those other comp onents come

 5 from?

 6 A. Well, the operating system was based on Linux, whic h was

 7 subject to something called the Linux license, wh ich made it

 8 open systems, anybody could modify it.

 9 The other components were under a similar license

10 called the Apache license.  And then the componen ts that Google

11 developed we had control over and we put them und er the Apache

12 license.

13 Q. And when you say we put our Google technology under  the

14 Apache license, what does that mean?

15 A. It meant that you could take the source code and mo dify it

16 as you saw fit.

17 Q. And by "the source code," you mean the source code that

18 Google developed?

19 A. That is correct.

20 Q. Why did you -- oh, excuse me.

21 A. If I could amplify on the Apache license.

22 Q. Please.

23 A. The Apache license is unusually liberal in that if you

24 make -- if you write code and you let me use it, I can further

25 modify it and I don't have to give it back to you .
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 1 Q. Why is that important?

 2 A. Again, we're trying to get as much spread and as ma ny

 3 users as possible.  So today, for example, Androi d has users

 4 who we don't know and we don't talk with and who make odd and

 5 interesting modifications to it that are surprisi ng to us, and

 6 that's permissible.

 7 Q. Are there some fairly well-known commercial product s out

 8 there that use Android that aren't even under the  Apache

 9 license?

10 A. Well, technically, they are under the Apache licens e, but

11 they are not under some other licenses from Googl e.  An example

12 would be the Kindle.

13 Q. Kindle?

14 A. The Kindle is an example, a very successful one.

15 Q. Now, do you recall approximately when Google first

16 announced the Android platform to the public, Mr.  Schmidt?

17 A. We announced something called the Open Handset Alli ance, I

18 think, in 2005 or 2008.  And then we followed, ab out a year

19 later, with our first Android phone.

20 Q. Now, let's come back to that first announcement in 2007.

21 Remind us, what's the Open Handset Alliance?

22 A. Again, the goal is to get as many partners as we ca n to

23 create an alternative to Microsoft and Symbian.  So Andy had

24 the idea to call and with a set of people who are  also on these

25 e-mails call all of these hardware companies and have them
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 1 endorse the concept of a software platform like t he one we're

 2 describing.

 3 Q. So the announcement was on behalf of a big group?

 4 A. That's correct.

 5 Q. Not just Google?

 6 A. It was an announcement -- think of it as an allianc e of

 7 people with a shared vision, and I remember it an d I did it

 8 with Andy Rubin.

 9 Q. And was there a software kit of some kind or a deve lopers

10 kit released at that time?

11 A. So in order to have something to show, we announced  a

12 developer kit that, if you started -- if you star ted developing

13 against this developer kit, your software would r un on these

14 hardware devices that were to be developed.

15 In other words, you know, if there's nothing, how  do

16 you get started?  Well, you have to start program ming.  And

17 then as the phones show up, your stuff will, you know, start to

18 work on it.

19 Q. So what -- where was the developer kit placed?  How  did

20 people get access to that?

21 A. Again, the same rule is that you put the source out  and

22 then you let people modify it.

23 Q. And that was done around the time of the announceme nt in

24 '07? 

25 A. That is correct.  And it's -- the way you do this i s you
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 1 take the software and you put it on a server and then you let

 2 people get it anywhere in the world.

 3 Q. Would anyone that wanted to know what APIs Android was

 4 using at that time have been able to find out?

 5 A. Yes, absolutely.

 6 Q. How would they do that?

 7 A. By looking at the developer kit, because the develo per kit

 8 would state the APIs that were available.

 9 Q. So there would be some Android APIs included?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And some Java APIs?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And anyone that wanted to know what was in it, they  could

14 look on the website; it would all be there?

15 A. Absolutely.

16 Q. Now, around the time of this announcement did you r eceive

17 a private communication from Mr. Schwartz at Sun?

18 A. I did.

19 Q. Was that in the form of an e-mail?

20 A. Yes, I did.

21 Q. I'd like to hand you Trial Exhibit 3441, and ask yo u to

22 identify that, please.

23 What is 3441, Mr. Schmidt?

24 A. This is an e-mail from myself to -- let's see.  I'm  sorry.

25 It's actually three e-mails.  The first e-mail is  from Jonathan
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 1 Schwartz, CEO of Sun, to me, dated November 2007.

 2 Q. And then there's a couple of other e-mails to you?

 3 A. And then above it, same day, is a response.

 4 Q. Are these e-mails that you sent and received with

 5 Mr. Schwartz back in 2007?

 6 A. On -- yes, on November 9th, 2007.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   I'd offer 3441 into evidence, Your

 8 Honor.

 9 MR. BOIES:   No objection, Your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received.

11 (Trial Exhibit 3441 received in evidence.) 

12 (Document displayed.) 

13 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

14 Q. If we could publish that.  Let's start at the botto m of

15 the e-mail, Mr. Schmidt.  And could we blow that up.

16 Could you read the e-mail text and tell us what

17 understood Mr. Schwartz to be telling you?

18 A. It says:  Let us know how we can help support your

19 announcements next week - we're happy to do so.

20 Q. What did he mean?  What was he referring to?

21 A. He's referring to our announcement of the developer  kit as

22 part of the Open Handset Alliance.

23 Q. Was he the CEO by this time?

24 A. Yes, he was.

25 Q. Did you respond to the e-mail?
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 1 A. I did.

 2 Q. What did you tell him?

 3 A. My response is:  

 4 "Thanks, Jonathan.  I will review right now.

 5 The software developer kit is supposed to

 6 release an early look on Monday."

 7 That will be its first public release.

 8 Q. And when it says "SDK," what are you referring to t here?

 9 A. That's the developer kit.  Again, as I mentioned, t o get

10 things started a programmer needs a kit that they  can program

11 against before the actual phones show up so they can determine

12 if their software works.

13 Q. And that's -- that's the kit from which someone cou ld tell

14 what are the APIs and what are we using and all t hat?

15 A. That's correct.

16 Q. Okay.  And then what does -- what is Mr. Schwartz' final

17 response?

18 A. And then his top response, again, same day:  

19 "A few of your Alliance partners have reached

20 out to us to build a separate but equal

21 effort."

22 Q. What does that mean?

23 A. So we have formed an alliance.  So some of them hav e

24 separately called Sun and said, why don't we do s omething with

25 Sun instead of with Google.
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 1 Q. And what was the gist of his -- of his message to y ou?

 2 A. He -- he is -- uhm, the gist of his paragraph is he  says

 3 he would love to have one big tent, which is a co mbination of

 4 the two activities, in some form, rather than hav ing a lot of

 5 splintering, as you would call it.

 6 Q. Now, I take it you knew Mr. Schwartz pretty well?

 7 A. Very well.

 8 Q. You two saw each other on a periodic basis?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Did he have a blog that he was using as CEO of Sun?

11 A. He did.

12 Q. Tell the jurors what the blog was or what's a blog and how

13 is Mr. Schwartz using it?

14 A. Jonathan was one of the early users of web -- Web - -

15 publishing or blogging.  And he was one of the CE Os who wrote

16 quite frequently of his thoughts on the industry,  what was

17 going on in his company and so forth.  And he was  one of the

18 first.

19 Q. And did his blog become pretty well-known in Silico n

20 Valley?

21 A. It did.

22 Q. Yeah.  And did you read it from time to time?

23 A. I did.

24 Q. Was there an announcement at Sun by Mr. Schwartz at  or

25 about the time of this Open Handset Alliance rele ase and the
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 1 release of the SDK?

 2 A. There was.

 3 MR. VAN NEST:   Can I display 2352?  It's already in

 4 evidence.  Would you take a look at 2352.  Could we highlight

 5 the first paragraph.  Just above that.

 6 (Document displayed.) 

 7 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 8 Q. First of all, do you recognize 2352?

 9 A. I do.

10 Q. What is it?

11 A. It's Jonathan's public blog.

12 Q. And this wasn't the only time he blogged, that's a

13 periodic ongoing thing?

14 A. Yes, he was very frequent.

15 Q. Okay.  And what's the message here underneath

16 congratulations, Google, Red Hat and the Java com munity?  

17 Can you read slowly the first paragraph underneat h

18 that and tell us what you understood him to be sa ying?

19 A. "I'd also like Sun"?

20 Q. No, the first one.

21 A. Sorry.

22 Q. "I just wanted."

23 A. (As read:)

24 "I just wanted to add my voice to the chorus

25 of others from Sun in offering my heartfelt
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 1 congratulations to Google on the announcement

 2 of their new Java/Linux phone platform

 3 Android.  Congratulations."

 4 Q. What did you understand that to mean?

 5 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor, foundation.

 6 THE COURT:  Sustained.

 7 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 8 Q. Well, did you read the blog at the time?

 9 A. I did.

10 Q. Okay.  And there's a reference in the second paragr aph to

11 a NetBeans developer platform for mobile devices.   What was

12 NetBeans?

13 A. So remember we talked about a developer kit.  One t ool

14 that a programmer can use is a developer environm ent;

15 essentially, all the pieces that they need to mak e the code

16 assemble.

17 And NetBeans was Sun's activity in that area.

18 Q. And he says:  

19 "We've obviously done a ton of work to

20 support developers on all Java-based

21 platforms and we're pleased to add Google's

22 Android to the list."

23 Did you know what list he was referring to?

24 A. He's referring to the list of people who are implem enting

25 Java in one place or another as a platform.
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 1 Q. And what are you -- what is Android being added to?

 2 A. A set of companies that are a part of a global effo rt

 3 around Java.

 4 Q. Okay.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   And could we go down two more

 6 paragraphs.

 7 (Document displayed.) 

 8 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 9 Q. Can you read that paragraph, again slowly, and tell  us

10 what you understood from that?

11 A. (As read:) 

12 "And, needless to say, Google and the Open

13 Handset Alliance just strapped another set of

14 rockets to the community's momentum and to

15 the vision-defining opportunity across our

16 and other planets."

17 Q. Now, when he says "community's momentum," did you k now

18 what he was talking about?

19 A. He's referring to the collection of companies which

20 implement Java in one way or the other.

21 Q. And "strapped another set of rockets to the momentu m," did

22 you have any understanding of what that intended to convey?

23 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor, foundation.

24 THE COURT:  Sustained.

25
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 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 2 Q. Now, subsequent to the release of Android, did you

 3 continue to have discussions with the folks at Su n?

 4 A. I did.

 5 Q. Did you continue to talk with Mr. Schwartz?

 6 A. I did.

 7 Q. Continue to talk with Mr. McNealy?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. By the way, during this period we are talking about  was

10 Google a customer of Sun's?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. What was the business relationship between Google a nd Sun

13 from a customer standpoint?

14 A. Uhm, Sun -- Google had a product called a toolbar t hat

15 worked on personal computers.  And as part of the  Java

16 distribution that Sun did, our toolbar was includ ed in their

17 Java distribution.  And we paid a fee to Sun to d istribute that

18 toolbar.

19 Q. And how did that work?

20 A. Uhm, we would -- this is completely separate from J ava

21 itself.

22 We had a toolbar that would sit in your browser, and

23 this browser would allow you, if you were using I nternet

24 Explorer, which was the dominant browser at the t ime on

25 Windows, it would make it very easy to search on Google.
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 1 And we thought that was a good way to give custom ers

 2 choices for search.  Microsoft had its own search  product, and

 3 they were making it difficult to get to Google.

 4 So by putting this toolbar inside of their browse r,

 5 we were able to get customers to have more access .  It was good

 6 for us.  And we paid Sun a fee to do that.  And w henever a

 7 customer would install Java on a PC, they would g et this

 8 toolbar as an option.

 9 Q. And was that a pretty favorable deal for Sun?

10 A. It was a very good deal for us and a good deal for Sun.

11 Q. Was there another product called StarOffice?  Was t hat

12 a --

13 A. StarOffice was a product that was owned by Sun, tha t they

14 also distributed as part of the toolbar.

15 Q. Okay.  So as a customer, were you in contact with

16 Mr. Schwartz on a regular basis?

17 A. Yes, quite a bit.  We did a series of announcements

18 together, that sort of thing.

19 Q. And after Google launched Android and after the SDK  was

20 out and after Mr. Schwartz' blog, did you and he continue to

21 discuss Android?

22 A. Of course.

23 Q. And did you actually meet, the two of you?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Can you tell the jury what you and Mr. Schwartz dis cussed
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 1 on the subject of Android now after the launch of  the SDK?

 2 A. Well, Jonathan's sort of core view was to make sure  that

 3 Java would be successful.  And he was happy to ha ve an

 4 additional Java partner to make the language more  successful.

 5 It benefited Sun and benefited Google.

 6 Q. Did you and he discuss Sun's building products on t op of

 7 Android?

 8 A. I'm sure we did.

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   I would like to hand the witness, Your

10 Honor, Exhibit 3466.  

11 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

12 Q. And ask, Mr. Schmidt, if you recognize Exhibit 3466 .

13 A. I do.

14 Q. What is it?

15 A. It's a mail message from me to Jonathan, copying An dy

16 Rubin.

17 Q. What's the date of 3466?

18 A. This would be March 2008.

19 Q. So this is several months after the release of the

20 developer kit?

21 A. Yes.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   I'd offer 3466 in evidence, Your

23 Honor.

24 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  Hearsay and

25 incomplete.
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 1 THE COURT:  May I see the exhibit?

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes, Your Honor.  Your Honor, this is

 3 a fairly routine e-mail sent by Mr. Schmidt to Mr . Schwartz,

 4 like the dozens we've been seeing.

 5 THE COURT:  Who's writing this?

 6 MR. VAN NEST:   Mr. Schmidt is writing it to

 7 Mr. Schwartz, who was the CEO of Sun.  And he's c opying

 8 Mr. Rubin.  And this is in March of 2008.

 9 THE COURT:  What is the incomplete objection,

10 Mr. Boies?  You said it was incomplete in some wa y?

11 MR. BOIES:   It references two other articles or

12 something.  One of them, the license itself is be ing referred

13 to.  And the other is described in the next to th e last subject

14 line of the e-mail, neither of which are attached .

15 MR. VAN NEST:   I think they were attached to the

16 original, Your Honor.  This is how this document was produced.

17 The e-mail is complete.  It references other thin gs, but this

18 is how it was produced.  And it's been on the exh ibit list for

19 a long time.

20 MR. BOIES:   It's also, Your Honor, a hearsay

21 document.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   These are links on here.  He's

23 providing links to something that Mr. Schwartz ca n get on the

24 Web.

25 THE COURT:  Has the witness testified to what
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 1 preceded this?

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   He's about to do this.

 3 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, I don't know this person, but

 4 I'm informed that this was just added to the exhi bit list in

 5 the last three days.  So I don't think it's been,  as

 6 Mr. Van Nest says, something that's been on the w itness list a

 7 long time.  And we've had --

 8 THE COURT:  Has it been on the required amount of

 9 time?

10 MR. BOIES:   Excuse me?

11 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Has this document been on the

12 list for the required length of time?

13 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.

14 MR. BOIES:   Two days.  What I'm saying is in terms of

15 completeness.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, the document is completely

17 complete.  It's just a one-page e-mail.  There's no -- he's

18 making reference to some links there, but there's  no other --

19 there's no other part of this document that I'm a ware of.

20 THE COURT:  Well, why don't, before we admit 3466,

21 lay some more foundation --

22 MR. VAN NEST:   That's fine.

23 THE COURT:  -- with respect to what it was that led

24 up to this e-mail.  And then maybe I'll let it in .

25 But, here, I'll hand it back, 3466.
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.

 2 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 3 Q. Mr. Schmidt, had you met with Mr. Schwartz earlier on the

 4 day of March 31?

 5 A. I did.

 6 Q. And the two of you had had a discussion?

 7 A. We did.

 8 Q. And would you tell the jury what you and Mr. Schwar tz

 9 talked about that morning?

10 A. I can't remember if Jonathan called me or I called him,

11 but this was after the public announcement and th e blog post

12 that we previously discussed.

13 And I went over to, basically, my old buildings a nd

14 met with Jonathan in the cafeteria.  And we had a  strategic

15 chat which talked about the details of their lice nsing approach

16 and our licensing approach, did it make sense for  -- did it

17 make sense for Sun to take some of their software  and put it on

18 top of our platform?

19 In other words, what were the strategic choices t hat

20 they were facing?  And he asked me for more techn ical details,

21 that they could then make sure that everybody was  talking.

22 I was concerned that there was miscommunication

23 between the various teams about what the choices were.

24 Q. And when you say "taking some Sun technology and pu tting

25 it on top," can you tell the jurors a little bit more about
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 1 what -- what he said on that subject?

 2 A. Well, uhm, in the Java community, we would end up w ith

 3 a -- what Sun was calling a Linux mobile part of the platform.

 4 Something -- because Sun didn't do Linux.  And th e idea was, if

 5 we're successful, perhaps there's unique technolo gy that Sun

 6 has that they could add on top of what we were do ing, because

 7 we don't have all the software and they don't hav e all the

 8 software.  And under what terms is that permissib le, and was it

 9 okay with us.  And -- and those were the question s he was

10 asking.

11 Q. And was -- go ahead.

12 A. He was exploring -- he was exploring what their cho ices

13 were to take advantage of even more Java users in  a good way.

14 Q. And was he -- did he ask you for some information d uring

15 your meeting?

16 A. He did.

17 Q. And was this e-mail an attempt to respond to that r equest?

18 A. He asked me to respond, and this e-mail is that res ponse.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I would offer 3466.

20 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, it's still hearsay.

21 THE COURT:  Well, it is hearsay, but the Court's

22 going to allow it with this admonition to the jur y, that it's

23 admitted not for the truth of any of the contents .

24 For example, this document says that something is  in

25 the public domain and so forth.  It's not admitte d for that
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 1 purpose.  This is not proof that anything is in t he public

 2 domain.  But it is allowed for you to consider wh at the

 3 communication was between this witness and Mr. Sc hwartz at Sun

 4 at the time.

 5 For that limited purpose, this is admissible.  So  the

 6 objection is sustained in part and overruled in p art.

 7 The jury will please remember that this document came

 8 in for a limited purpose.

 9 All right.  Go ahead.  You may show it to the jur y.

10 (Trial Exhibit 3466 received in evidence.) 

11 (Document displayed.) 

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Calling your attention to paragraph 1.

13 If we could highlight that first sentence.  Actua lly, let's

14 highlight the whole paragraph.

15 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

16 Q. Mr. Schmidt, the paragraph says:  

17 "Our license is Apache v2.  It is essentially

18 public domain with an additional patent

19 non-assert by Google.  Google is in no way

20 forced upon anyone.  If one of our

21 competitors wanted to remove all Google

22 functionality and insert their own, that's

23 fine.  The license doesn't require any

24 give-backs."

25 What did you tell Mr. Schwartz that day on that
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 1 subject?

 2 A. So, as I previously described, the Apache license i s

 3 particularly liberal.  By liberal, I mean that, a s a

 4 programmer, you can choose what you like and what  you don't

 5 like.

 6 In this paragraph what I'm saying is it's very

 7 liberal, you have a lot of flexibility.  There's also a patent

 8 non-assert.  We won't go after you for patent vio lations with

 9 respect to patents that we have.

10 And the second part says that if, for example, a

11 competitor of Google decided to take this, they c ould take

12 everything that was from Google that was interest ing out and

13 they could replace it with, for example, a differ ent search

14 engine, a different e-mail system and so forth.  It's perfectly

15 fine.  It's the liberal nature of this license.

16 Q. Now, the second paragraph says:  

17 "As a result, Sun will be able to take

18 Android and, quote, do whatever you like,

19 unquote, to it subject to the license.  This

20 should allow you to, for example, add Java

21 code or anything else on top of Android and

22 make it available."

23 Had you and he discussed that subject earlier tha t

24 day?

25 A. As I previously explained, Sun was trying to unders tand
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 1 whether some of its Java functionality would also  run on our

 2 platform.  And his question was a technical quest ion:  Could

 3 it?  And I didn't know because I'm not -- was not  a programmer.

 4 But, also, was it permissible?

 5 And the answer in the second paragraph is, "Yes,

 6 absolutely, if they chose to do that."

 7 Q. Did you come to learn that soon after your discussi on with

 8 Mr. Schwartz Sun actually demonstrated a product running on

 9 Android?

10 A. I heard that, yes.

11 Q. What did you learn about that?

12 A. I just heard that they had --

13 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  Foundation.

14 THE COURT:  Of course.  That's hearsay.  Disregard

15 that last hearsay.  Come on.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, this is -- let me do it

17 with an exhibit.  I have 3521.

18 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

19 Q. Take a look at 3521, Mr. Schmidt.  Tell us whether you

20 recognize it.

21 A. I do.

22 Q. What is it?

23 A. It's a e-mail message from Andy Rubin to myself.

24 Q. And the date is May of 2008?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I'd offer 3521 in

 2 evidence.

 3 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  Hearsay.

 4 THE COURT:  May I see the document?

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes, Your Honor.  I'm offering this

 6 again in the same vein, for Mr. Schmidt's state o f mind.

 7 THE COURT:  Nothing on here.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   It's just the top line, Your Honor.

 9 The subject line.  And all I intend to ask him is  what he

10 heard.

11 THE COURT:  No.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   And what he learned or not.

13 THE COURT:  This is too much hearsay.  I don't see

14 why that -- his state of mind is that important o n this point.

15 So this one, no, the answer is no.  It's hearsay.

16 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

17 Q. Now, did you continue to speak with Mr. Schwartz fr om time

18 to time following your discussion about the Apach e license?

19 A. I did.

20 Q. And did you remain a customer of Sun's?

21 A. Yes, we did.

22 Q. Approximately how often did you and Mr. Schwartz me et

23 together or talk?

24 A. We would speak or chat at least every six months.

25 Q. And in any of those meetings did Mr. Schwartz expre ss
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 1 concerns about what you were doing with Android?

 2 A. He did not.

 3 Q. In any of those meetings did he in any way suggest that it

 4 was wrong for Android to use Java APIs, or the Ja va language,

 5 or anything else?

 6 A. He did not.

 7 Q. Did he ever express disapproval in any way of Andro id?

 8 A. He did not.

 9 Q. Did he complain about anything that Android was doi ng or

10 any technology that you were using?  

11 A. He did not.

12 Q. Did he ever tell you in any of these discussions ov er this

13 period of time that you needed a license to use t he Java APIs

14 in Android?

15 A. He did not.

16 Q. Based on your contacts with Mr. Schwartz, the blog post,

17 the emails and the follow-up, did you feel that y ou understood

18 what Sun's position was with respect to Android a nd its use of

19 technology?

20 A. I did.

21 Q. What was that?

22 A. That --

23 MR. BOIES:   Objection, your Honor.

24 THE COURT:  Well, no.  I can see why this is relevant

25 and it goes to the state of mind of the company, the accused
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 1 company.

 2 So the objection is overruled.  Go ahead.

 3 THE WITNESS:  Can you repeat your question?

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   That was kind of a long one.  Can I

 5 ask that Deb re-read it?

 6 THE COURT:  "Did you feel that you understood what

 7 Sun's position was with respect to Android and it s use of

 8 technology?"  That was the question.

 9 THE WITNESS:  I did.

10 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

11 Q. Tell the jury.

12 A. I did.

13 Q. Can you tell the jury what you understood?

14 A. My understanding was that what we were doing was

15 permissible.

16 Q. And can you elaborate a little bit more on that?  W hy did

17 you feel that way?

18 A. Well, because of the sum of my experiences and

19 interactions, the briefings that I have had, I wa s very

20 comfortable that what we were doing was both lega lly correct,

21 permitted by the necessary licenses, or lack of l icenses, and

22 consistent with the policies of Sun at the time, as well as

23 obviously Google's.

24 Q. And did Mr. Schwartz ever say anything that contrad icted

25 that?
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 1 A. He did not.

 2 Q. Now, were you aware at that time of other products or

 3 platforms, implementations out on the market that  were also

 4 using the Java language and the Java APIs?

 5 A. Well, there were certainly a number.

 6 Q. And can you recall any of them as you sit here toda y?

 7 A. IBM had a large Java program.

 8 Q. What do you mean by that?

 9 A. They have a large developer program, they have thei r own

10 JVM, these sorts of things.  

11 Q. As far as you understood, was IBM also using the Ja va

12 APIs?

13 A. Yes, they were.

14 Q. And was this in much the same way as Android was us ing

15 them?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Were you aware of any objection by Sun to IBM's use  of

18 APIs?

19 MR. BOIES:   Objection, foundation.

20 THE COURT:  Well, were you in a position to know one

21 way or the other on that subject?

22 THE WITNESS:  I would have been briefed at some

23 point.

24 THE COURT:  I think this is too much hearsay.  So

25 sustained.
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 1 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

 2 Q. Apart from IBM, are you aware of any other commerci al

 3 products using the Java APIs?

 4 A. Well, again, there were many.

 5 Q. Do any of the others come to mind as you sit here?

 6 A. The mobile phone manufacturers, for example.  The

 7 developers.  It's a large ecosystem.

 8 Q. Was it your understanding that the Java APIs were i n

 9 widespread use?

10 A. Yes.  Microsoft.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I wish to make a proffer

12 at this time, but I think I should do it at sideb ar.  I would

13 like to approach briefly.

14 THE COURT:  All right.

15 (Whereupon, the following proceedings 

16  were held at sidebar.) 

17 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I proffer his testimony

18 and Exhibit 3439, which I'm handing up to your Ho nor.

19 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

20  to the Court.) 

21 MR. VAN NEST:   They have opened the door to Mr.

22 Schmidt describing, as he did, and I've got it hi ghlighted on

23 the second page.

24 In 1994, around the time that the Java language w as

25 being developed, he told Congress that APIs are n ot blueprints.
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 1 THE COURT:  Are not what?

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   Are not blueprints.  APIs are not

 3 blueprints.

 4 Now, they have been parading the word "blueprint"  up

 5 and down in front of the jury.  It was spoken a n umber of times

 6 in Mr. Jacobs' opening statement.  It was mention ed 14 times by

 7 Mr. Kurian in his examination.  Mr. Reinhold, who  was actually

 8 at Sun, said these APIs are like blueprints.

 9 Now, Mr. Schmidt has testified that he was involv ed.

10 He was one of the people responsible for the deve lopment of

11 Java and the APIs.  And the idea that they would be in here

12 representing this whole system, these APIs as blu eprints,

13 knowing that Sun's official position, which accor ding

14 Mr. Schmidt has never changed, is that APIs were not

15 blueprints.  They are not copyrightable.  They sh ould be

16 standards.  They should be out and in use.

17 And this testimony here at the bottom of Page 2, he

18 says in the second sentence:

19 "Interface specifications are merely the

20 words that describe the interface that allows

21 two components to work together or

22 inter-operate.  They are not blueprints, nor

23 recipes for actual products.  Let me repeat

24 that on.  Interface specifications are not

25 blueprints."
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 1 Now, not only that.  But they have been

 2 representing -- they did in the opening -- that o ne of the

 3 things that's wrong, that Android did wrong is it  hired people

 4 from Sun that knew Sun's licensing policies and k new darn well

 5 this was wrong.  And Mr. Schmidt is one of the pe ople whose

 6 picture was displayed to the jury in the opening as somebody

 7 who was wrong, came to Google, knew what he was d oing was

 8 wrong.

 9 So I think at this point they have opened the doo r

10 wide to his explaining what everybody at Sun unde rstood and

11 what he understood and what he publicly disclosed  to Congress

12 back in 1994 on this issue.  And he's going to sa y this policy

13 and his position never changed.

14 THE COURT:  Yes.

15 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, this was exactly the question

16 that the Court dealt with in limine.  This was a situation in

17 which what the Court said is they can ask what th e current

18 policies are even if they haven't changed.  He ca n ask what the

19 current policies are.  They have done that.  They  have

20 established, according to what this witness says he believes

21 the policies were in late 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008,  2009, 2010.

22 What they what they cannot do, for a lot of good

23 reasons, is go back to the 1990's.  What they wer e saying in

24 the 1990's was said in the context of where they were dealing

25 with Congress.  They were making arguments to Con gress what the
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 1 law should be.  They were not talking about what the law is.

 2 They were not talking about what the law is certa inly in the

 3 current time frame.

 4 The Court ruled that it would be prejudicial to t ry

 5 to confuse the record by bringing in all these st atements from

 6 the past.  I don't think that the description of what we've

 7 said about the Sun people is accurate, but what w e have been

 8 saying is that the Sun people came and they knew what the Sun

 9 technology was.  They shouldn't use those people in the clean

10 room.

11 And Mr. Jacobs knows more about what he said in t he

12 opening statement than I do, but there has been n o objection to

13 anything that's been said in the opening statemen t --

14 THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  Do you have more to go

15 over with this witness or is this your last point ?

16 MR. VAN NEST:   It's my last point on direct, your

17 Honor.

18 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, a couple of additional

19 points.

20 This is in 1994.  This is before the Application

21 Programming Interfaces at issue in this lawsuit h ave even been

22 released.  This is about interface specifications  in the

23 context of interoperability.  A very different is sue from the

24 issue here which is Google's selective taking of

25 inter-Application Programming Interfaces.  Select ive taking
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 1 which disrupts interoperability.

 2 The context is different.  It was a policy-orient ed

 3 discussion by Mr. Schmidt, and all the original r easons for

 4 your ruling very well obtain.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor --

 6 THE COURT:  Look, I don't want to go back to 1992,

 7 but hasn't he already said that they are not blue prints?

 8 Didn't he already testify to that?

 9 MR. BOIES:   He did, your Honor.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   All he said was that when he was at

11 Sun, the folks at Sun never referred to these as blueprints.

12 If your Honor would allow me to ask him whether o r

13 not APIs are blueprints, that's fine, and I can g et an

14 explanation out of him; but I didn't feel --

15 THE COURT:  All right.  You can do that.  But I don't

16 want you to -- you can do that, yes.  You can say , "Is it a

17 blueprint?"  He will say, "No."  "Why not?"  He c an explain.

18 Says, "How long have you believed that?"  "My ent ire career."

19 But he cannot mention Congress and testifying and  all that.

20 You can ask that much.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   That's great.

22 THE COURT:  But not get into this.

23 MR. VAN NEST:   That's great.

24 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.

25 (Whereupon, the following proceedings were 
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 1  held in open court, in the presence and 

 2  hearing of the jury.) 

 3 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

 4 Q. Mr. Schmidt, I just have a few more questions.  Are  APIs,

 5 Application Programming Interfaces, blueprints?

 6 A. They are not.

 7 Q. And would you tell the jury why not?

 8 A. Well, an API is the way in which you make something

 9 happen.  So an example of an API, Application Pro gram

10 Interface, would be I want to print something, or  I want to

11 print this image, or I want to show this on the s creen, or I

12 want to compute something weird like nuclear fusi on or

13 something.

14 The way you -- the way you do that is completely up

15 to the other side of the interface.  It's called an interface

16 because think of it as:  I'm here, there is an in terface, and

17 there's other work that's over here.  That other work can be

18 implemented in any way and, in fact, in any langu age that you

19 wish.  So it's not a blueprint for how to do that  at all.

20 Q. How long have you held the belief that APIs are not

21 blueprints?

22 A. Since I'm a computer scientist, so 40 years.

23 MR. VAN NEST:   We pass the witness, your Honor.

24 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's look how long we have

25 been going.  About time for a break I think.
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 1 So we will take, I think, a 15-minute break at th is

 2 time.  Please remember the admonition.

 3 (Jury exits courtroom at 10:44 a.m.) 

 4 THE COURT:  Okay.  Be seated.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Mr.  Schmidt, you can step down and

 6 stretch your legs.

 7 THE COURT:  Have a 15-minute break, too.  We need to

 8 clear the decks off the witness stand.

 9 Any issues for the Court?

10 MR. BOIES:   No, your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

12 (Whereupon there was a recess in the proceedings 

13  from 10:45 a.m. until 10:58 a.m.) 

14 THE CLERK:   Please come to order.

15 THE COURT:  Be seated.

16 Dawn, the jury is lining up ready to come in.

17 Are we ready out here?  Please be seated.  Are we

18 ready out here?

19 MR. VAN NEST:   We are, your Honor.

20 (Jury enters courtroom at 10:59 a.m.) 

21 THE COURT:  Okay, welcome back.

22 Mr. Boies, go right ahead.

23 MR. BOIES:   Thank you.  

24

25
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 1 CROSS EXAMINATION 

 2 BY MR. BOIES:  

 3 Q. In listening to your testimony a few minutes ago, I  got

 4 the impression that you were testifying to the ju ry that you

 5 had many conversations with Mr. Schwartz in which  Mr. Schwartz

 6 told you that he was comfortable with what you we re doing?

 7 Did I misunderstand that?

 8 A. We had -- we certainly had conversations where he s aid

 9 that he was comfortable with what we did.

10 Q. More than a couple, sir?

11 A. I think a couple.

12 Q. Do you have a firm recollection of when those happe ned?

13 A. They would be around the time of his web post.  

14 Q. The one in early November of 2007?

15 A. Early 2008, 2007.  So, for example, when I was at - - if I

16 may clarify?  When I met with him in May of 2008,  I believe.

17 Q. And where did you meet with him?

18 A. In the Sun cafeteria in Menlo Park.

19 Q. And in the Sun cafeteria at Menlo Park, is that whe n he

20 told you, according to your testimony to the jury , that he was

21 comfortable with what you were doing?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. When did this recollection of this meeting in the

24 cafeteria in Menlo Park come to you, sir?

25 A. I'm not sure.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page141 of 250



SCHMIDT - CROSS EXAMINATION /  BOIES   1538

 1 Q. Well, let me ask you to --

 2 MR. BOIES:   I'd like to offer as a party admission

 3 the following testimony from Lines 24 on Page 146  through 148,

 4 Line 17.

 5 THE COURT:  Is this going to be read?

 6 MR. BOIES:   From his deposition.

 7 THE COURT:  Are you going to read it?

 8 MR. BOIES:   I'm going to read it in the old-fashioned

 9 way, your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  That's perfectly okay, but please

11 remember to say "Question" and "Answer."  

12 And this is from the witness's deposition?

13 MR. BOIES:   Yes.

14 THE COURT:  What is the date of the deposition?

15 MR. BOIES:   The date of his deposition...

16 MR. VAN NEST:   August 23rd.

17 MR. BOIES:   August 23rd, your Honor, last year.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  So what you're about to hear

19 is evidence in the case, and it's a verbatim read ing of

20 testimony given by the same witness at a depositi on last year.

21 Please proceed.

22 BY MR. BOIES:  

23 Q. (As read)

24 "QUESTION: Was it your view that Sun, before

25 it was acquired by Oracle, thought that what
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 1 you were doing, what Oracle -- what Google

 2 was doing in Android did not infringe any

 3 intellectual property of Sun?  Is that what

 4 you're saying?

 5 "ANSWER: It is.  It is my opinion.  It was

 6 my opinion at the time and, therefore, it is

 7 still my opinion that at the time Sun

 8 management was comfortable that we had

 9 done -- that what we had done was free and

10 clear of any intellectual property of Sun's.

11 "QUESTION: Now, did any particular person

12 tell you that?

13 "ANSWER: Well, I spoke with Jonathan

14 Schwartz a couple of times in the preceding

15 years.  So it would be Jonathan Schwartz.

16 "QUESTION: Did anyone other than Jonathan

17 Schwartz ever tell you what -- that Sun was,

18 in your words, comfortable that what Google

19 had done in Android was free and clear of any

20 intellectual property of Sun's?

21 "ANSWER: No.  And Jonathan was the CEO

22 during this period.

23 "QUESTION: All right.  Now, when

24 Mr. Schwartz told you, as you say he did,

25 that he was comfortable that what Google had
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 1 done in Android was free and clear of any

 2 intellectual property of Sun's?  Did he do

 3 that orally or in writing or both?

 4 "ANSWER: Orally, as I recall.

 5 "QUESTION: Was anyone else present?

 6 "ANSWER: Not to my knowledge, no.

 7 "QUESTION: Where were you when he told you

 8 this?

 9 "ANSWER: I don't remember the specifics.  I

10 met with him at least once in his office at

11 Sun, and we spoke on the phone a couple of

12 times in the -- in the intervening few years.

13 "QUESTION: When you met with him in his

14 office at Sun, is that when he told you that

15 he was comfortable that what Google had done

16 in Android was free and clear of any

17 intellectual property of Sun's?

18 "ANSWER: Again, I -- since I don't remember

19 the specifics, I don't remember his exact

20 phrase nor the exact timing.  I'm describing

21 my impression of the Sun view of what we had

22 done, but I can't recall whether it was the

23 one in his office.  I certainly talked to him

24 on the phone, which is why the subsequent

25 actions were a surprise to me."
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 1 Do you stand by that testimony today, sir?

 2 A. Umm, yes.

 3 Q. Now, with respect to the question of the Apache lic ense

 4 that you mentioned, you are not asserting that Go ogle has any

 5 rights to use any Sun intellectual property as th e result of

 6 the Apache license; correct, sir?

 7 A. That is correct.

 8 Q. When you talk about the Apache license giving right s,

 9 you're talking about the Apache license giving ri ghts to people

10 other than Google, correct?

11 A. When I say that, I'm referring to anyone who is usi ng the

12 Apache license to distribute software.

13 Q. But you are not claiming that Google got any rights  under

14 the Apache license, correct?

15 A. The only rights we would get would be from somebody  who

16 used the Apache license.

17 Q. But not Sun, correct?

18 A. Well, if Sun were to do that, they would.

19 Q. But you're not in this lawsuit or in any connection  what

20 you've just testified on direct examination claim ing that any

21 of rights that you say Google has came as the res ult of the Sun

22 license --  

23 A. That is correct.

24 Q. (Continuing) -- for use in Apache?

25 A. That's correct.
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 1 Q. Now, you mentioned that a number of other companies  used

 2 Sun APIs; do you recall that?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. Are there any companies, other than Google, who are  using

 5 Sun APIs today that you know of that do not have a license from

 6 Sun?

 7 A. I am not familiar with the licensing terms that oth ers

 8 use.

 9 Q. Without necessarily being familiar with the licensi ng

10 terms others use, are you aware of any company th at's using Sun

11 APIs today, other than Google, that does not have  a license

12 from Sun?

13 A. I'm not aware of one either way.  

14 Q. Okay.  You are aware that Google does not have a li cense

15 from Sun to use Sun's APIs, correct?

16 A. Did you mean APIs?

17 Q. Yes.  And I may have misspoke.  If I did, I apologi ze.

18 What I meant to say was:  You are aware that Goog le

19 does not have a license from Sun to use Sun's API s?

20 A. Java APIs, is that what you mean?

21 Q. Yes, that is correct.

22 Q. Okay.  And by "Sun" I mean both Sun in its original

23 formation and Oracle today, you understand that?

24 A. I do.

25 Q. Now, there were a number of licenses, different kin ds of
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 1 licenses, different types of licenses that were a vailable to

 2 Google for its use of Sun's APIs, correct?  Sun's  Java APIs?

 3 A. That's correct.

 4 Q. There was something calls the GPL license, correct?

 5 A. I'm sorry.  The GPL license is a public domain lice nse.

 6 It has nothing to do with Sun or Google.

 7 Q. But Sun makes the Java APIs available under the GPL

 8 license, right?

 9 A. Under the terms of the GPL license, yes, that's cor rect.

10 Q. And so Google could have gotten a license from Sun through

11 the GPL to use the Sun APIs, correct?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. But Sun -- and Sun was -- Sun had already said that  if

14 Google would comply with the terms of the GPL lic ense, they

15 could have that license for the Java APIs, correc t?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Are you sure?

18 A. No.  The GPL license is a specific kind of license and the

19 API -- the GPL license largely covers the source code.  You

20 take a source and you say, I'm under this license  or that

21 license.  And the GPL license is somewhat differe nt, but

22 similar to the Apache license.

23 Q. But the GPL license would have given -- if Google h ad

24 taken it and accepted the terms, would have given  Google all

25 the rights to use the Sun APIs that are challenge d in this
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 1 lawsuit, correct?

 2 A. I would have to have a technical expert answer that

 3 question precisely.  It depends on what's include d in the

 4 Java -- it includes -- that's a question to ask a  Sun person

 5 about what they covered in the GPL license.

 6 Q. Well, let's take a Google person, Mr. Rubin.

 7 Did you ever ask Mr. Rubin whether the GPL licens e

 8 would work for Sun or not?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And what did he say?

11 A. I believe the answer is, we chose to use the Apache

12 license instead.

13 Q. And that's because the GPL license would not work?

14 A. Again, there are differences -- there are differenc es in

15 approach that are relatively minor.

16 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, your Honor?

17 THE COURT:  You may.

18  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

19   to the witness.) 

20 BY MR. BOIES:  

21 Q. I'll hand you several exhibits so I don't have to k eep

22 coming back up here.  Let's start with Exhibit 15 4.

23 MR. BOIES:   Exhibit 154 is already in evidence.

24 (Document displayed) 

25
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 1 BY MR. BOIES:  

 2 Q. Do you see where Andy Rubin wrote:

 3 "GPL license, Sun's license doesn't work for

 4 us."

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. Did he ever tell that you in words or in substance?

 7 A. I'm sure that he did.

 8 Q. Now, with respect to the issue of whether other peo ple,

 9 other than Mr. Schwartz, had ever talked to you a bout what

10 Google was doing, I'd like to ask you to look at a document

11 that's already in evidence, which is Trial Exhibi t 1048.

12 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, your Honor?

13 THE COURT:  You may.

14  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

15   to the witness.) 

16 BY MR. BOIES:  

17 Q. Now, this is a publication on or about November 15t h, 2007

18 where it says:

19 "Sun concerned Google's Android will fracture

20 Java."  

21 Do you see that?

22 A. I do.

23 Q. Did you see this news report at or about the time i t came

24 out?

25 A. I did not.
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 1 Q. Did you see any news reports at or about this time that

 2 noted that Sun was concerned that Google's Androi d will

 3 fracture Java?  

 4 A. I have no recollection of any.

 5 Q. Now, I want to get the chronology straight for the jury.

 6 You announced the Android product on -- was it No vember 5?

 7 A. Uh-huh.

 8 Q. And at that time you did not release the SDK, corre ct?

 9 A. I thought we released it right thereafter.

10 Q. Released it later, you're saying?

11 A. But very soon thereafter.

12 Q. But not before Mr. Schwartz put his blog up; correc t, sir?

13 A. I'll have to rely on your assertion.

14 Q. Okay.  And after Google did release the SDK -- and you

15 have to have the SDK to know what APIs are in the re, right?

16 A. Yes, that's roughly correct.

17 Q. So after they released the SDK, which told people w hat

18 APIs were out there, then you had this exhibit pu blished in

19 November 15th, correct, where it says:  

20 "Sun concerned Google's Android will fracture

21 Java."

22 A. I see that.

23 Q. Now, let's talk about the Sun APIs.

24 You said that you need APIs in order to use a

25 language in a meaningful way, correct?
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 1 A. That is correct.

 2 Q. Now, did Google need to use Sun's APIs in order to use the

 3 Java programming language?

 4 A. There's no difference between Sun's APIs and the Ja va APIs

 5 in the way you phrased your question.  The langua ge and the

 6 APIs are the -- that is the interfaces.  You need  both in order

 7 to make effective use of a platform.

 8 Q. Well, let me approach it this way.

 9 A. Okay.

10 Q. Are you aware of companies that use the Java progra mming

11 language, but don't use any of the APIs that Sun developed?

12 A. I'm not aware of any uses of Java that can do anyth ing

13 interesting without the use of the APIs that Sun developed -- 

14 Q. Let me be sure --

15 A. (Continuing) -- at least some of them.

16 Q. Let me be sure that we're not missing question/answ er on

17 the word "interesting."

18 Are you aware of any company that uses the Java

19 programming language to do useful significant thi ngs without

20 relying on the APIs that Sun produced?

21 A. As far as I know, every use of Java uses APIs that were

22 developed by Sun as part of Java.

23 You may be referring to libraries and their

24 implementation, which can be from other sources.  

25 Q. Are you familiar with a company in the United Kingd om
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 1 called Spring?  Spring?

 2 A. Vaguely.

 3 Q. You don't know what they do?

 4 A. No, I do not.

 5 Q. Did anybody tell you about what Mr. Ellison's testi mony

 6 was in this Court about what they did?

 7 A. He -- no one has spoken with me about any testimony  during

 8 this trial.

 9 Q. Did Google undertake any effort to determine whethe r it

10 would be possible to use the Java programming lan guage without

11 using Sun's Java APIs?

12 A. I'm not aware of any.

13 Q. From the very beginning of the Android project, you

14 intended to use the Java programming language, co rrect?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Did you also plan to use Sun's Java APIs?

17 A. Again, as I said a couple of times here, the langua ge

18 without the interfaces is not useful in my view, in my

19 understanding, and you need a basic set of APIs i n order to

20 make it useful, and that was our plan.

21 Q. And the basic APIs that you planned to use to make the

22 language useful were the Sun Java APIs, correct?

23 A. In the same way that Sun has developed Java, the la nguage.

24 The distinction there is language -- language int erface and

25 library.
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 1 Q. And you know what an API is, correct?

 2 A. Of course.  Absolutely.

 3 Q. Now, and API is a term that a lot of people use.  M aybe

 4 not people like me, but people like you and peopl e in your

 5 industry.

 6 A. Yes.  It has a very precise meaning.

 7 Q. And when I talk about Sun Java APIs, at least in th is

 8 context, you know I'm talking about the 37 partic ular Sun Java

 9 APIs that are used in Android, correct?

10 A. I understand that's what you're referring to, yes.

11 Q. Okay.  Now, you're not saying that Google needed al l 37 of

12 the Sun Java APIs that Android uses in order to m ake the Java

13 programming language useful; are you, sir?

14 A. Well, my understanding of what was needed was a suf ficient

15 set to get useful work done, and I was told that this 37 was

16 roughly the right number.

17 Q. So you were told by somebody that Google had to use  all 37

18 of these Sun Java APIs in order to make the Java programming

19 language useful; is that what you're saying?

20 A. Umm, I don't recall a specific conversation of this  level

21 of technical detail.

22 Q. Who would that conversation have been with?

23 A. The people inside of Google would have been the tec hnical

24 people under Andy Rubin.

25 Q. Not Mr. Rubin himself?
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 1 A. Andy would have been involved was well.

 2 Q. Insofar as you're aware, as the chief executive off icer,

 3 did Google ever make any effort to develop its ow n APIs instead

 4 of using the Sun Java APIs for any of the 37?

 5 I understand that you say you need some.  I'm say ing,

 6 you took 37.  Did you ever make an effort to dete rmine whether

 7 you need to take all 37?

 8 A. I'm having trouble understanding your question, bec ause I

 9 don't agree with the way in which you're using th e word

10 interface and I want to answer it truthfully.

11 Q. Okay.  I want you to answer it truthfully.

12 You have 37 June Java APIs that Google took and u sed

13 in Android, correct?

14 A. An interface is a specification, that's a name.  It 's

15 a.b.c, paren, whatever, and there's a collection of those that

16 form the standard that Java uses, the Java langua ge and the

17 libraries.

18 We, Google, implemented those interfaces in our o wn

19 way, which I've said earlier.

20 Q. Just to be clear, you copied the 37 Sun Java API

21 specifications, correct?

22 A. We used -- we used the interface names, which is ho w one

23 does this, and then we did our own implementation  of those

24 services.

25 Q. You say your own implementation.  Maybe you are, bu t let

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page154 of 250



SCHMIDT - CROSS EXAMINATION /  BOIES   1551

 1 me just ask you directly:  Are you saying that th e only thing

 2 that you copied from the Sun Java APIs were just the names?

 3 That's all you copied?

 4 A. Well, again --

 5 Q. Is that what you're saying?

 6 A. My understanding --

 7 Q. Just "yes" or "no" to start, and then you can give the

 8 explanation.

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. That's what you're saying?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And do you want to make an explanation?

13 A. Well, I would.

14 Q. You don't have to, but only if you feel --

15 THE COURT:  He's asking, did you want to add an

16 explanation to the word "yes."

17 THE WITNESS:  Maybe we should continue with your

18 questions.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.  Next question.

20 BY MR. BOIES:  

21 Q. Okay.  How much of the Sun's specification of these  37

22 Java APIs do you think that Google copied?

23 A. Again, subject to your phrasing, I'm trying to be

24 technically correct.  As I understand it, the imp lementation

25 used the APIs, the 37 or so, and we did our own i mplementation.
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 1 I don't know the technical details beyond that.

 2 Q. Well, you're familiar with the fact that you went o ut and

 3 you hired somebody to write code, correct?  Noser ?

 4 A. I'm not.

 5 Q. You're not?

 6 A. Noser is a person or a company?

 7 Q. Let me ask you to look at Trial Exhibit 30.

 8 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, your Honor?

 9 THE COURT:  Yes.

10  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

11   to the witness.) 

12 BY MR. BOIES:  

13 Q. This may be something that people didn't tell you, but I

14 just want to ask you.

15 This is a statement of work to be done by Noser

16 Engineering for Google.

17 (Document displayed) 

18 Q. It's dated March 28th, 2007.  Do you see that?

19 A. I do.

20 Q. Did anyone ever tell you that Google had hired Nose r to do

21 this work for Android?

22 A. I don't recall.

23 Q. Did you ever hear anybody describe Noser as being s uper

24 shady?

25 A. No.
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 1 Q. Never saw any documents within Google that describe d them

 2 that way; is that your testimony?

 3 A. Not that I can recall, no.

 4 Q. This may not -- if you have never seen this, you ma y or

 5 may not be able to answer this, but let me ask yo u to look at

 6 page six of the exhibit, where it says "Package/L ibrary List,

 7 Java Library."  Do you see that?

 8 A. I do.

 9 Q. And it says:

10 "Google is interested in compatibility with

11 J2SE 1.5."

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And did you understand that that's what Google was doing

14 in terms of developing its Android operating syst em?

15 A. I was not involved in that level of detail, so the answer

16 is no.

17 Q. It then goes on to say:

18 "The libraries will support the available

19 implementations for the codecs and other

20 basic libraries of."

21 And then it lists what are probably 37.  I haven' t

22 counted them here, but approximately 37.  Do you see that?

23 A. I do.

24 Q. And is that your understanding of the way Google wa s going

25 about developing its Android operating system?
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 1 A. As I said, I don't know that -- I was not briefed, nor am

 2 I familiar with the technical details at this lev el.

 3 Q. Let me go to another subject, and this has to do wi th

 4 Trial Exhibit 1 that you have up there.  And you' ll recall that

 5 Mr. Van Nest asked you about Page 9.

 6 (Document displayed) 

 7 Q. And you said you hadn't read this before or hadn't seen it

 8 before, but you said the way you would understand  this when it

 9 said, "Must take license from Sun" --

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. (Continuing) -- that you were talking about a trade mark

12 license; is that what you said, sir?

13 A. Well, again, I want to be careful not to speculate since I

14 don't recall seeing this document.

15 Q. I'm just trying to probe what you said to him.

16 A. What I said to him was I would combine the second a nd the

17 third sentences.

18 Q. Let me just see how you come out when you combine i t.

19 When it says, "Must take license from Sun," you k new

20 that that was a license for more than just tradem arks; correct,

21 sir?

22 A. No.

23 Q. You didn't know that?

24 A. No.

25 Q. Well, where it says:  
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 1 "Proposal:  Google/Android, with support from

 2 Tim Lindholm, negotiates the first OSS, J2ME

 3 JVM license with Sun."

 4 Do you see that?

 5 A. I do.

 6 Q. That's not a trademark license, is that, sir?

 7 A. Yes, that is not a trademark license.

 8 Q. That is not a trademark license.

 9 So right after saying, "Must take license from Su n,"

10 they propose what is, at least in part, a copyrig ht license;

11 correct, sir?

12 A. Well, again, the way --

13 Q. Could I start with a "yes" or "no" and then you can

14 explain if you need to?

15 A. I believe the answer is no.

16 Q. Okay.

17 A. They -- the trademark license is -- it was and is p ossible

18 to license the Java trademark without the code.

19 Q. That's not my question.

20 A. I understand.

21 Q. I'm not talking about whether it's possible to lice nse the

22 trademark without the code.

23 A. Yes.  It is true, which I think is what your questi on --

24 you're asking me about; is that if you get an OSS  J2ME JVM

25 license, you also get a trademark license.
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 1 Q. But the OSS J2ME JVM license, that is something tha t gets

 2 you a copyright license; correct, sir?

 3 A. I don't know the details, but it would be -- you wo uld

 4 need a -- you would get a copyright license, but you would also

 5 get a license to all the source code.

 6 Q. You would get more than a copyright license?

 7 A. Right.  But the copyright is a small component in t hat

 8 deal.  There's a large amount of software that co mes with it.

 9 Q. It is -- copyright may be large or small, but it's a lot

10 larger than the trademark license that comes with  that

11 particular license; correct, sir?

12 You don't go get an OSS J2ME JVM license if all

13 you're interested in is the trademark.  Would you  agree with me

14 at least on that?

15 A. I think we're -- I would be speculating on the inte nt of

16 this page on a document I haven't seen.  I can tr y, if you

17 like.

18 Q. Have you given me the best answer you can?

19 A. I'm --

20 Q. I'm not asking you to speculate.  I'm just trying t o probe

21 things that you said to Mr. Van Nest.

22 A. I'm say yes to your question.

23 Q. Okay.  Let me talk about -- you know what a TCK lic ense

24 is, don't you?

25 A. I actually do not.
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 1 Q. You do not?

 2 A. Because the TCK term was invented after I was at Su n.

 3 Q. So when you were at Sun, they didn't have TCK licen ses;

 4 Is that what you are saying?

 5 A. It is a different structure.

 6 Q. It may have been a different structure, but my ques tion

 7 is:  Did they have TCK licenses while you were at  Sun?

 8 A. What does "TCK" stand for?

 9 Q. Do you know what TCK stands for, sir?

10 A. I don't recall.  I actually don't.

11 Q. Okay.

12 A. Trademark Compatibility License.

13 Q. Test Compatibility Kit.

14 A. We're talking over 20 years, things change.

15 Q. But going more recently than 20 years.  Going to th e time

16 that you were at Google, did people talk to you a bout TCK

17 licenses?

18 A. Not in a specific enough way for me to know the det ails.

19 Q. Let me ask you to look at Exhibit 3, that I think y ou have

20 up there.

21 (Document displayed) 

22 Q. This is a document that's in evidence.  And if you go to

23 the third page -- and this is a document that And y Rubin sent

24 to Tim Lindholm.

25 And it says:
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 1 "Requirements:  Google needs a TCK license."

 2 Do you see that?

 3 A. I do.

 4 Q. Did Mr. Rubin or anybody tell you that?

 5 A. I don't recall.

 6 Q. Let me go to Trial Exhibit 7.  Do you have that up there?

 7 Trial Exhibit 7?

 8 A. Go ahead.  

 9 (Document displayed)                                     

10 Q. And this is down at the bottom, an email from Andy Rubin

11 to Larry Page.

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. October 11th, 2005, where it says:

14 "My proposal is we take a license that

15 specifically grants the right for us to Open

16 Source our product."  

17 Do you see that?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. That's not a trademark license, is it, sir?

20 A. Again, this was not a message or email trail I was on.

21 The TCK license would be a test and compatibility

22 license, which will allow you to state that you'r e compatible.

23 I don't know whether the TCK includes a copyright  license or

24 not.

25 Q. Do you know whether or not -- you know that one of the
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 1 kinds of licenses that Sun offered was a specific ation license;

 2 did you know that?

 3 A. Again, I'm not familiar with the specific Sun licen ses

 4 that were available.

 5 Q. Did you know what the requirements of a Sun specifi cation

 6 license for Java or Java APIs were?

 7 A. Not in any detail.

 8 Q. Did you know that generally they required that the person

 9 getting the license pass a TCK test?

10 A. No, but I would have assumed that that was one of t heir

11 licensing requirements.

12 Q. And you do know that Sun charged people for the TCK s,

13 correct?

14 A. I don't know the details.

15 Q. But you know enough about -- even without knowing a ny of

16 the details, do you know enough about the fact th at is one of

17 the way that Sun has made money?

18 A. Well, the exhibits which I see now imply that, so I 'll

19 just say yes.

20 Q. Now, there came a time when Google was sufficiently

21 worried about being sued that it thought about bu ying all the

22 rights to Java; correct, sir?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And this was in 2009, correct?

25 A. If I could modify that.  I'm not sure what you mean t by

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page163 of 250



SCHMIDT - CROSS EXAMINATION /  BOIES   1560

 1 "Google."  Did you mean the executives?

 2 Q. Yes, the executives at Google.

 3 A. Did you mean there was a proposal?

 4 Q. Well, there was a proposal, including to you as the  CEO;

 5 correct, sir?

 6 A. Yeah.

 7 Q. And you thought it was worth pursuing, correct?

 8 A. I'm always open to trying anything that -- to make

 9 progress.

10 Q. And you certainly didn't want to be sued over your use of

11 Java, correct?

12 A. That's correct.

13 Q. Let me ask you to look at Exhibit 406.

14 MR. BOIES:   May I approach, your Honor?

15  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

16   to the witness.) 

17 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

18 BY MR. BOIES:  

19 Q. And this is in evidence.

20 (Document displayed) 

21 Q. And this is an email to you from a Brett Slatkin?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And this is in January of 2009, correct?

24 A. Uh-huh.  Yes.

25 Q. And it talks about a proposal to buy the full right s to
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 1 Java from Sun as a means of solving the lawsuits that Google is

 2 facing.  Do you see that?

 3 A. I do.

 4 Q. And you said in response:

 5 "Certainly, a clever idea.  I'll ask our

 6 people to pursue.  In my experience, Sun

 7 views Java as its identity. (Remember they

 8 renamed their stock symbol), so it's

 9 unlikely, but you never know."  

10 What was your response, correct?

11 A. That is correct.

12 MR. BOIES:   No more questions, your Honor.

13 I apologize.  Apparently, we're all asleep, your

14 Honor.  I'm told that Exhibit 406 is not in evide nce.  If so, I

15 would offer it and I apologize for using it befor e it was

16 offered.

17 MR. VAN NEST:   Objection.  No foundation.

18 THE COURT:  May I see 406?

19 (Document displayed) 

20 THE COURT:  May I see it?

21 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

22  to the Court.) 

23 MR. BOIES:   This is a document from one Google person

24 to another Google person.

25 THE COURT:  Is it from the witness on the stand?
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 1 MR. BOIES:   Yes.

 2 THE COURT:  Objection overruled.  406 is received.

 3 (Trial Exhibit 406 received 

 4  in evidence) 

 5 MR. BOIES:   No more questions, your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  So please let's go to the redirect.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   May I proceed, your Honor?

 8 THE COURT:  You may.  

 9 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

11 Q. Mr. Schmidt, I just want to get some terms clear in

12 everyone's mind.

13 Did Google need a license of any kind to use the Java

14 language?

15 A. Google did not.

16 Q. Why not?

17 A. Well, for many reasons.  In general, languages are usable

18 just because they are under the -- languages are essentially in

19 the public domain or have been released.  In the case of Sun

20 since its beginning, the whole strategy was to ha ve the

21 language used by everybody, so Sun gave permissio n.  There was

22 never any issue.

23 Q. And with respect to the APIs -- now I want to be pr ecise

24 here.  I'm not talking about the libraries with s ource code.

25 I'm talking about the APIs.
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 1 Did Google need a license of any kind from anyone  to

 2 use the APIs?

 3 MR. BOIES:   Objection, your Honor.  Calls for a legal

 4 conclusion.  And lack of foundation.

 5 THE COURT:  Sustained.

 6 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

 7 Q. In your view, and based on your understanding, did you at

 8 Google need a license from anyone of any kind of any type to

 9 use the Java APIs?

10 MR. BOIES:   Lack of foundation, your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  Sustained.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, this witness has testified

13 that he was at Sun, understood the licensing sche me.

14 THE COURT:  We have gone over this, and he's not a

15 lawyer.  We've seen documents in-house saying we need a

16 license.  We have seen -- there has been various explanations,

17 but this is just too raw a legal question and it' s not

18 permissible.

19 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

20 Q. Now, Mr. Schmidt, with respect to the code in the

21 libraries, the source code in the libraries, what  was your

22 understanding about your ability to use those wit h or without a

23 license?

24 MR. BOIES:   Objection, your Honor, foundation.

25 THE COURT:  Well --
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   I think, your Honor, I want to  just

 2 clear up what language and what words we're using .  That's what

 3 I'm trying to accomplish.

 4 THE COURT:  Well, I will allow this line of questions

 5 if you will do it in a slightly different way, wh ich is as

 6 follows.  

 7 I'm not sure, possibly the jury is not sure, but it

 8 sounds like you're drawing a distinction between the

 9 declaration that calls up the implementing code t hat -- of an

10 API.  In other words, you're distinguishing betwe en the

11 implementing code versus the organizational struc ture.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Absolutely I am.

13 THE COURT:  I don't know.  That's possibly right,

14 possibly wrong.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   That's exactly right.

16 THE COURT:  But I promise you I didn't -- it's just

17 coming into me kind of sideways in my brain that maybe that's

18 the distinction you're drawing, and I'm sure that  there is at

19 least one person on the jury that may be as far b ack as I am on

20 this.  So I think that point ought to be explaine d and

21 developed, if at all.

22 But there is a related point.  If it is true that

23 nobody's permission was needed to use the APIs, h ow come they

24 had they had a clean room?  I think that ought to  -- this

25 witness said earlier that he didn't need anybody' s permission
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 1 and, yet, there was a clean room.  So how do thos e two get

 2 reconciled.

 3 I'm going to invite you to ask questions to clear  up

 4 both of those points.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   We'll do it, your Honor.  Thank you.

 6 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

 7 Q. Let's talk about making these distinctions, Mr. Sch midt.

 8 Let me ask you first to explain to the jury what' s

 9 the difference between the language and the API a nd the

10 implementing source code in the library?  What ar e those three

11 things and how are they different?

12 A. Again, I apologize for the complexity of some of th is.

13 Let me give you the simplest possible answer whic h is taught in

14 the first -- the first year of computer science.  So all

15 computer scientists would all understand this.

16 You have a number and you've calculated it.  So 

17 the number is 5.  Okay?  And that's the number th at we care

18 about for some, who knows, reason.  And we want t o print it.

19 So we write, you know, "2 + 3 = X."  And then we say, "Print

20 X."

21 Now, the print, when you say "print," you're call ing

22 an applications procedure interface -- Applicatio ns Program

23 Interface.  That's what an API is.  So the word " Print,"

24 p-r-i-n-t, is kind of what I'm asking it to do.  That's the

25 interface.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page169 of 250



SCHMIDT - REDIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1566

 1 Q. That's the API?

 2 A. That is the API.

 3 Q. Okay.

 4 A. So my calculations yielded 5.  That's my programmin g.  I'm

 5 the programmer.  And then Print.  And then the Pr int does

 6 something involving a lot of code that causes it to show upon

 7 the printer.  That's the implementation.

 8 Q. Okay.  When you say "a lot of code," what do you me an?

 9 A. That means somebody wrote a large amount of program ming

10 that takes the 5 and puts it on little dots on th e page and

11 moves the printer around.  It's very complicated.

12 Now, if I, as a programmer, had to do that every time

13 I wanted to print anything, I would spend my enti re life

14 learning everything about printers.  But this nic e company or

15 nice gentleman or whatever did this as a piece of  code and

16 says, All you have to do is tell me to print and I'll take care

17 of the rest.

18 That's maybe the simplest way to understand the

19 distinction.

20 Q. Okay.

21 A. Now -- and that then sets up the answer to the judg e's

22 question, I think.

23 Q. And in answer to the judge's question, if the langu age is

24 free and the APIs are free, what are you doing in  a clean room

25 and why do you need a clean room?
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 1 A. So using this print example.  Let's say, that I wan t to

 2 print and you guys -- I'm negotiating with you an d you want to

 3 charge me a lot of money to use your print subsys tem that

 4 you -- and you love it and so forth.  Well, perha ps, I could

 5 make my own.  Hire my own engineers.

 6 Q. And what's your own?  What is this you're making?

 7 A. I'm making my own code to take the 5 and put it on the

 8 printer and move the printer around and all that.

 9 Q. And you call that the implementing code?

10 A. That's called the implementing code.

11 Q. So, please continue.

12 A. So I would want to make sure that my team did not u se any

13 of your knowledge of printers and things like tha t.  All I'm

14 doing is saying, "Print."  I say, "Print 5."

15 But then my team is in the clean room and they

16 independently figure out a way to move the ribbon  around and

17 put the dots on, so forth and so on.  That's what  the term

18 "clean room" refers to.

19 Q. Which one of these elements, the language, the API or the

20 implementing source code, are the Google engineer s creating in

21 the clean room?

22 A. Google implemented what you are referring to as

23 implementing source code in the clean room, which  is Google --

24 it's owned by the Google corporation.

25 Q. And that is now part of Android?
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 1 A. And Google chose to put it under a license which al lows it

 2 to be very freely used, but we could have chosen not to.

 3 Q. And that's the Apache license?

 4 A. That is correct.

 5 Q. Now, in any of your discussions with Mr. Schwartz, did the

 6 subject of Google's use of APIs or language in pa rticular come

 7 up?

 8 In other words, did anybody say, "Oh, you're usin g

 9 the APIs," or "You're using the language."  Was t hat even

10 discussed?

11 A. No.  As I previously said, they were extremely awar e of

12 our use of the interfaces.

13 Q. The interfaces, the APIs, those were published when  you

14 put the SDK out in 2007?

15 A. That's correct.

16 Q. Now, eventually did you put the source code out?

17 A. We also did.

18 Q. When did that happen?

19 A. I'm not sure of the date, but it's perhaps a year l ater.

20 Q. And that -- would that have been a connection with

21 launching a phone, for example?

22 A. Yes, approximately.

23 Q. And why do you make the source code that the Google

24 engineers wrote in the clean room, why do you mak e that public?

25 A. Well, our strategy was to be as liberal and as open  as

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page172 of 250



SCHMIDT - REDIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1569

 1 possible, to get as many people to use our platfo rm.  And if we

 2 publish all the source that we independently deve loped, we

 3 think people are more likely to use it.

 4 They are, frankly, also likely to find bugs in it .

 5 Help us strengthen the community.  Many programme rs took that

 6 source and then they modified it and so forth.

 7 Q. And companies can take it, too?

 8 A. Anyone on the planet.

 9 Q. Is that what you're referring to when you talked ab out

10 Kindle in your direct exam?

11 A. Yes, as an example.

12 Q. They are using the source code that Google created?

13 A. Yes, of course.

14 Q. Along with the APIs and the language as well?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Now, once the source code is public, anybody can ac cess it

17 and look at it?

18 A. Yes, that's correct.

19 Q. It's somewhere on a website?

20 A. Yes.  It's actually on a series of websites and ava ilable

21 globally to everyone in the world.

22 Q. Did -- in any of your discussions with Mr. Schwartz  or

23 Mr. McNealy or any of the folks at Sun, did anyon e ever say,

24 "Gee, I think your source code is a copy of our s ource code"?

25 A. No.
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 1 Q. Has anyone ever made that claim before this lawsuit

 2 started?

 3 A. No.

 4 Q. And that source code has been available since at le ast

 5 2008?

 6 A. Yes.  I'd say at least three to four years.

 7 Q. And what is it about your experience that caused yo u to

 8 believe in 2006 that you were free to use both th e language and

 9 the APIs?

10 A. Well --

11 MR. BOIES:   Objection, your Honor.

12 THE COURT:  Sustained.  I -- he can't add anything to

13 what he has already said without it sounding like  he's giving a

14 legal opinion.  So the objection is sustained.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Let's put 406 back on the screen,

16 please.

17 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

18 Q. I think you have 406 up this in front of you Mr. Sc hmidt?

19 A. I do.

20 (Document displayed) 

21 Q. And let's start with the text from the bottom from

22 Mr. Slatkin.  Do you know who Mr. Slatkin is?  

23 A. I do not.

24 Q. I take it he's a Google employee?

25 A. This email would indicate that he is a programmer i n the
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 1 Google app engine team.  That's how I would inter pret this.

 2 Q. But he's not someone that you know?

 3 A. I do not know him.

 4 Q. And he makes a reference to buying Java from Sun.  Did

 5 Google ever seriously explore that?

 6 A. No.

 7 Q. You thought that was unrealistic?

 8 A. Well, as you see my response above, I asked people to

 9 think about it, but I don't think anything happen ed.

10 Q. Now, the sentence right after the one that is highl ighted

11 talks about cost.  And then it says -- 

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Let's do the next one there, Ben,

13 after that.  

14 (Document displayed)                                     

15 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

16 Q. (As read)

17 "We could turn it into an open foundation and

18 solve all these lawsuits we're facing."

19 Did you have any idea what he was talking about?

20 A. I do not -- I did not.

21 Q. Do you have any idea what lawsuits, if any, Google was

22 facing in 2009?

23 A. I'm not -- I was not aware of any in this area.

24 Q. Do you have any idea whether Mr. Slatkin has anythi ng to

25 do with the Android team at Google?
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 1 A. The Google app engine is -- team is not part of Jav a,

 2 or -- sorry.  To be precise.  The Google app engi ne team is not

 3 part of the Android team at Google.

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, I have nothing further.  

 5 Before Mr. Schmidt is excused, however, I would l ike

 6 to make one request of the Court outside the jury 's presence.

 7 MR. BOIES:   I have one area of questioning.  It will

 8 be brief.

 9 THE COURT:  Before you do that, can you put upon the

10 easel that diagram that an earlier witness drew, whose name I

11 now do not recall?

12 (Demonstrative displayed)                                     

13 MR. VAN NEST:   Mr. Bloch, your Honor.  Josh Bloch.

14 THE COURT:  Is that it?

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.

16 THE COURT:  Can you see that -- I'm talking now to

17 the witness.

18 Can you see that easel?

19 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I can.

20 THE COURT:  Before I ask you my question, does that

21 make any sense to you?  In other words, can you f igure out what

22 he was trying to draw there?

23 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  This is a package using

24 java.lang.  It's a Public class involving Math.  It returns a

25 result which is a comparison of the first and sec ond argument,
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 1 whichever one is larger.

 2 THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, good.  You got basically

 3 what he said.

 4 Now, I just am trying to understand your earlier

 5 testimony where you were drawing a distinction in  your print

 6 example.

 7 I understood your print example, but I want you t o

 8 tell us using this example which part would be th e API, which

 9 part would be the implementation, and then also t ell us what

10 role the declaration plays, because we have -- we  didn't hear

11 the word "declaration" in your testimony a minute  ago.

12 So please help us on that.

13 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I understand that it's confusing.

14 The print example is one that was, the first one that

15 was used in the 1970's.  This is a more modern ve rsion of the

16 same kind of thing.

17 So this page -- and, again, I was not here for hi s

18 testimony, so he would be more accurate than I --  it's a

19 description of a way to make a comparison of some thing.  So

20 that's what a package is.  And it's a Math -- it' s called Math,

21 right?  So that's the name.  And you can see the word "name"

22 there.  And you can see it says the word "max," m -a-x.  This is

23 a max of something, okay?  So that would be like print.  I want

24 to sort of do print.

25 Now, in order to print, you have to tell it to
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 1 compare two things.  So that's the arg1 and arg2,  which are

 2 integers, i-n-t.  So the declaration is, in their  terms, is

 3 still part of that applications interface because  you need

 4 that.  You need to say, "What am I printing?"  

 5 So the analogy in print is, I'd say, "Print 5."

 6 Well, "Print 5" is a number.  That's like an inte ger.  And

 7 everything that's below the word "declaration" th ere, "If arg1

 8 greater than arg2 return arg1 else return arg2," that's the

 9 implementation.

10 So in the simple example that I used earlier, the

11 bottom part that begins with "If" would be propri etary to

12 whoever wrote it, and the stuff above would be --  that would be

13 the implementing code.  And the stuff above it wo uld be the

14 interface.  

15 THE WITNESS:  Is that helpful, your Honor?

16 THE COURT:  I'm just trying to understand, put this

17 in the context of your earlier testimony.

18 Now, in your example you said you wanted to use t he

19 word "Print 5" or "Print X plus Y."  And we all u nderstood that

20 part.

21 But if you were using this example and writing a

22 program that would do this, what command would yo u put on

23 the -- in your program to make it call up this co de?

24 THE WITNESS:  The name of this procedure is called

25 max.  You see the m-a-x?  That's like the word "p rint."
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 1 THE COURT:  Right.  I understand that.

 2 THE WITNESS:  So in my -- let's say that instead of

 3 my print example, I wanted to find the maximum of  two numbers.

 4 So in my code I would just say, in this case, jav a.lang.max, or

 5 something like that, (1, 2) and it would then ret urn -- I would

 6 say equals, you know, the result.

 7 THE COURT:  All right.  So you would say "X equals

 8 java.lang.Math.max(1, 2)" and then X would wind u p being 2.

 9 THE WITNESS:  Again, to be completely precise you

10 would say, the result X equals the maximum, m-a-x , or procedure

11 to max, paren, and then the list of things you wa nted to

12 compare.  

13 THE COURT:  All right.  So your view is the name part

14 you thought you were freely able to use, but the implementation

15 part was proprietary.

16 Did I hear you have say that?

17 THE WITNESS:  That is correct.  And in this

18 formulation the declaration would also need to be  part of the

19 name because you need to know what -- you need to  know what to

20 put with the name.

21 THE COURT:  What role does the declaration serve?

22 THE WITNESS:  Let me give you an example of the word.  

23 The print example.  How do I know what I'm feedin g to

24 the print thing?  I have to tell it what I'm givi ng it.  I told

25 you I was printing the digit 5.  The more general  form is I'm
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 1 printing a variable.  And the variable can vary, can be

 2 anything.  So I have to know that it prints an in teger or it

 3 prints a floating point number, those sorts of th ings.

 4 It may be easier, your Honor, if I said that the "if

 5 else," that's this gentleman's way of telling if something is

 6 bigger than the other.

 7 But let's say I came up with a different way of

 8 comparison two numbers.  Well, that would be okay , too.  That

 9 would be my invention as opposed to his.  That's why the

10 implementing -- you could have multiple implement ations for the

11 same interface.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Can I put that in a little context?

13 THE COURT:  I'm done.  Go ahead.  This is coming out

14 of your time, though.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Oh, wait.  Whoa, whoa, whoa, whoa,

16 whoa.

17 (Laughter.) 

18 MR. VAN NEST:   If you told me that, I would have

19 objected to the question.

20 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

21 Q. Just to put a point on it, Mr. Schmidt, before we f inish

22 up.  It's your understanding, in response to Judg e Alsup's

23 questions, the API that you're talking about bein g in the

24 public domain is the name and the declaration tha t's part of it

25 that's all above this black line, right?
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 1 A. That is correct.

 2 Q. And that's what -- that's what was, in your view,

 3 available and out there in the public domain for anyone to use?

 4 A. Yes.  And the way you can see that is that in order  to

 5 have another implementation, you have to have the  name and the

 6 declaration to start with.  Without the declarati on, you don't

 7 know anything about what you're calling.  You hav e to have

 8 both.  And then you can write whatever you want t o below, and

 9 that's the proprietary work of whoever wrote it.

10 Q. Right.  So when we're talking about a class library  or the

11 source code in the class library or the implement ation in the

12 class library, that's the stuff down here below t he black line

13 in the orange highlighted?

14 A. That's correct.

15 Q. And that's why you would need a clean room to build

16 this --

17 A. Right.

18 Q. (Continuing) -- source code implementation?

19 A. An example to give you.  Let's say I violently disa greed

20 with this formulation for comparison and I decide d to build my

21 own clean room.  

22 Now that I've seen this, I would be unclean becau se I

23 would know the implementation.  I'd have to hire somebody

24 completely else to do it in a different way to ma ke sure I

25 don't get that information.
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 1 Q. Now, going back to your negotiations in '05 and fir st part

 2 of '06 with Sun, would it have been a benefit to Google to be

 3 able to buy the Sun implementation of this librar y?

 4 A. Of course.

 5 Q. Why would that have been a good deal?

 6 A. Time to market.  We would have gotten to market fas ter.

 7 Q. And when you weren't able to reach a deal, what is it that

 8 Google had to do?

 9 A. We had to make our own using a different approach o f the

10 lower part of that chart.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   Unless your Honor has further

12 questions, I don't have any.

13 THE COURT:  No.

14 Mr. Boies?

15 MR. BOIES:   Thank you, your Honor.

16 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. BOIES:  

18 Q. Mr. Schmidt, this is a document that's already in

19 evidence.  And I don't see the exhibit number on it, but I know

20 it's already in evidence?

21 (Demonstrative displayed)                                     

22 THE COURT:  It is in evidence and we'll just remember

23 it as the very large poster board.

24 (Laughter.) 

25
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 1 BY MR. BOIES:  

 2 Q. The Java class libraries poster board.

 3 Now, you can tell, and this is -- and it's on you r

 4 screen, too.

 5 (Document displayed) 

 6 Q. You can tell this is a list of certain, at least Ja va

 7 class libraries, together with various aspects of  it?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. Now, how much of what's on this chart did Google us e or

10 copy in its Android work?

11 A. I'm not familiar with the specifics, but it would n ot be

12 the entire amount.

13 Q. How much about?  More than half?

14 A. I don't know.

15 Q. Did I give you Exhibit 18 before?

16 A. I have it.

17 (Document displayed) 

18 Q. Now, you talked about whether there were discussion s about

19 the Java programming language and the Java APIs a s being the

20 same or different things; do you recall that gene rally?

21 A. Yes, yes.

22 Q. Now, this is an email that -- from Andy Rubin, who is in

23 charge of the Android project, March 24th, 2006 w here he says:

24 "Java.lang APIs are copyrighted and Sun gets

25 to say who they license the TCK to."

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page183 of 250



SCHMIDT - RECROSS EXAMINATION/ BOIES   1580

 1 Do you see that?

 2 A. I see that.

 3 Q. Did Mr. Rubin ever tell you that in words or in sub stance?

 4 A. I don't recall.

 5 Q. The -- as you understand it, is the Java programmin g

 6 language copyrighted?

 7 A. Umm, again, I don't know that the status of these - - of

 8 the legal matters here, what's copyrighted and wh at's not.  I'm

 9 sure that it was copyrighted, but it's generally in general use

10 and Sun made it available to everybody.

11 Q. But that was not true with respect to the APIs, acc ording

12 to Mr. Rubin, correct?

13 A. Again, I didn't write these emails.  So, I see what  he's

14 saying.

15 Q. I guess what I'm asking you is:  Did he ever say th at to

16 you in the course of these many years when he was  developing

17 Android and you were the CEO?

18 A. Not that I recall.

19 MR. BOIES:   No more questions, your Honor.

20 THE COURT:  May the witness step down?

21 MR. VAN NEST:   I would like to just make a request of

22 your Honor outside the presence very briefly befo re Mr. Schmidt

23 is excused.

24 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's do that.

25
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 1 (Whereupon, the following proceedings 

 2  were held at sidebar.) 

 3 THE COURT:  What's your request?

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   You've said a number of times that we

 5 need to have in the record anything that we think  is important

 6 for your decision on copyrightable.

 7 THE COURT:  Correct.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   Right?  And so I've proffered Trial

 9 Exhibit 3439, and there's a little bit of testimo ny that goes

10 with that.  I just want to be sure --

11 THE COURT:  What is that document?  I don't remember.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   That's the one that we came to sidebar

13 before.  That's his testimony back in 1994.

14 THE COURT:  Yes.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   And I'd like to be sure that that

16 testimony is in the record.  I understand your Ho nor is not

17 going to allow it in front of the jury, but will you accept

18 that on a written proffer, or can I describe the testimony now,

19 or how do you want it --

20 THE COURT:  It's already been proffered so many times

21 and I don't think it ought to be laid -- I don't even think it

22 has relevance to the issues in the case.  It has moderate

23 relevance.

24 MR. VAN NEST:   I just --

25 THE COURT:  I'm not going to let you take up time now
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 1 with that document.

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   That's fine, but I just want to be

 3 sure.  Is your Honor's understanding a proffer he re at sidebar

 4 of the kind that I made offering the exhibit and the

 5 description of it, that's sufficient?

 6 THE COURT:  That's sufficient to preserve your point

 7 for appeal, but that's not sufficient to use it f or purposes of

 8 copyrightable.  I don't think that has much proba tive value at

 9 all.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   But, in other words, you may disregard

11 it, but I have it sufficiently in the record so t hat no one is

12 going to say, "Well, you didn't try to put it in the record, so

13 you can't use it."  That's my only question.

14 THE COURT:  No, you cannot use it.  I'm telling you

15 you cannot use it.  But the Court of Appeals may say, "The

16 judge was wrong and he should have let you use it ."

17 MR. VAN NEST:   Fair enough.

18 THE COURT:  But I think it's out.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Fair enough.

20 (Whereupon, the following proceedings were 

21  held in open court, in the presence and 

22  hearing of the jury.) 

23 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, Mr. Schmidt can be

24 excused.

25 THE COURT:  Both sides agree?
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 1 MR. BOIES:   Yes, your Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  Mr. Schmidt, you are excused.  Leave our

 3 documents here.  You're free to go.  Have a great  day.

 4 THE WITNESS:  All right.  Thank you very much.

 5 (Witness excused.) 

 6 THE COURT:  Mr. Van Nest, your next lawyer, please --

 7 next witness, not next lawyer.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   Our next witness, your Honor, is not a

 9 lawyer.  It's Mr. Rubin, and we'll have him here momentarily.

10 THE COURT:  And for the record, my excellent Deputy

11 Clerk pointed out that the exhibit number for tha t big chart

12 was 1028.

13 Okay.  Mr. Rubin, welcome.  You know the drill.  Make

14 yourself at home.  I remind you you're still unde r oath.

15 ANDY RUBIN,  

16 called as a witness for the Defendant herein, hav ing been 

17 previously sworn, resumed the stand and testified  further as 

18 follows:   

19 THE COURT:  Counsel may begin when you're ready.

20 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.

21 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. VAN NEST:  

23 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Rubin.  And we're sorry to keep  you

24 waiting.

25 You didn't get a chance to introduce yourself muc h
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 1 this morning or last night.  Can you just tell th e jury who you

 2 are and provide a little personal information, pl ease?

 3 A. Sure.  My name is Andy Rubin.  I'm in charge of the

 4 Android project at Google.

 5 Before that I studied computer science in univers ity.

 6 Took a job, you know, right out of university wor king on

 7 computers.  Ended up coming to the Valley to work  for Apple.

 8 And then did a couple of -- joined a couple of st art-up

 9 companies, General Magic, WebTV.  One of those go t sold to

10 Microsoft and after, you know, being at Microsoft  for about a

11 year, I decided to go off and try to start my own  company.

12 First time I did that as an entrepreneur.  The na me of the

13 company was Danger.  We built cell phones and sof tware

14 platforms for cell phones.  And then after about four years I

15 left Danger.  Started another company called Andr oid.  And in

16 July of 2005 Google acquired Android.

17 Q. And here you are today.

18 Let's go back a little bit in time.  When did you

19 first become interested in computers, Mr. Rubin?

20 A. Oh, I remember growing up in New York, in Westchest er, New

21 York.  It was, I -- I lived in the same town that  Reader's

22 Digest had their headquarters.  And one of my fri end's father's

23 worked there and he worked in their computer depa rtment.  And

24 back then, you know, this is in the '70s.  This w as just

25 amazing technology that normal people didn't have  access to.
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 1 So he took me to work one day and I really got to  love

 2 computers.  And then I begged him and asked my pa rents to buy

 3 me one of the first personal computers.  I think it was 1976 I

 4 got my first personal computer.

 5 Q. Now, tell us briefly, what did you come to Apple to  work

 6 on?

 7 A. I was helping them with manufacturing process contr ol.

 8 Basically helping Apple --

 9 Q. Mr. Rubin, can I just you just to slow down a littl e bit

10 for our court reporter and our jurors as well.  

11 A. Sorry.  I -- they brought me out to help them with

12 statistical process control.  It's computer softw are that helps

13 them build better products.  So it's manufacturin g software

14 that helps them make sure that when they ship a p roduct from

15 the factory to you, that it is working error free .

16 Q. Now, you were asked some questions, I think it was

17 yesterday afternoon, about Danger.  That's a comp any you

18 founded?

19 A. That's correct.  Myself and two other cofounders.

20 Q. And what's the product that Danger put together?

21 A. The brand name, you will probably know it as the T- Mobile

22 Sidekick.  It was one of the first kind of smart phone PDA's

23 that was also a cell phone.

24 Q. And what was the idea -- what was your idea for the

25 Sidekick?  What were you trying to accomplish?
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 1 A. Well, at that time, I mean, the majority of the pho nes

 2 people carried around were those flip phones.  Th ey were great

 3 at, you know, sending text messages and making an d receiving

 4 phone calls, but they weren't very good in access ing the

 5 internet.  And in the late 90's the internet was all the rage.

 6 So you would sit down at your desktop computer, s urf

 7 the web, send emails, do instant messaging, and w e wanted you

 8 to be the same things without being tied to your desk.  We

 9 wanted you to be able to have you take it with yo u.

10 Q. Now, i'm holding up in my hand -- it's not an exhib it.

11 It's a demonstrative.  You mentioned flip phones.   Is that what

12 you were talking about (indicating)?

13 A. Yeah.  Phones like that I think were prevalent at t he time

14 we started Danger.

15 Q. And how much -- how much additional functionality d id you

16 need to get from this to the smart phone that was  Sidekick

17 originally?

18 A. Well, I think -- I mean, phones like that that -- i ndustry

19 terminology for those phones are feature phones.  You know,

20 they have a bunch of features, but you know there 's differences

21 between each phone and they don't really allow th e modern

22 compute-like functionality like you have in your desktop PC.

23 So our goal was to take basically, you know, a ne w

24 platform and a new piece of hardware and make it like your

25 desktop PC.  Make it like your Windows machine or  your
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 1 MacIntosh where you could go buy a piece of softw are, put it on

 2 it, and then other companies could make money on top of the

 3 platform.  Those are what we call smart phones.

 4 Q. Did you have to assemble a team of engineers at Dan ger to

 5 actually turn a product into something like a sma rt phone?

 6 A. Yeah.  I mean, we started, you know, with a team of

 7 engineers.  And we just began from the basics and  just built

 8 everything we needed to build to make, you know, the phones

 9 into internet devices.

10 Q. Now, you gave some testimony last night about a lic ense

11 you took at Danger from Sun.  Do you recall that?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. Can you explain to the jury why you took a license?

14 A. Sure.  Well, at Danger when we were building our pl atform,

15 we wanted the ability for, you know, anybody to b e able to

16 program for the platform.  And one of the prevale nt, you know,

17 things that you get taught in university in CS-10 1 was how to

18 program in the Java programming language.

19 So we assumed that kids that were graduating,

20 engineers that were graduating out of these unive rsities knew

21 how to program in the Java programming language a nd we wanted

22 to take advantage of that training so we wouldn't  have to

23 retrain them again.

24 So what we did at Danger is we created a clean ro om

25 implementation of the Java virtual machine, a cle an room
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 1 implementation of all the Java libraries and, you  know, set out

 2 to take advantage of the Java programming languag e.

 3 As the development went on, we got approached -- you

 4 know, we did some press and, you know, the word g ot out about

 5 what we were working on.  It wasn't, you know, to tally in

 6 secret.  And then we started getting some inquire s from Sun

 7 Microsystems.  They were trying to sell us techno logy that

 8 could help us with our effort.  The technology th at they were

 9 trying to sell us was Java-related technology.

10 We didn't think we needed it, since we had built our

11 own clean room implementation, but as a small com pany, there

12 were a couple of things that were valuable to us.   One of the

13 things that we wanted was access to their Test Co mpatibility

14 Kit.  We wanted --

15 Q. Slow down a little bit, Mr. Rubin.  You're getting a

16 little fast.

17 So you wanted access to the Test Compatibility Ki t.

18 Why was that important?

19 A. Well, we wanted to make sure that when somebody, wh en one

20 of those university students who graduated knew h ow to program

21 in Java wrote a program, we wanted to make sure t hat that

22 program could run on other devices, too, not only  our device.

23 So we wanted to make sure that we were compatible  with other

24 devices that happened to be running the Java prog ramming

25 language.
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 1 Q. Were there other benefits?

 2 A. I think the other big benefit in my mind as a small

 3 company is the Java brand.  I think it was a reco gnized brand,

 4 especially in the industry that I was operating i n, which is

 5 wireless operators and cell phones.  So I wanted to be able to

 6 call my work Java so I could get the lift, the ma rketing lift

 7 off of that brand and trademark.

 8 Q. And still referencing your days at Danger, did you believe

 9 that you needed a license to use either the langu age or the

10 language APIs?

11 A. No.  I don't -- I don't believe we needed a license .

12 Clean room implementation is, you know, from scra tch without

13 any knowledge or using any of the proprietary cod e that Sun

14 had.

15 Q. Now, why did you start Android, the company?

16 A. You know, I'm an entrepreneur.  I enjoy starting

17 companies.  I'm a technologist and I still though t, even after

18 doing Danger, that there was a lot of room for im provement in

19 cell phones.  

20 Danger took, you know, the feature phone and turn ed

21 it into a smart phone, but it -- you know, it had  a little

22 keyboard on it and you typed instant messaging an d things like

23 that.  It sold a couple million units, but I had a vision where

24 I wanted, you know, my parents and my friends and  everybody

25 carrying these things.  So I wanted to make it mo re mainstream,
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 1 so we started Android to do that.

 2 Q. Did you have a plan for how you would make whatever

 3 Android device you could develop available to peo ple?

 4 A. We did.  The business strategy was, I think, quite unique

 5 for the time.  We knew how hard it was to, you kn ow, build a

 6 company like a Microsoft.  We were focused really  on software

 7 at this time, not building hardware.

 8 So what we wanted to do is we wanted to instead o f,

 9 you know, creating software and then trying to se ll it, like

10 Microsoft does or like Sun Microsystems does, we wanted to give

11 the software away for free.  So we made it Open S ource.  That

12 was a core part of the business strategy.

13 And the reason we wanted to give it away for free  was

14 it's a way to make the adoption of the platform f rictionless.

15 Nobody has to sign any contracts.  Nobody has to enter into

16 agreements.  Nobody even has to talk to anybody f rom our

17 company in order to use our software.  So we made  it available

18 to the world.  And making it available to the wor ld, of course,

19 you know, achieves that, you know, goal of the co mpany, which

20 was to have everybody on the planet using our pro ducts.

21 Q. And then how -- how were you planning to make any m oney at

22 Danger if you were giving this software platform away to people

23 for free?

24 A. Well, there was a big assumption.  Assuming we're r ight

25 and assuming that the world did want to use our s oftware and it

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page194 of 250



RUBIN - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1591

 1 was frictionless for them to adopt it, we would t hen be

 2 confident that a lot of people were using our sof tware.  And

 3 because a lot of people were using our software a nd we were,

 4 obviously, the experts in developing it, we knew that we could

 5 sell services to the industry; like the wireless operators,

 6 like AT&T and Verizon and T-Mobile.  We could sel l services to

 7 that industry that took in account the world was running our

 8 software on the cell phones.

 9 Q. Was it an advantage or did you perceive it as an ad vantage

10 to those customers, the handset makers and the te lecom

11 carriers -- was Open Source an advantage from the ir standpoint?

12 A. Well, yeah, I believe so.  I think -- you know, aga in,

13 Open Source means a couple of things.  It's -- yo u know, it's

14 open and nobody needs to sign a contract for us, but most

15 importantly it's free.  All right?  So people don 't have to pay

16 for it.

17 And what we thought would happen is we thought, y ou

18 know, for end users, for consumers like people li ke me and you,

19 I think cell phones would get cheaper.  We estima ted about

20 20 percent of the cost of cell phones was licensi ng all the

21 software that people need to have to make these t hings work.

22 So by making it Open Source and giving it away fo r

23 free, we thought we would dramatically lower the cost of phones

24 and making them smart phones at the same time.

25 Q. Did Android ever create a product prior to the time  that
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 1 Google bought the company?

 2 A. No.  We were in kind of the exploratory phase.  We had

 3 some demos that ended up getting thrown away, but  I think it

 4 was -- it was a very early time.

 5 Q. And how did you make the connections to eventually become

 6 part of Google?  How did that happen?

 7 A. From my days at Danger I knew Larry Page, who was t hen the

 8 co-founder of Google and president, I believe.  A nd I just

 9 emailed him and I said, "Hey, Larry.  I moved on from Danger.

10 I started another company called Android.  We're going to

11 revolutionize the cell phone space.  You should c ome check it

12 out."

13 Q. And one thing led to another and soon you were part  of

14 Google?

15 A. That's right.  We were in acquisition discussions w ith

16 Google.

17 Q. Approximately when did Android become part of Googl e?

18 A. In July, 2005.

19 Q. And did you then have a title at Google?

20 A. Yes.  I was director of engineering.

21 Q. Now, did the -- once you got to Google and got your  desk

22 opened up and so on and so forth, did the plan or  the idea for

23 the Android product change?

24 A. Not for the Android product, the business strategy.   It

25 was still Open Source.  It was still going to be for smart
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 1 phones.  You know, our goal was to be a software,  you know,

 2 platform.

 3 What we shifted a little bit was the business

 4 strategy.  It was the how we were going to make m oney part.

 5 Q. How did you shift that?

 6 A. Well, as I mentioned before, we were, you know, goi ng to

 7 build services that were -- that we would then li cense to the

 8 industry, like the wireless operators.  We didn't  feel like we

 9 needed to do that any more.  Google already had s ervices like

10 search and things that like that that were in dem and.

11 Q. So now that you're a Google employee and run the An droid

12 team, what was the benefit for Google of this par ticular

13 strategy; i.e., making a platform available and O pen Sourcing

14 it?

15 A. I mean, you know, Google had a suite of application s.

16 They had services like search and everything else  and -- 

17 Q. Mr. Rubin, slow down a little bit.

18 When you say "suite of applications," you get pas t us

19 pretty quick.  What are you talking about?

20 A. Things like Gmail, Google Maps, the search applicat ion,

21 YouTube, those types of applications.  Those alre ady existed.

22 You know, we figured if -- you know, Google's mis sion

23 is to organize the world's information, make it u niversally

24 accessible and useful.  So we figured Android was  the

25 accessible part.  It's giving people access to th e internet
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 1 wherever they are, not just when they are rolled up to their

 2 desk, and allowing them to choose to come to Goog le to use

 3 these services that I just mentioned.

 4 Q. Now, with respect to -- actually, putting the busin ess

 5 plan aside --

 6 THE WITNESS:  I've been asked to slow down.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   What a surprise.  He'll probably

 8 accept it a little better from you, Deb, than fro m me.

 9 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

10 Q. With respect to -- put the business strategy aside.   Were

11 there different options for how you could actuall y build the

12 product?

13 A. I mean, there were tens of thousands of little deci sions

14 that we made along the way to build the product.  I think, you

15 know, we could have done a number of things.

16 Q. Well, I guess my question is, had you made a decisi on

17 right from the start that you would develop the p roduct

18 in-house, on your own, or buy components from oth er vendors,

19 other companies?  Had you made that decision by t he time you

20 got to Google?

21 A. No.  I mean, I think those types of decisions are b ased on

22 schedule and timing and cost, and things like tha t.

23 And you might make different decisions if you're a

24 small company versus, you know, having the fundin g and backing

25 of a large company.  
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 1 So those types of decisions kind of evolved durin g

 2 the course of the project.

 3 Q. And early on -- and by that I mean in 2005 -- were you, as

 4 the head of the Android project, talking to lots of companies

 5 about participating or making their products avai lable?

 6 A. Yeah, so -- well, yes.  So let me kind of explain a  little

 7 bit of the background.

 8 So part of what we were doing, we knew we were go ing

 9 to create an open platform.  And we were in the p rocess of

10 figuring out what technologies would go to that p latform.

11 And we created this thing called the Open Handset

12 Alliance.  It was, basically, a consortium of oth er companies

13 who kind of had a like-minded vision to make smar t phones

14 available to as many people as possible.  

15 So, in the course of doing that, we actually soug ht

16 out contributions from the members of the Open Ha ndset Alliance

17 that could help us accelerate our efforts.

18 Q. Who are some of those people, these people in the O pen

19 Handset Alliance?  Who are they?

20 A. Well, there were different categories that are -- y ou

21 know, the wireless operators, the OEMs.  OEMs lik e Motorola and

22 Samsung and Sony Ericsson.  These are people that  build cell

23 phones, manufacture cell phones.  And, as I menti oned, the

24 wireless operators like AT&T and Verizon.

25 But then there were other sets of companies who a re
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 1 actually technology providers.  They were compani es that had

 2 either software or semiconductors or some piece o f equipment

 3 that could help us, you know, come to market fast er.

 4 So in a couple of instances, in more than a handf ul

 5 of instances, we partnered and actually paid comp anies to

 6 contribute their products into the open platform.

 7 Q. How does that work?  You're building a product that  you're

 8 going to give away.  What's the incentive for the se other

 9 companies to take money and then let the product be given away?

10 A. Well, typically, they were -- you know, they were

11 companies that were in -- you know, operating lik e a lot of

12 companies in this industry, where it's a hypercom petitive

13 industry.  And they were, you know, members of th at industry,

14 building a very focused piece of technology.

15 And we would come in and we would basically say, hey,

16 why don't you open source your technology?  Why d on't you make

17 it available for free to the world as part of our  platform?

18 And, in return, we'll pay you a little bit of mon ey to do that,

19 so you guys can go and create some derivative of your business

20 model.

21 Again, it's one of those things where if the comp any

22 knew that their technology was in this platform, and this

23 platform's success was inevitable, then they woul d be able to

24 figure out what their business was, knowing what their

25 technology was in a lot of handsets.
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 1 Q. Now, in the beginning, Mr. Rubin, when you're talki ng with

 2 partners and getting the program kind of off the ground with

 3 Google, had you decided for sure that you would u se the Java

 4 language as part of whatever you built?

 5 A. We were going back and forth.  The engineers were

 6 debating.  Everybody had their favorite.

 7           (Reporter signals to witness.) 

 8 THE WITNESS:  I notice one walked out.  I'm down to

 9 one.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   You need to constantly remember to

11 slow down.  It's very hard to keep up.

12 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

13 Q. So, let's go back.  At the beginning, had you decid ed for

14 sure that you would use the Java language as part  of whatever

15 you built?

16 A. No, we hadn't decided for sure.  We were still argu ing

17 over what was the best language for us.

18 Q. Were there other available programming languages th at

19 could have worked as part of Android?

20 A. Each one with, you know -- you know, yes, there wer e other

21 ones that could have worked for sure.  And I thin k there were

22 opinions about which one would be best.

23 Python is an example of one that would have worke d.

24 Q. Which one?

25 A. Python.
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 1 Q. Python. 

 2 Can you give the jury just one or two examples of

 3 other languages that you considered that might ha ve worked as

 4 part of Android?

 5 A. Sure.  Our goal was to -- 

 6           (Reporter interrupts.) 

 7 A. Our goal was to, you know, use languages that were taught

 8 in universities.  So people already knew how to p rogram for our

 9 platform.

10 So a couple of the other choices were JavaScript.   It

11 was a Web-based technology people learned in coll ege for how to

12 program.  Another one was Python, as I mentioned.   And there

13 were a couple of other ones.  Lua, L-u-a, was one  other

14 programming language.

15 Q. Now, you mentioned one in there, JavaScript.  Is

16 JavaScript the same as Java?

17 A. No.  It's just a poor naming choice.

18 Q. Is JavaScript affiliated at all with Sun?

19 A. Not to my knowledge, no.

20 Q. That's just -- it has the same type of name, but it 's not

21 a Sun creation.  Okay.

22 Were there some drawbacks to using the Java langu age

23 in Android?

24 A. Uhm, I think there was some technical drawbacks.  I  think

25 that some of the technical drawbacks were it -- i t didn't run
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 1 programs as fast as if -- as the program had been  developed

 2 under C or under some they call it non-interprete d language, a

 3 language that converts directly to the machine's instruction.

 4 So there was some technical disadvantages, yes.

 5 Q. Now, did there come a time, Mr. Rubin, in the cours e of

 6 the project, that you began discussions with Sun as one of the

 7 companies that might provide products or componen ts?

 8 A. Yes.  We contacted Sun early on.  They contacted us , as

 9 well.

10 Q. And were you directly involved in the discussions w ith

11 Sun, yourself?

12 A. Yes.  I led the negotiations.

13 Q. Can you tell the jury, from your perspective, what is it

14 that Google was exploring with respect to a relat ionship with

15 Sun?

16 THE COURT:  Can you also establish the time frame.

17 MR. VAN NEST:   That's a good point, Your Honor.

18 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

19 Q. Let's start in 2005.  Is that when the discussions began?

20 A. Yeah.  Preliminary discussions were in 2005.

21 Q. So early on, let's take the early discussions in 20 05.

22 What were you and the folks at Sun talking about at that time?

23 A. So we saw this as an opportunity to, you know, open  up

24 Java.  And our ask to Sun was to contribute Java to the open

25 source community.
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 1 We felt it would be good for the community but al so

 2 speed up our development effort, make the platfor m come to

 3 market sooner.

 4 Q. And we've seen a bunch of exhibits of the early tim e.  Can

 5 I ask you to look at Trial Exhibit 1.  I think it 's actually up

 6 there on your table.  Is it there?

 7 A. It is.

 8 Q. Tell the jury, what is Trial Exhibit 1?

 9 A. This is a presentation that I did to the executives  at

10 Google very soon after arriving at Google.

11 Q. And so this is in July of 2005.  How long had you b een at

12 Google by this time?

13 A. Couple of weeks.  Two weeks, I think.

14 Q. So this was one of the very earliest presentations?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Do you recall who the audience would have been for this?

17 A. It was, well, anybody who was attending this GPS se ssion.

18 But I think there were representatives from engin eering and

19 product and business, as well as the leadership t eam.

20 Q. And can we turn down to the page -- it's about four  pages

21 in -- that says, "What is Android?"

22 A. Yes.

23 (Document displayed.) 

24 Q. Can you explain to the jury, to our jurors, what yo u have

25 placed on that page.
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 1 A. "Project Android is building the world's first open  source

 2 handset solution with built-in Google application s."

 3 Q. And when you say "the world's first open source han dset

 4 solution," what did you mean by that?

 5 A. At that time, there were no other open source solut ions

 6 for handsets, for mobile phones.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   Could we have the next page.

 8 (Document displayed.) 

 9 THE WITNESS:  The model?

10 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

11 Q. The model, yeah.

12 A. Okay.

13 Q. Would you explain to the jury what the model was.  And

14 this, again, is in July of '05.  What was the mod el?

15 A. At that time in -- you know, I think we were -- we were,

16 you know, starting to get locked in on what our m odel was.

17 But, basically, working with the industry -- whet her

18 it was a wireless operator or an OEM or manufactu rer of cell

19 phones -- to basically help them take this open s ource

20 platform, this open source OS, and integrate it i nto their cell

21 phones.

22 Q. And what was the benefit to Google there, noted at the

23 bottom?

24 A. We just basically get to have a direct connection t o the

25 consumer.  We didn't have anybody kind of buildin g the user
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 1 interface or building the icons or the screens on  the cell

 2 phone between us and the consumer.  We got to do that, so we

 3 could have that direct relationship with the cust omer.

 4 Q. And let's go down to the page that's marked "JAVA."   It's

 5 showing as 9 of 10 in my exhibit, second from the  end.  There.

 6 A. I see.

 7 Q. So let me start right at the top.  "Java + JavaScri pt =

 8 key differentiator."  What does that mean?

 9 A. So our platform centered on, basically, three

10 technologies.  It was the clean-room implementati on of the Java

11 programming language.  It was JavaScript, which i s a Web

12 technology.  And Google as a Web company leverage d it quite a

13 lot.

14 Q. You say "JavaScript," that's a Web technology.  So that's

15 another component of Android?

16 A. Yeah, that's correct.

17 Q. Okay.

18 A. And then XML, which was a third component.  Those t hree

19 things had never really been combined like that b efore.

20 Q. What is XML?

21 A. XML is a -- it's a language that represents data.  Like if

22 you have people, as contacts, stored in an addres s book in your

23 phone, each person would be represented in XML.

24 Q. So could you have a product like Android using lots  of

25 different programming languages for different par ts of the
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 1 platform?

 2 A. You technically could, yes.

 3 Q. So the first bullet "Current Scenario," can you jus t walk

 4 through the points and tell the jurors what -- wh at, at this

 5 stage, at this early stage, what you were communi cating to the

 6 folks at Google?

 7 A. So it was pretty clear our intention was to develop  a

 8 clean-room implementation of a Java virtual machi ne.  We were

 9 talking about getting a TCK from sun so we could test it to

10 make sure that it was compatible.  As well as, yo u know, using

11 the Java trademark so we could call it Java and g et the

12 marketing uplift.  Some of the same things that w e had done

13 before, at Danger.

14 Q. Okay.  And down below: 

15 "Proposal:  Google Android with support from

16 Tin Lindholm negotiates the first OSS J2ME

17 JVM license with Sun."

18 What does that mean?

19 A. So the proposal was to go and actually make contact  over

20 at the -- our business colleagues over at Sun Mic rosystems and

21 negotiate a license that enabled us to open sourc e these Java

22 components.

23 Q. Now, did you begin discussions with the folks at Su n

24 sometime following this e-mail or this proposal, this

25 presentation?
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 1 A. Yes, I did.

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   And could I have Trial Exhibit 617 up,

 3 please.

 4 May I approach the witness, Your Honor?

 5 THE COURT:  Yes.

 6 (Document displayed.) 

 7 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 8 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 9 Q. I'd like you to start with the end of the document,

10 Mr. Rubin -- because it's one of these e-mail cha ins that

11 starts at the bottom and finishes at the top -- a nd tell us

12 whether or not you recognize Exhibit 617.

13 A. Yes, I recognize the e-mail string here.

14 Q. What is it?

15 A. It's an e-mail between myself and the salesperson o ver at

16 Sun, responsible for Java.

17 Q. And who was the salesperson at Sun responsible for Java?

18 A. His name was Leo Cizek.

19 Q. Leo Cizek?

20 And is this a collection of e-mails that you and

21 Mr. Cizek exchanged in the fall of 2005?

22 A. Uhm, at the bottom portion it was myself, Leo Cizek , and

23 Tim Lindholm, yes.

24 MR. VAN NEST:   I'll offer 617 in evidence, Your

25 Honor.
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 1 MR. BOIES:   It's already in.

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   Already in.  Thank you.

 3 MR. BOIES:   That was my assumption when you displayed

 4 it to the jury, anyway.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, thank you.  I wasn't sure.

 6 THE COURT:  Take your word for it.

 7 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 8 Q. In any event, I would like to call your attention t o the

 9 very last page, right there where we are.  "Here are next

10 steps."

11 Let's go above that.  This is an e-mail to you fr om

12 Mr. Cizek.  Correct?

13 A. That's correct.

14 Q. And the first paragraph says:

15 "I've reviewed the documents.  Looks like

16 there are no roadblocks to us taking a

17 license and then open sourcing our

18 implementation."

19 What does that mean?

20 A. That was a proposal that we had in the early days o f the

21 discussion, that we take a license to the TCK fro m Sun, and

22 take a license to the Java brand, and then open s ource our

23 implementation of that -- of the Java virtual mac hine and Java

24 class libraries.

25 Q. And then the next paragraph says: 
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 1 "Right now we are moving ahead with the

 2 project and doing an independent

 3 implementation.  If Sun would like to get

 4 involved, we'd be happy to have you."

 5 What did you mean by that?

 6 A. I was seeking a partnership with Sun.  I would love  to

 7 have them as a co-developer on this project.

 8 Q. And then you list some next steps, 1, 2, 3.

 9 What were the next steps, as you understood them,  in

10 your discussions with Sun?  

11 A. Well, Sun had to kind of make a philosophical decis ion

12 whether they wanted to partner with Google on thi s project.

13 That was my point number one.

14 And, then, if they did, they needed to, you know,

15 kind of throw away their standard license, becaus e it isn't

16 what we're asking for, and they needed to develop  a new license

17 that was specifically what we're asking for.

18 Q. And that would be as part of your open source idea?

19 A. That's right.  It would basically, you know, help u s open

20 source our implementation of Java.

21 Q. So let's go to the very first page of 617, to the b ottom.

22 Is this another e-mail from you back to Mr. Cizek , just a few

23 days later?

24 A. Yes, it is.

25 Q. And you say:  
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 1 "Leo, sorry I wasn't clear.  I was asking for

 2 you to modify the various agreements to allow

 3 our model, per our discussions with Vineet."

 4 Who's Vineet?

 5 A. Vineet is one of the more senior kind of strategic

 6 business development people.

 7 Q. (As read:)

 8 "I'm really hoping this is the approach Sun

 9 is comfortable with because I think it would

10 mean a really close partnership.  As

11 discussed, the two companies are aligned

12 against a common industry bully."

13 What was the partnership you were talking about i n

14 Exhibit 617?

15 A. Uhm, in this time frame, it was -- it was basically  either

16 allowing us to open source our JVM and licensing us this

17 technology like the TCK, or Sun actually contribu ting

18 technology, the effort, contributing their implem entation of

19 the JVM, which would greatly accelerate the effor t.

20 Q. When you say "their implementation of the JVM" can you

21 elaborate on that.  What are you talking about?

22 A. So Sun had a -- you know, Java ME, which was Micro

23 Edition.  It was a technology that they had creat ed and they

24 owned the rights to, that we were asking them to contribute

25 into open source as part of this effort.
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 1 Q. Now, your last sentence says:  

 2 "If Sun doesn't want to partner with us to

 3 support this initiative, we are fine

 4 releasing our work and not calling it Java."

 5 What does that mean?

 6 A. Well, we were seeking, you know, a license to the

 7 trademark Java.  We thought it was fine if they d idn't want to

 8 partner with us.  We weren't forcing them to do a nything.  But

 9 we also felt that we could continue to develop ou r clean-room

10 implementation because there was nothing wrong wi th it.

11 Q. Now, at some point did you put together a proposal,  a

12 written proposal, and send it over to Sun?

13 A. Yeah.  I think it's fair to say there were several

14 proposals, yeah.

15 Q. Several.  I would like to call your attention to Tr ial

16 Exhibit 11, and ask you to identify that for us.

17 Take a moment to review it and tell us, what is T rial

18 Exhibit 11?

19 A. So, this is an e-mail between, you know, myself and  a

20 couple of my team members.  And it's a draft of a  proposal that

21 I had authored and -- with the help of people on my team, and

22 sent over to Sun on -- on kind of the current sta te of our

23 project.  This was in March of 2006.

24 Q. Okay.  This is a little bit later on in time.

25 MR. VAN NEST:   I'd offer Trial Exhibit 11 in
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 1 evidence, Your Honor.

 2 MR. BOIES:   Can I have a moment?  I think it's

 3 already in, Your Honor.

 4 THE CLERK:   I have it in as of Thursday.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Okay.  Thank you.  I apologize.

 6 So let's go to the first page, the background pag e.

 7 And could we blow up just the first paragraph, pl ease.

 8 (Document displayed.) 

 9 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

10 Q. And can you tell us -- read the first sentence slow ly,

11 Mr. Rubin, and tell the jury what you were propos ing to Sun.

12 A. Sure.  So it reads:  

13 "Google is seeking partnerships with leading

14 wireless technology companies and service

15 providers to collaboratively develop an open

16 source handset platform."

17 Basically, this is that alliance I was talking ab out.

18 We were seeking members of this Open Handset Alli ance, at this

19 stage.

20 Q. Now, the two sentences following that, it says:

21 "Sun is considering providing a Java

22 implementation as a key component of the

23 platform."

24 Do you see that?

25 A. Yes, I do.
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 1 Q. What is that referring to?

 2 A. Now, since the evolution of the conversation since 2005,

 3 now what we're discussing isn't just a license to  the TCK and a

 4 license to the Java trademark.  Rather, Sun is ac tually

 5 interested in providing their implementation of J 2ME.

 6 Q. And when you say "their implementation," are you ta lking

 7 about source code, or a product?  Or what are you  talking

 8 about?

 9 A. Talking about source code and their proprietary -- we're

10 talking proprietary works.

11 Q. And if Sun had provided their Java implementation, would

12 Google have needed a license to use it?

13 A. Either way, I don't think we wouldn't -- I'm sorry.   Can

14 you ask that question.

15 Q. Yeah.  If Sun is providing you their proprietary so urce

16 code in the form of a Java implementation, would you have

17 needed a license to use that?

18 A. I think so, yeah.  It's their -- it's their work.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Can we expand the page a little bit,

20 down to the bottom.

21 (Document displayed.) 

22 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

23 Q. What is the diagram at the bottom depicting?

24 A. A very sophisticated graphic.  It is kind of a view  of the

25 ecosystem, all the people in this alliance that w e were
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 1 creating.

 2 And if -- you know, there were a bunch of empty

 3 spots, but it showed where Sun and Google fit wit hin the

 4 alliance, and which technologies they would be pr oviding.

 5 Q. And is there more discussion about that a little la ter on

 6 in the document?

 7 A. I believe so.

 8 We start getting into the details about, you know ,

 9 what's going to be provided.  And, you know, my j ob with this

10 document was to basically memorialize in writing some of the

11 discussions we had been having.  So it goes, you know, pretty

12 deep on what the technological components are and  what the

13 architecture looks like, and things like that.

14 MR. VAN NEST:   Could we go to the last page, where it

15 says "Proposal," and blow up the first paragraph of that.  So I

16 just want the paragraph for now.

17 (Document displayed.) 

18 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

19 Q. (As read:)

20 "Sun and Google jointly develop an open

21 handset solution.  Sun's main responsibility

22 is the Java CDC virtual machine, class

23 libraries, MIDP stack and relevant JSRs." 

24 Do you see that?

25 A. Yes, I do.
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 1 Q. Well, we're losing power here, so while it's a litt le

 2 faint can you tell the jury, what are you referri ng to with

 3 respect to Sun's main responsibility?

 4 What were they going to provide?

 5 A. So, again, this is -- you know, in this joint devel opment

 6 effort, this is kind of splitting the work betwee n these two

 7 engineering teams.  The engineering team at Googl e and the

 8 engineering team at Sun Microsystems.

 9 So the -- you know, that second sentence talks ab out

10 the existing technology that Sun had, that they w ere going to

11 contribute to the effort.

12 Q. And what was that?  What was that technology?

13 A. It was, essentially, the virtual machine and the Ja va

14 class libraries, and then a layer on top of the J ava class

15 libraries called MIDP, which was a profile for ce ll phones.

16 Q. And is that all proprietary Sun technology?

17 A. Parts of it were proprietary and parts of it were, you

18 know -- like the JSRs, for example, were part of the JCP, which

19 was one of Sun's community.

20 Q. The virtual machine, the CDC, the class libraries, would

21 Google have needed a license to that technology?

22 A. Yeah, for Sun's work, yes.

23 MR. VAN NEST:   Now, could we have Trial Exhibit 18 up

24 on the screen.  This is already in evidence.  Let  me hand you a

25 copy, Mr. Rubin, because I'm taking it kind of ri ght in the
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 1 chronology.  I think it's up on the stand there.  Do you have

 2 it?

 3 THE WITNESS:  Potentially, yeah.  Let me see.

 4 (Document displayed.) 

 5 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

 6 Q. This is a document you were asked about last night,  by

 7 Mr. Boies.  Is it there?

 8 A. Yes, it is.

 9 Q. Okay.  Open it up.  And let's -- let's start at the

10 bottom, and tell us, who is Greg Stein?  And is h e somebody you

11 were working with or not?

12 A. He's -- he's a Google employee.  I didn't know him or work

13 with him before he had sent me this e-mail.

14 Q. And can you tell us, what -- what was he -- in gene ral,

15 what was he talking about in the first paragraph of this

16 e-mail?  At least as you understood it.

17 A. Well, he had, you know, obviously, kind of heard ab out

18 what we were working on on the Android team.  He wasn't on the

19 team.  And somebody pointed him in my direction, and he was

20 asking questions about J2ME, which was a Sun prod uct.

21 Q. Now, J2ME, is that a proprietary Sun product?

22 A. Yeah.  It's Java 2 Micro Edition.

23 Q. It has their source code and all that?

24 A. Yes, it's their product.

25 Q. And so what was he suggesting or proposing here?
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 1 A. I think he was being vague because he said he was u nder a

 2 confidentiality agreement.  And I didn't know wha t that meant.

 3 But I assumed that, you know, I wasn't going to g et a lot of

 4 information from him.  And he was -- he was -- he  was saying

 5 that he had a way to open source J2ME.

 6 Q. And what did you think of that?

 7 A. Well, I didn't understand that because J2ME was a S un

 8 product.  So unless his confidentiality agreement  was with Sun,

 9 I didn't see how he could do that.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   So let's go up the page a little bit

11 further.  Open that up.  Thank you.

12 (Document displayed.) 

13 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

14 Q. So your response to him, what was your initial resp onse to

15 him?

16 A. I told him I don't see how -- he can't open source this

17 product when it belongs to Sun.

18 Q. What were you referring to?  "Can't open Java witho ut

19 Sun," what does that mean?

20 A. I was referring to J2ME, which was the topic of the  e-mail

21 message.

22 Q. And then did he respond in kind?

23 A. He did.  He did.  Apparently, he had a plan for

24 everything.  And he had some scheme for how to do  what he was

25 proposing to do.
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 1 Q. And then did you respond, again, to that?

 2 A. Yep, I did. I kind of, you know, was tolerating his  -- his

 3 vagueness, and I told him to wish -- you know, wi sh him luck,

 4 and I think it's going to be hard open sourcing t his work.

 5 Q. So when you said java.lang.APIs are copyrighted, ca n you

 6 tell the jury, what were you referring to?

 7 A. Sure.  I was meaning the Java class files that were  part

 8 of the J2ME implementation.

 9 Q. How do you know that?

10 A. That they're copyrighted?  They belong to Sun.  The y are

11 Sun's work.

12 Q. You are talking about the libraries.  How do you kn ow

13 you're referring to the libraries?  What's the co ntext of the

14 e-mail that causes you to believe that?

15 A. I mean, java.lang is the class libraries.  We weren 't

16 talking about the virtual machine.

17 Q. Okay.  Now, could we go on to Exhibit 331.

18 Did you present a series of deals, Mr. Rubin, to the

19 executive management group at Google?  That's a b ad question.

20 I'll withdraw it.

21 Along the way of your discussions with Sun, were

22 there various presentations that you made to get approval to

23 make the next offer?

24 A. Yeah.  I mean, during the course of the discussions  with

25 Sun, which lasted, you know, for almost two years , we ebbed and
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 1 flowed throughout that conversation.  And I would  present kind

 2 of the status to my -- to my management.

 3 Q. And I want to show you Exhibit 331, and ask you whe ther

 4 you recognize that.

 5 A. Yes, I recognize that.

 6 Q. What is it?

 7 A. This is a template for an agreement that we present  to

 8 management, that basically seeks approval for lar ge capital

 9 expenditures.  If we are going to spend a bunch o f money

10 acquiring a technology, this is the form that we use to present

11 it and get approval for it.

12 Q. And were you involved in preparing Exhibit 331?

13 A. Yes, I believe myself and my teammates helped prepa re

14 this.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   I'll offer 331 in evidence, Your

16 Honor.

17 MR. BOIES:   Objection, Your Honor.  Hearsay.

18 THE COURT:  May I see the document?

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, this is a proposal to the

20 EMG.  It's the same as the many, many, many of th ese we've

21 already seen in evidence.

22 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, I'm not sure that this is a

23 proposal to the EMG.  This looks, from the first page, to be a

24 draft sent to a variety of people who are not on the EMG.

25 THE COURT:  Well, we will lay more foundation for
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 1 this document.  There's a lot of material in here , and I would

 2 rather have the witness testify firsthand to what  he can

 3 remember.  And, at the end of that, we'll decide how much of

 4 this, if any, comes into evidence.

 5 I'm speaking about 331.  But I think it's best to

 6 find out from the witness what he remembers first hand having

 7 occurred, without moving the document into eviden ce.  Maybe it

 8 will come in eventually.

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   Fair enough.

10 THE COURT:  For the time being, it's sustained.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   Fair enough.

12 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

13 Q. Was there -- were there -- in the spring, say March  and

14 April, Mr. Rubin, of 2006, were you still present ing to the

15 EMG, the management group, various proposals with  Sun?

16 A. Yes, I was.

17 Q. And can you just give us a general description of w hat the

18 major components of those were by the time of the  spring.

19 A. Sure.  You know, they kind of went in rapid fire

20 succession.  So they are a little blurry which wa s which.

21 But the general theme was, initially, getting

22 approval for an expenditure to pay Sun to open so urce their

23 Java technology as part of the Android platform.

24 Q. And under that scenario, would Sun be providing tec hnology

25 to Google?
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RUBIN - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1618

 1 A. It would be providing technology to Google and then , in

 2 turn, this open source community once it got open  sourced.

 3 Q. And what would Google be providing?  Would Google b e

 4 providing technology of its own?

 5 A. We would also contribute technology into the platfo rm, as

 6 well as we would pay Sun money to -- for them to make their

 7 contribution.

 8 Q. Okay.  And various of these proposals reflect payme nt of

 9 money to Sun.  Why was -- why was Google paying m oney to Sun if

10 the whole thing was going to be open sourced?

11 A. They -- normally, you know, open source wasn't part  of

12 their business.  They hadn't considered it, as fa r as I could

13 tell, before we started talking to them.

14 So what we're asking them to do is basically chan ge

15 their business model.

16 Q. And what -- what would that have involved?

17 A. That would have involved finding other ways to make  money,

18 rather than just licensing Java.

19 So what we were trying to do with the payment was ,

20 you know, give them some time to find alternative  ways to build

21 a business.

22 Q. Can you recall, approximately, the dollars involved ?

23 We're now in the spring of 2006.  How large a pay ment are we

24 talking about?

25 A. I think it was somewhere between 28 and $34 million .
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 1 Q. And did you, at some point, get a approval for a 28 - to

 2 $34 million proposal to Sun?  

 3 A. Yes.  I think I got, you know, a kind of okay to pr oceed

 4 to the next level of negotiation.

 5 Q. If you could take just a minute, now, to look at Ex hibit

 6 331, does this appear to be one of the presentati ons that was

 7 made along the way to the executive management co mmittee

 8 sometime in the spring of 2006?

 9 A. Uhm, yes, this would be one of the those presentati ons?

10 Q. Was there a whole series of these?

11 A. I think we did several iterations of this, yes.

12 Q. Sure.  As the deal went along, the proposals change d.

13 Does this appear to be your work or the work of y our

14 team?

15 A. Yes, it is.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   I would offer 331 in evidence, Your

17 Honor.

18 MR. BOIES:   I still object to the document.  The

19 witness has testified to his recollection.

20 THE COURT:  Sustain the hearsay objection.  It is

21 hearsay.  Possibly, we'll come back to it later.

22 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

23 Q. Now, Mr. Rubin, did -- were Google and Sun able to reach

24 agreement on this partnership proposal that you h ad been

25 making?
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 1 A. Uhm, we were close at times but, ultimately, we wer en't

 2 able to agree on terms.

 3 Q. And what was it that caused the disagreement?  How come

 4 you never reached an agreement?

 5 A. Well, I mean, we were trying to build this open pla tform.

 6 We were trying to get as many people, you know, i nto smart

 7 phones as possible.  We thought it would be good for the world

 8 to do that.

 9 What we couldn't agree on is kind of the definiti on

10 of "open."  If you open something up and give it away for free,

11 you have to kind of let it go.  You can't continu e to try to

12 charge money for it and try to, you know, control  it.

13 So I think all the areas that we had disagreement s

14 were about control.  We wanted to give up control  and just have

15 it flourish in the open.  And I think Sun had, yo u know,

16 mechanisms to exert control.

17 Q. And approximately when in the timeline did the

18 negotiations with Sun end?

19 A. Uhm, I believe it was, you know, sometime in late 2 006 or

20 early 2007.

21 Q. And, at that time, at that point, did you have to t ake the

22 Android project in a different direction?

23 A. Yeah.  I mean, we had always been, you know, develo ping

24 our clean-room implementation.

25 I was hopeful that we would get to an understandi ng
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RUBIN - DIRECT EXAMINATION / VAN NEST   1621

 1 to do what we wanted to with Sun.  But in the, yo u know, chance

 2 that we didn't, I needed to still come to market.

 3 I didn't think there was anything wrong with what  we

 4 were doing.  So we continued the development of o ur clean-room

 5 implementation.

 6 Q. And let me just step back a minute.  I take it you were

 7 the one responsible for getting the Android platf orm built?

 8 A. Yes.  That was my job.

 9 Q. Head of team.  And you had engineers working on it with

10 you?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Who are some of the lead engineers that worked on t he

13 project?

14 A. Brian Swetland.  Dan Bornstein.  You know, folks wo rking

15 from applications all the way down to system and operating

16 system.

17 Q. And did you give them any instructions as to what y ou

18 wanted them to do in terms of what technology the y could use to

19 put into Android?

20 A. Yes.  I mean, really early on, when we knew we were  in

21 discussions with Sun but still, you know, on the business side,

22 but still kind of life had to go on in the advent  that we

23 didn't reach a partnership with Sun, you know, th e team was

24 creating the clean-room implementation.

25 So we kind of had to separate those two things.  So,
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 1 first of all, I led the business discussions whil e the team

 2 was, you know, in Mountain View, writing the code  in the

 3 clean-room implementation.

 4 So we clearly separated who was dealing with Sun and

 5 who was just, you know, creating technology for o ur clean room.

 6 And, also, we kind of had some rules that we set up.

 7 I told the team specific things that they could d o and specific

 8 things they couldn't do.

 9 One of the things they couldn't do is, they could n't

10 access any Sun proprietary work in order to help them develop

11 the clean-room implementation.  They couldn't dow nload anything

12 from the Sun website that required a click-throug h license.

13 Those licenses that have a bunch of legalese on t he

14 screen, that you click "I agree" at the bottom, I  told them

15 they couldn't can't do that.

16 What I told them they could do was use anything t hat

17 was nonproprietary and already open sourced.

18 Q. Now, did your team build the Java platform -- excus e me,

19 the Android platform?

20 A. Uhm, yes, that's what we ended up shipping, is the

21 clean-room implementation of all this.

22 Q. And does the platform have a whole variety of compo nents

23 to it?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Is there a visual depiction of that, that's on the Google
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 1 website today?

 2 A. Uhm, yes.  When we open sourced the project, we pos ted to

 3 the website kind of what we call an architectural  diagram that

 4 reflects all the components of Android.

 5 Q. And that Trial Exhibit -- open your book up, if you  would;

 6 I guess I have to give it to you -- to 2881, and tell me

 7 whether you recognize that.

 8 A. This exhibit is the architectural diagram that depi cts all

 9 the components of the Android platform.

10 Q. And was this -- was this created around the time th at

11 Android, itself, was launched?

12 A. Yes.

13 MR. VAN NEST:   Don't display it to the jury.  I don't

14 think it's in evidence.

15 BY MR. VAN NEST:   

16 Q. Is it a fairly accurate representation of the Andro id

17 platform?

18 A. Yes, I believe -- I mean, we wanted it to fit on on e page

19 of paper, so there's a lot more to the platform t han is

20 depicted here.  But this has all the key componen ts, I would

21 say.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   I would offer 2881 in evidence, Your

23 Honor.

24 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, could I ask three or four

25 questions on voir dire?
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 1 THE COURT:  Yes.

 2 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 3 BY MR. BOIES:   

 4 Q. Mr. Rubin, Android was launched in November of 2007 ,

 5 correct?

 6 A. We announced in November of 2007.  We didn't make t he

 7 product available.

 8 Q. Was this what was posted in November of 2007?

 9 A. I believe a version of this was posted at the

10 announcement.

11 Q. Is this exactly the same as the version that was po sted

12 then?

13 A. I don't know.

14 MR. BOIES:   I would object, Your Honor.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, Your Honor, this is simply to

16 illustrate the elements of the platform.

17 And I'm going to ask the witness to walk through them

18 and just explain what they are and how they work together.

19 I'm not representing that this was identical to w hat

20 was put on the website in 2007, but it wasn't cre ated for the

21 litigation.  It's been on the website for a long time.  We'll

22 be getting into the dates and times a little bit later.

23 MR. BOIES:   Your Honor, it's hearsay.

24 It may be a demonstrative exhibit, but there's no

25 foundation for this being anything other than som ething that
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 1 was created possibly after the lawsuit was starte d.

 2 THE COURT:  It can be used as a demonstrative

 3 exhibit.  But if you want to have it in evidence,  we need to

 4 have more foundation as to when and what it was.  So the

 5 objection is sustained until you can figure out b etter what

 6 this document was.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   That's fine, Your Honor.  I have it as

 8 a demonstrative, and I was going to ask the witne ss to go

 9 through it.  Would this be a good time to start t hat, or should

10 we take our break?  It's really up to Your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  Well, 59 and 53 seconds.

12 (Laughter) 

13 THE COURT:  So this is not a good time.

14 We're going to break here for the day because I w ant

15 the jury to know -- because I know by now you alr eady can see

16 how great a deputy clerk, Dawn Toland, is, who si ts here

17 quietly keeping this ship running every day.

18 This is her 25th year with the U.S. District Cour t.

19 And I say this because later on today she's going  to be honored

20 at a celebration internally, here at the court.

21 And I just think it's appropriate to say on the

22 record how much we admire her and how lucky the U nited States

23 is to have such a great employee.

24 So, there we go.

25 (Applause.)
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 1 THE COURT:  Remember all the admonitions.  We'll see

 2 you back here at 7:30 in the morning.

 3 THE CLERK:   All rise.

 4 (Jury out at 1:00 p.m.) 

 5 THE COURT:  All right.  Please be seated.

 6 MR. VAN NEST:   Mr. Rubin, you can step down.  You are

 7 free to go.

 8 THE COURT:  You can step down.

 9 All right.  I have the following time:  Plaintiff  has

10 used 780 minutes; defendant 589.  That's my calcu lation.

11 Another small item of information.  The juror who ,

12 Ms. Gallo, who had the issue with her employee no w reports that

13 she does not need further assistance.

14 (Laughter) 

15 THE COURT:  And that the --

16 MR. BOIES:   Expected that would be the case, Your

17 Honor.

18 (Laughter) 

19 THE COURT:  And that she believes this is going to be

20 resolved, but she will get back to us if more is needed.  So,

21 good.

22 And, now, if you have any issues for me I'm all e ars.

23 Anything?

24 MR. JACOBS:   Nothing from us, Your Honor.

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Nothing here, Your Honor.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document988   Filed04/26/12   Page230 of 250



PROCEEDINGS   1627

 1 THE COURT:  Okay.  Who's your next witness going to

 2 be after this?

 3 MR. VAN NEST:   Dan Bornstein.  He's one of the

 4 engineerings that built Dalvik and worked on the platform.

 5 THE COURT:  Are we going to have a witness who -- you

 6 know, we really relied on this thing on the easel .

 7 Are we going to have any more testimony about the

 8 specifics of the name and exactly how someone wou ld write a

 9 program that would call up these words and statem ents and

10 static and --

11 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes, we are.

12 THE COURT:  -- those things?

13 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes, we are.

14 THE COURT:  Here's the reason I ask, is that

15 Mr. Jacobs has argued very effectively throughout  this case

16 that there's this elaborate set of interrelations hips in the

17 APIs.  Right?

18 MR. JACOBS:   Oh, yes.  I was going to especially a

19 agree with you "effectively."

20 THE COURT:  I want to hear more about that.  I would

21 like to understand more.  Maybe the jury would.  But for the

22 issues that I have to decide, I would like to hea r more about

23 what these interrelationships are and more about how the

24 programmer would actually use the name of the API  in calling up

25 where though brackets go.  That kind of thing.
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 1 Are we going to have a witness on that?

 2 MR. BABER:   Absolutely, Your Honor.  Our expert,

 3 Professor Astrachan, who is seated back there -- stand up.  He

 4 will testify towards the end of our case.

 5 That's exactly what he is going to do when he's o n

 6 the stand.  He will come down to the easel.  He w ill actually

 7 write a program.  He will create and write for th e jury and for

 8 Your Honor a program, step by step, line by line,  starting from

 9 the beginning, where you have to create a class, and how that

10 relates to the language, and how it has to have i ts own class.

11 And he will walk through it and he will invoke th ree APIs.

12 THE COURT:  Okay.  And will he do that both for -- in

13 both the Android version and the Java version?

14 MR. BABER:   Well, Your Honor, since the APIs have the

15 same names, it would work in either version.

16 THE COURT:  All right.

17 MR. BABER:   Okay.  When it does the three

18 invocations.

19 THE COURT:  Will he have the declarations in there

20 somewhere?

21 MR. BABER:   The declarations don't go in the code.

22 When you're writing your own program, all he'll p ut

23 in the code -- for example, here would be "max" a nd two numbers

24 (indicating).

25 THE COURT:  All right.  At least he will explain why
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 1 you don't need to have the declaration in your ow n program.

 2 MR. BABER:   He absolutely will, Your Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  But for the part that's accused here, it

 4 does have the declaration.  Right?  I mean, other wise, my

 5 computer wouldn't know what was what.

 6 MR. BABER:   Exactly.

 7 This is what identifies this as -- this part up h ere

 8 is what identifies this as the implementation of this API So it

 9 has to be here so the computer knows, when you as k for this,

10 it's right here (indicating.)

11 THE COURT:  Is there going to be an exhibit that goes

12 with this little writeup?

13 MR. BABER:   Hopefully, Your Honor, Professor

14 Astrachan's handwriting is better than Dr. Bloch' s.

15 THE COURT:  His was very good.

16 MR. BABER:   Just like this.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.  What Dr. Bloch did was clear.  I

18 can read it from right here.

19 MR. BABER:   And we will have a whole new set of Magic

20 Markers when Professor Astrachan comes, and a big ger easel so

21 he has more room to write some of the commands.  We'll take

22 care of that.

23 THE COURT:  You'll have to take care of that part of

24 it.

25 MR. BABER:   But there will be an exhibit just like
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 1 this, when Professor Astrachan is done with it, w hich will have

 2 on it Professor Astrachan's program for -- as you 'll find out

 3 when he testifies, for performing a specific oper ation.

 4 THE COURT:  Great.  Okay.  Mr. Jacobs, I wanted to

 5 give you equal time.  What would you like to say?

 6 MR. JACOBS:   Well, I think your questioning has

 7 distilled an important difference, an important t echnical

 8 difference, perhaps of legal significance.

 9 When an application programmer is writing an

10 application program, the application programmer n eeds to use

11 max.

12 When Google implemented the core libraries, they

13 copied in the entire declaration.  That's the fir st difference.

14 The second difference is that when Google impleme nted

15 the core libraries, they took the entirety of the  structure,

16 sequence and organization illustrated at a very h igh level by

17 the poster.  Because I don't even think you can f ind the max

18 method on the poster.  It's down (inaudible) of d etail

19 (indicating).

20 When an application programmer writes an applicat ion,

21 they don't implement core libraries that follow t hat structure,

22 sequence and organization.

23 It would be akin -- to go back to my West's keyno te

24 analogy, it's akin to a lawyer writing a memo and  saying, At

25 keynote 63 you can find the topic of contract for mation.
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 1 That -- very different from copying that taxonomy  into another

 2 book that provides the entire taxonomy and inform ation.

 3 So there are two distinctions I'm drawing.  One i s

 4 what words and symbols are necessary for the appl ication

 5 programmer versus what Google copied in creating a set of class

 6 libraries, and how that relates to the structure,  sequence and

 7 organization.

 8 And, second, this difference between -- we're usi ng

 9 the terms in a blurry sort of way -- an applicati on programmer

10 may rely on the API.

11 What Google did in copying the class library APIs  was

12 copy the class library APIs and implement them an d provide

13 class libraries that meet the structure, sequence  and

14 organization set forth in the interface definitio n.

15 THE COURT:  Before you respond, I've been working on

16 the jury instructions.  And I always think of som ething after I

17 leave that I should have asked earlier.

18 And I'm working my way through, trying to figure out,

19 okay, what is it that is the work as a whole?  Yo u know,

20 because both of you say I have to tell the jury w hat is the

21 work as a whole, right?

22 MR. BABER:   Yes, Your Honor.  We believe you do.

23 MR. JACOBS:   And we believe you do, as well.

24 THE COURT:  So you both want me to figure out what

25 the work as a whole is.
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 1 And one of the phrases that Mr. Jacobs has used i s

 2 "standalone."  And that comes from the decision a bout the

 3 Hustler Magazine.  And the analogy he gave the other day is,

 4 every advertisement in the magazine is a standalo ne unit.

 5 So I got to thinking about that.  If it's true th at

 6 each API is a standalone unit, then don't we have  to analyze

 7 each one of them separately, without regard to ho w it -- it

 8 ties into the rest of the APIs?

 9 Either they are standalone and work as a whole as  the

10 entirety of all the APIs, or they work in a whole  as the

11 individual units.  But it seems like you're tryin g to have it

12 both ways.

13 So you want us to say, the entirety of the 37 and  how

14 they fit together in that power -- if you like th e West Key

15 system -- is the work.  Right?

16 MR. JACOBS:   Uh-huh.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.

18 MR. JACOBS:   Yes.

19 THE COURT:  But, then, at the same time you want it

20 to say it's each individual page, and each API is  also a work.

21 And to me those are a -- a standalone work no les s.  So if it

22 stands alone, how can it be tied in with all of t hese other

23 APIs?

24 I'm sure you've got a great answer for that.  So that

25 occurred to me last night, about 5:00 p.m.  So, w hat is your
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 1 answer to that?

 2 MR. JACOBS:   First, to state precisely, we're talking

 3 about the 37 packages as a -- as a collection of packages.

 4 That's one definition of the work as a whole.

 5 And then, secondly, each package.  And recall tha t

 6 each package is itself an extensive set of APIs.  Each package

 7 has multiple methods, interfaces, exceptions, con structors.

 8 And so we're talking about the package level.

 9 So what's happened here, again by analogy, is tha t

10 Google took several volumes of our West's keynote  series, they

11 copied the collection of volumes they chose, whic h themselves

12 have cross-references to each other.  And when yo u are in

13 contract formation, go see estoppel.

14 THE COURT:  But then they can't be standalone.  If

15 they don't standalone, then the work as a whole i s the larger

16 group if they have all these interrelationships a nd

17 cross-references.

18 Because how can it standalone if it cross-referen ces?

19 MR. JACOBS:   Because standalone and cross-references

20 are distinct concepts.

21 Standalone means, in this context, can you look a t

22 this work and see boundaries around it?  Perhaps from the act

23 of creation.

24 So we know that these packages come from JSRs, an d

25 they are created as packages.  That's what happen ed to
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 1 java.nio.  We know that the packages themselves h ave in the

 2 hierarchy a kind of a boundary.

 3 And the fact that within the package there may be

 4 interfaces that are relied on elsewhere, or there  may be, if

 5 you will, cross-references between the packages d oesn't mean

 6 that they don't have standalone quality.

 7 The same would be true -- I think, actually, the

 8 other analogy that's quite powerful was the docum ent we saw

 9 where -- that Mr. Van Nest sought to put into evi dence.

10 And the dispute was whether we are looking at the

11 document and whether the document was there as a whole.  And

12 recall that it had links on it.  And Google is ar guing, well,

13 these are just links.  You don't have to go attac h the link --

14 attach what you would have found at that date to the document,

15 in order for the document to be a document.

16 And, you know, actually, I think on that case he was

17 probably pretty right.  Because it was just a lin k.  Had it

18 been an attachment to the original document, then  he would have

19 had missing attachments.  But it was just links.

20 The analogy is very close.

21 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, may I?

22 Your Honor, just where he ended, I don't see how

23 that's analogous at all because before somebody w rote that

24 e-mail, that e-mail never had been combined with those two

25 links to whatever was on those web pages ever bef ore.  It's a
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 1 totally different circumstance.

 2 But back to the Java APIs.

 3 THE COURT:  It would be useful on this point, there's

 4 a possible difference between a cross-reference a nd an

 5 incorporation.

 6 MR. BABER:   I agree, Your Honor.  Or dependency.

 7 THE COURT:  Westlaw says, for more information on

 8 rule against perpetuities, see volume 2.  That wo uld be one

 9 thing.  But if it said in order to understand, to  make this

10 chapter work, you've got to go read another chapt er, that's an

11 incorporation.

12 And those are two different things, that it may b e

13 that arguably -- I'm going to say arguably in the  first case

14 each is standalone.  But in the second case no wa y it's

15 standalone because you can't understand --

16 MR. BABER:   Your Honor --

17 THE COURT:  How much evidence is there in the record

18 about the extent -- I'm talking not the lawyer ar gument -- of

19 the actual witnesses and the documents explaining  when a method

20 invokes some other method that -- and requires it  to be run?

21 I haven't heard much evidence on that.  I would

22 like -- I'm curious about it.  I've asked about i t in the past.

23 I get lawyer argument, but I don't get evidence.  Unless it's

24 in one of these written documents that I -- maybe  it's in the

25 book.  You know, that big, thick book.  It's poss ible it's in
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 1 that big, thick book and I'll find out about it a t the closing

 2 argument.

 3 MR. BABER:   Your honor, our turn is now here, and

 4 you're going to hear that from us.  You will get an explanation

 5 from Professor Astrachan about all these issues.  

 6 To go back to the West's analogy, the keynote

 7 analogy, imagine, Your Honor, if it was the rule that you

 8 couldn't even read the keynotes for estoppel unle ss you already

 9 had open in front of you keynotes for contract.

10 That's how these APIs work.  You cannot use any c lass

11 in the Java language unless you already have the API for

12 java.lang.class.  You can't do anything on the la nguage without

13 the basic building blocks of the language.

14 Class, object, string.  Those are all in these AP Is.

15 And so you literally can't get started, you can't  even get to

16 square one without the APIs.

17 And on Mr. Jacobs' point about, well, they are

18 different packages, they come from new JSRs, yes,  they do.

19 But, every new JSR builds upon the API packages t hat are

20 already there, because all the new API packages h ave to go back

21 to java.lang.

22 If you want to display it on a screen, you have t o go

23 back to java.io.  If you want to take it over a n etwork, you

24 have to use what's in java.net.

25 So they are all dependent on the core packages, f or
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 1 sure.

 2 So it is not like somebody writes a poem.  A coup le

 3 of years later they write another poem.  And two years later

 4 they write a short story.  And they publish them all together.

 5 They are three totally separate works.  They are not related to

 6 each other.  That might be a collective work.

 7 Here, we have these computer files that all depen d on

 8 each other and call each other.  And candidly, Yo ur Honor, they

 9 not only relate to each other as the API packages , they also

10 relate to the Java compiler, which is part of the  work, because

11 the Java compiler has to know these classes so wh en it comes to

12 it in source code format, it can do the operation s and convert

13 it to bytecode.

14 So they act as a whole with the compiler and the Java

15 virtual machine.  The whole thing works together.   You have to

16 have somebody writing in the language, who has ac cess to the

17 APIs, that can then send source code to the compi ler, which

18 goes into the virtual machine.  Otherwise, it doe sn't work.

19 On the first point that Mr. Jacobs talked to you

20 about, which is, he said, well, Google didn't jus t take max,

21 Google took the whole thing, java.lang.math.max, with these

22 parameters (indicating).

23 Well, Your Honor, that is the core issue.  If we had

24 taken just max, and we had put it in the package I created

25 yesterday, java.Bruce.math.max, then two things:  
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 1 Anybody who had written any programs in the Java

 2 language in the past, that they wanted to reuse p art of, that

 3 called max this wouldn't work.  Because when that  program went

 4 to call max, they'd look in java.lang.math.  But we wouldn't

 5 have it there.  We would have it in java.Android. math or

 6 java.Bruce.math.  It would be in the wrong place.   Computer

 7 couldn't find it.  

 8 That's number one as to existing code.  It would no

 9 longer be compatible.

10 And as to new code, all these computer scientists  and

11 engineers who have been to school and who have me morized many

12 of these APIs, and they're used to writing code, just, boom,

13 max, boom, IO, boom, URL, they know, they have th em memorized.

14 It's like the vocabulary words we lawyers use eve ry day.  They

15 would have to go learn a whole new vocabulary.

16 THE COURT:  Well, but the other side would say, in

17 response, yeah, that's what they should -- if you  wanted to

18 write your own system, you should have done what these other

19 people did, that use a different -- write your ow n language and

20 come up with your own code words and names and de clarations.

21 And, yeah, people would have to learn it from Jav a.

22 MR. BABER:   We could have, Your Honor.  But the law

23 gives us the right to use the Java programming la nguage and to

24 use these APIs because they are not protectable.

25 THE COURT:  Well, you say that and maybe you're
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 1 right, but you haven't cited a single decision th at says that.

 2 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, with due respect, I believe

 3 the Ninth Circuit law about functional requiremen ts for about

 4 compatibility --

 5 THE COURT:  That's an argument.  That's one step

 6 removed.  I understand your argument, but there i s no decision

 7 on point that says computer languages, not copyri ghtable.

 8 MR. BABER:   You are correct.  Absolutely right, your

 9 Honor, and I think I know why that is, but...

10 THE COURT:  Why is that?

11 MR. BABER:   I think, frankly, because in the computer

12 science industry in the United States, it has bee n accepted

13 since computers began that API specs are open for  everyone to

14 use.  

15 And something else you'll hear from Professor

16 Astrachan, just to give you a sneak preview, APIs  are not

17 unique or new to the Java language.  Every part o f your

18 computer has to talk to every other part, which m eans whoever

19 made the chips, whoever made all the programs, wh oever made the

20 hard drive, whoever made the monitor, every compo nent of your

21 computer has APIs that allow it to talk to all th e other parts.

22 The only way we have computers nowadays is becaus e

23 everybody knows all these APIs, so that your comp uter knows how

24 to talk to his monitor and then can talk to his p rinter and it

25 can all work together.  That's all APIs.
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 1 APIs are not just a language programming concept.

 2 They are the nuts and bolts of how computer syste ms work, both

 3 hardware and software.

 4 And the issue of API specs not being available fo r

 5 others to use and to create their own implementat ion of,

 6 candidly, would be a substantial departure from t he practice in

 7 the engineering industry.  You heard that from Dr . Schmidt this

 8 morning on the stand.  You heard it from others; that this is

 9 how the engineering in the computer science world  has worked.  

10 And that's why, candidly, I don't think there has

11 been any dispute, because no one has ever tried t o protect a

12 programming language.  No one was ever tried to c laim, "Well,

13 I own just the specs for the API.  You're not usi ng my source

14 code, but just the specs."

15 Now, there are situations -- and I have been invo lved

16 in prior litigation -- where companies do have pr oprietary

17 APIs.  Let's say you're a bank and you want inter nally, within

18 your system, to have APIs that allow things to ta lk to each

19 other, but it's very confidential.  Lots of finan cial

20 information.  You never publish the specs for tha t API.

21 Employees who have access to it are under confide ntiality

22 agreements.  You don't let it go outside the comp any because

23 once you let it out, anybody else can get their h ands on it and

24 write some code that allows them to access your s tuff.

25 So unless you keep it proprietary and protect it
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 1 basically through trade secret law, you cannot th rough

 2 copyright claim that someone who has just taken t he idea that

 3 this path will somehow perform a function for you , that's --

 4 you can't get there on copyright because that's i dea versus

 5 expression.

 6 THE COURT:  If you had a website and you wrote a poem

 7 and stuck it on the website so the public could s ee it and put

 8 a little copyright symbol up there, that could be  copyrighted.

 9 MR. BABER:   Absolutely.

10 THE COURT:  So if they want to copyright it -- if

11 they want to put their APIs up and put a symbol o n it, why

12 can't that be copyrighted?

13 MR. BABER:   Because, first of all, APIs are not

14 poems.  Poems are creative works that are not sub ject to all

15 of the technical doctrines of copyrightability.  No one would

16 ever claim that a poem is a method of operation.  No one would

17 ever --

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  It's your 102(b) argument.

19 MR. BABER:   Well, 102(b) on its face, but then also

20 other doctrines we've cited to your Honor that ar e constrains

21 on copyrightability.

22 The Ninth Circuit, they cited 102(b) when they ta lked

23 about functional requirements for compatibility, but they

24 didn't say, "Well, we're adding a new category to  102(b)."

25 They said, "This is like 102(b)."  And the same w ith merger
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 1 and scenes a faire.

 2 THE COURT:  The Court of Appeals for our circuit, in

 3 the decision that Mr. Jacobs likes -- I've forgot ten the name

 4 of it.

 5 MR. JACOBS:   Johnson Controls.

 6 THE COURT:  Yes, Johnson Controls.

 7 (Continuing) -- does say that the Structure, Sequ ence

 8 and Organization is subject to, of a computer pro gram, at least

 9 on the facts of that case and on a preliminary in junction

10 standard was copyrightable.

11 MR. BABER:   It did.

12 THE COURT:  So 102(b), there's got to be some

13 balancing of that against 102(b).  It's not --

14 MR. BABER:   I think there is, your Honor.  I think

15 there is a way to harmonize that.  I'm happy to e xplain.

16 THE COURT:  Let's not do it now.

17 But I need to say to you what I've said to

18 Mr. Jacobs, and that is, you know, you make all t hese

19 statements about how it works in the industry and  proprietary

20 and trade secrets and it could all be completely true, but if

21 that's not in the record, it's not going to count  for purposes

22 of making a decision.  So take care to put in the  sworn record

23 whatever it is that you need to rely upon.

24 MR. BABER:   I understand, your Honor.

25 THE COURT:  Okay.
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, your Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  See you tomorrow, 7:30.

 3 (Whereupon at 1:23 p.m. further proceedings 

 4  in the above-entitled cause was adjourned 

 5  until Wednesday, April 25, 2012 7:30 a.m.) 

 6  

 7 -  -  -  - 

 8  
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E X H I B I T S  

 
 
TRIAL EXHIBITS                      IDEN   VOL.    EVID    VOL.  
 
1066                                1400    7 
106                                 1400    7 
34, 278, 298, 387 1402 7  
538, 1048 1402 7  
207 1425 7  
214 1425 7  
215 1426 7  
216 1426 7  
217 1427 7  
221 1427 7  
223 1428 7  
230 1428 7  
273, 382, 389, 431, 433, 438 1429 7  
618, 619 1429 7  
1002, 1044, 1050, 1051, 1060 1429 7  
3443 1429 7  
1061 1430 7  
205 1488 7  
435 1492 7  
2372 1497 7  
3441 1510 7  
3466 1523 7  
406 1562 7  
 

-  -  - 
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  1645

I  N  D  E  X  

 
PLAINTIFF'S WITNESSES                             PAGE    VOL.  
 
RUBIN, ANDY   
(PREVIOUSLY SWORN) 1424 7  
Direct Examination Resumed by Mr. Boies 1424 7  
  

SCHMIDT, ERIC   
(SWORN) 1454 7  
Direct Examination by Mr. Boies           1454     7  
 

 

-  -  - 

 
DEFENDANT'S WITNESSES                            PAGE    VOL.  
 
SCHMIDT, ERIC   
(PREVIOUSLY SWORN) 1470 7 
Direct Examination by Mr. Van Nest               14 70     7  
Cross Examination by Mr. Boies 1537 7  
Redirect Examination by Mr. Van Nest 1562 7  
Recross Examination Resumed by Mr. Boies 1578 7  

  

RUBIN, ANDY  
(PREVIOUSLY SWORN)  
Direct Examination by Mr. Van Nest 1583 7 
Voir Dire by Mr. Boies                           16 24     7  

-  -  -  - 
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Official Reporters for the United States Court, Nor thern 

District of California, hereby certify that the for egoing 

proceedings in C 10-3561 WHA,  Oracle America, Inc., vs. Google, 

Inc.,  were reported by us, certified shorthand reporters , and 

were thereafter transcribed under our direction int o 

typewriting; that the foregoing is a full, complete  and true 

record of said proceedings at the time of filing.   

        /s/ Katherine Powell Sullivan        

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR #5812, RPR, CRR 
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